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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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2006 2005 Variance

ARAB BANK GROUP In USD million

Net interest income 788.6 599.8 188.8

Income after tax 624.6 503.2 121.4

Dividends 139.4 86.4 53.0

Income per share* USD 1.85 USD 2.83 USD (0.98)

* The income per share for 2006 is based on 332.5 million shares (outstanding average shares), compared to 176 million shares for 2005

Total assets 32 465.4 27 484.4 4 981.0

Customer deposits 21 766.3 19 290.5 2 475.8

Direct credit facilities, net 14 165.3 11 725.1 2 440.2

Shareholders’ equity 5 884.6 3 885.0 1 999.6

Net interest and commission income to total assets 2.99 2.89

Net income to total assets 1.92 1.83

Shareholders’ equity to total assets 18.13 14.14

Capital adequacy ratio 23.70 19.01

Direct credit facilities to total deposits 55.91 52.04

Share prices for 2006 (in JOD)*

End of week closing

* First and second week closing prices were adjusted to be in line with the closing price after the subscription in capital increase.
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FIVE-YEAR MAIN FINANCIAL FIGURES
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2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

ARAB BANK GROUP In USD million

Assets

Cash and banks 9 546.0 8 295.0 8 486.9 8 442.9 7 670.7

Securities and investments 7 282.2 6 509.7 6 666.9 5 444.6 5 181.2

Direct credit facilities, net 14 165.3 11 725.1 11 447.1 9 992.2 9 262.9

Fixed and other assets 1 471.9 954.6 734.9 664.5 678.7

Total 32 465.4 27 484.4 27 335.8 24 544.2 22 793.5

Liabilities and shareholders' equity

Customer deposits 21 766.3 19 290.5 19 548.3 18 272.5 16 931.4

Bank deposits 3 568.0 3 241.4 3 389.8 2 481.8 2 375.4

Other liabilities 1 246.5 1 067.5 1 148.8 909.4 901.3

Shareholders' equity 5 884.6 3 885.0 3 248.9 2 880.5 2 585.4

Total 32 465.4 27 484.4 27 335.8 24 544.2 22 793.5

Contra accounts 14 169.1 9 678.1 9 189.7 7 765.6 7 233.6

Net interest income 756.4 578.0 431.3 374.7 375.9

Non-interest income 622.4 602.1 452.9 356.1 296.1

Total 1 378.8 1 180.1 884.2 730.8 672.0

Operating expenses 588.8 543.6 458.4 427.6 377.8

Income before tax 790.0 636.5 425.8 303.2 294.2

Income tax 165.4 133.3 106.4 75.5 64.1

Income after tax 624.6 503.2 319.4 227.7 230.1
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Arab Bank stands by you 
at all stages of life.



CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Early in the year, we completed all the procedures required for issuance of the rights 

offering. Accordingly, shareholders’ equity was increased by more than USD 1.5 bil-

lion, which provided the Bank with additional earning power to enable continued

revenue growth within the restrictions imposed by new capital adequacy require-

ments. As of 31 December 2006, shareholders’ total equity increased by 51.5% over

that of the previous year, to reach USD 5,884.6 million. As a result, we will be able to

expand our business activities in parallel with the equity increase. In terms of equi-

ty, Arab Bank is now at the forefront of the Arab banking industry and close to being

ranked as one of the top one hundred banks worldwide. Due to time constraints in

2006, we were unable to fully benefit from all the new opportunities afforded by this

extraordinary increase in shareholders’ equity. Nevertheless, we were able to increase

our net income by 31.6%. The net income of Arab Bank, after tax, reached JOD 263.3

million in 2006, compared to JOD 200.1 million in 2005. The Group’s net income af-

ter tax amounted to USD 624.6 million, an increase of 24.1% over 2005.

Shareholders’ wealth is not limited only to revenue and a capital base; it also extends

to other important dimensions such as the credit ratings granted to the Bank by the

rating agencies. During 2006 and in early 2007, the Bank’s credit ratings were signif-

icantly raised by the three leading international rating agencies. The Bank now en-

joys an “A3” rating from Moody’s,“A-” from Standard and Poor’s and “A-” from Fitch.

It has thus become one of the most prestigious financial institutions in terms of cred-

it ratings, enabling it to obtain funding at increasingly favourable rates. This improve-

ment in ratings will further boost the Bank’s financial position in international mar-

kets, and enhance its profitability, which in turn will have a positive effect on

shareholders’ value.

Our concerted acquisition efforts in 2006 were an additional part of our drive to add

value to our shareholders. Through acquisitions, we aim to secure the benefits that

Dear Shareholders,

2006 was a year of considerable achievements for Arab Bank: we suc-

ceeded in enhancing our shareholders’ net worth, strengthening the

Bank’s financial position, achieving best practices in corporate gover-

nance and providing our clients with excellent products and services

while continuing to play a leading role in serving the economies of the

countries in which we operate. 
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can be derived from economies of scale,

enlarge the Bank’s portfolio of products,

and broaden our operations to new geo-

graphical areas. We made some strategic

additions to the Group in 2006, includ-

ing the acquisition of a majority interest

in the Al Nisr Al Arabi Insurance Com-

pany in Jordan, which enabled the Bank

to offer a full portfolio of bancassurance

products. We also acquired a 50% stake

in MNG Bank in Turkey, which allows us

to operate in this important country and supports our efforts in building bridges be-

tween Arab economies, neighbouring countries and other countries worldwide.

Arab Bank’s customer base is composed

of widespread and varied groups which

differ in nature and needs. A few years

ago, we restructured our organization to

provide specialized services to meet the

specific requirements of each group. For the corporate sector, we concentrated on ob-

taining new customers, developing more advanced lending instruments and improv-

ing our facilities for our existing clients, all as a result of the enhanced lending pow-

er generated by the capital increase. The outcome of these efforts was reflected in

increased loan portfolios for both corporate and small to medium-sized enterprises

(SMEs).

Within our retail banking segment, our ultimate objective is to achieve leadership in

the region. To that end, we have undertaken initiatives that focus on renovation and

modernisation of our branch network, as well as upgrading communications and de-

livery channels. In addition, we plan to open new branches in several countries. Our

expansion in retail banking also includes the enhancement of our products and serv-

ices portfolio on both sides of the balance sheet. Arab Bank is further strengthening

its bond with existing customers by providing them with a complete line of bancas-

surance products and services. Furthermore, we have made special efforts towards

targeting the youth market and strengthening our client base with a continuous

stream of new customers.

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
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The loyalty of Arab Bank’s customers has been the cornerstone

of our continued success. We believe that our foremost duty lies

towards our customers, in assisting them to achieve their goals

by furnishing them with the most appropriate, state-of-the-art

banking products and services at competitive prices. 



In the private banking area, we have completed a comprehensive study that identifies

the specific requirements of this group of customers. The Bank has now prepared a

full set of strategic plans that should

help make it the leading private bank in

the region. We will be able to service our

affluent private banking clients with a

financial institution that can compete

with any international private bank.

In 2006, Arab Bank completed the reorganization of all its European branches and

subsidiaries in record time. We were able to establish Europe Arab Bank plc with an 

equity of EUR 500 million. The Bank obtained a licence in the United Kingdom with

a “European Passport” in May 2006, which allows Europe Arab Bank to operate in all

European countries. After obtaining the licence, Arab Bank transferred ownership of

its branches in the United Kingdom, Italy, France and Spain to the new Bank. Before

the end of 2006, the Bank also transferred ownership of its subsidiaries, Arab Bank

(Austria) AG and Arab Bank AG, Frankfurt, making them branches of Europe Arab

Bank. Our new subsidiary will play a unique role in connecting the economies of var-

ious countries with those of the European Union. In the initial stages, Europe Arab

Bank will provide financial products and services in the areas of corporate banking,

private banking and treasury. We are confident that the new Bank will contribute to

Arab Bank Group’s income, and lead to increased benefits from economies of scale,

greater efficiency, well-targeted marketing efforts and constant enhancement of

quality products and services.
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Our mission calls for the Bank to play a significant role in the

development of the Arab financial markets. We have completed

the needed research to establish a new investment banking 

entity, called AB Capital Limited. This entity, 60% of which is

owned by Arab Bank, will begin its operations in the Arab Gulf

states in 2007. 
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During the past year, we have improved our working capacity as well as our delivery

channels in almost all the countries where we operate. Implementing our strategic

plans to increase our market share, we raised the Bank’s equity in the branches to 

JOD 872.3 million, compared to JOD 538.6 million at the end of 2005. This is posi-

tively reflected in the sound financial position of the branches and in the results of

their operations.

Arab Bank has pioneered good corporate governance practices in the Arab world and

worldwide. The Board Audit and Corporate Governance Committees were reformu-

lated. A Committee for Nomination and Promotion was also established to select,

promote and evaluate the performance of the top executives of the Bank.

In 2006, we hired a leading consulting firm for the banking industry to build on our

previous efforts to improve the performance of the Bank and to achieve its strategic

objectives by increasing its market share. Our aim was to redesign the organization-

al structure of the Bank to benefit more effectively from the changes of both our in-

ternal and external environments. The organizational structure of our Head Office

and its relationship with the branches and other operating units were modified with

the aim of increasing efficiency in performance and teamwork. Arab Bank has

achieved the highest level of corporate governance by developing a well-designed

framework of responsibilities and accountability at all managerial levels. To enhance

cooperation and team spirit among our 

executives, all executive committees were

restructured. We trust that the reorganiza-

tion will take the Bank to higher levels of

operational efficiency, enabling it to excel

both domestically and internationally.

The new capital adequacy requirement known as Basel II is becoming a very impor-

tant element in directing international banking operations. The commencement 

of implementation of these new requirements varies from country to country. The

Central Bank of Jordan has requested Jordanian banks to abide by this rule by the be-

ginning of 2008. Considering that Arab Bank operates in several countries outside 

Jordan, the management of the Bank decided to begin measuring its Basel II capital

adequacy earlier, in 2006. All related systems have been redesigned to meet these 

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Arab Bank’s implementation of regulatory rules has set new stan-

dards for financial institutions in the region. Arab Bank Group is

investing considerable energy and resources in fighting money

laundering, enhancing customer awareness and implementing

regulatory rules in the areas of risk management, international

accounting standards and other relevant fields.
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requirements. The calculation of capital adequacy in accordance with the new rule, as well

as the preceding one, is presented later in this report.

In 2006, the capital markets witnessed severe corrections in some of the Arab countries.

The average decline of the market indices in the Arab Gulf states was around 31.5%. The

Amman Stock Market was also subjected to similar corrections. The general banking mar-

ket declined by 36.6%, which had a parallel impact on the shares of Arab Bank. At the end

of the year, the price of one share of Arab Bank settled at around JOD 21.4, compared to

JOD 34.7 at the beginning of the year. It is important to mention here that the number of

Arab Bank shares was doubled, to reach 356 million shares, as a result of the rights issue.

These factors caused the number of shareholders to increase to 24,000 by the end of 2006

from 15,000 at the beginning of the year. The price-earnings ratio at the end of the year

declined to 16.3 compared to 31.5 at the end of 2005. In addition, the market value to book

value ratio declined to 1.8 times as on 31 December 2006, compared to 4.0 times on 31

December 2005. We are confident that

the future performance of the Bank and

its strong financial position will form

the basis for determining its market val-

ue in the future.

To conclude, I would like to thank the

members of the Board for their serious and sincere efforts to enhance the performance of

the Bank, and our clients for their trust and continuous support, and, last but not least,

the employees of Arab Bank for their dedication and hard work.

ABDEL HAMID A.M. SHOMAN

Chairman of the Board of Directors

and Chief Executive Officer

Supporting the strong and well-established relationship be-

tween the Bank and its shareholders, the Board of Directors has

proposed increasing the cash dividends to 25% of the nominal

value compared to 15% the previous year. This will increase the

payout ratio to 33.8% of net income.

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
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Arab Bank helps provide peace 
of mind as an employer, a lender,
an insurer, a wealth manager and 
a financial adviser.
It takes the worry out of life.



Dear Shareholders,

We are pleased to present to you the

77thAnnual Report, which includes a

summary of the most important results

of Arab Bank Group as well as a propos-

al for the appropriation of income. The

attached financial statements confirm

the ability of your institution to success-

fully meet the challenges of changing

and difficult environments. Arab Bank’s

good results in 2006 were the direct out-

come of judicious and pragmatic poli-

cies set by the management.

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

The world economy grew at an estimated rate of 3.6% in 2006. About one third of

this growth was generated by booming Asian economies, notably those of China and

India. Both of them were able to support production on an international level, with

China reporting a 10.4% GDP growth and India 8.7%.

Rising prices of raw materials, mainly oil, led to higher inflation in the more advanced

economies. They did not affect the less advanced countries as much, since greater pro-

ductivity in these countries helped fight inflation.

The US economy achieved good growth in 2006, recording a 3.3% increase in GDP,

compared to 3.6% in 2005. At the same time, the costs of industrial production and

labour continued their declining trend, with their positive effects reflected in the 

financial markets. Unfortunately, this growth phenomenon lost some of its steam by

the end of year partly due to negative signals from the real estate market.

In 2006, overall, the economies of members of the European Union experienced 

their most impressive growth for the past six years, with an average GDP growth of

12
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This report for the year ended 31 December 2006 was submitted to the General Assembly of Shareholders
at the Annual Meeting held on Friday, 30 March 2007.



around 2.6%. This was the direct result of good economic policies, including reduc-

tions in public spending and the budget deficit. However, the economic growth 

exerted an upward pressure on prices causing interest rates to rise at the end of the

year.

The Japanese economy also saw a GDP growth that was expected to exceed the 2.4%

rate achieved in the previous year.

In the Arab oil-producing nations, the economic growth indicators reached unprece-

dented levels, while the capital markets followed a trend of strong downward correc-

tion. Prices, especially in the real estate market, increased across the board.

CHANGES IN RULES AND REGULATIONS AFFECTING THE BANKING

INDUSTRY

The banking industry is governed by a multitude of rules and regulations, including:

- Banking supervision and regulatory rules

- Corporate governance regulations

- Accounting standards

- Tax regulations

The capital adequacy requirements for banks under the Basel II rules having been 

finalized, Arab Bank was able to adapt its systems in 2006 to  comply with the new reg-

ulatory rules. Our calculations of capital

adequacy according to Basel I and Basel II

are presented later in this report.

The International Accounting Standards Board is constantly refining the principles

and standards of measurement, valuation and disclosure. Arab Bank continues to

carefully monitor the development of these standards so as to ensure their proper and

timely implementation. In each country in which it operates, the Bank works close-

ly with the local regulatory authorities so as to ensure timely compliance with these

changes.

During the past year, the Jordanian Government presented a project to modify the

income tax law in Jordan. As of the end of 2006, the law had not been approved by

the Parliament.
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Arab Bank’s achievements in the field of corporate governance
are clearly evident in key areas, including its organizational
structure and the composition of the Board and its committees. 



FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

This report briefly reviews the performance of Arab Bank Group and the financial state-

ments of Arab Bank, which include the operations of the branches in Jordan as well as

in other countries. The currencies used in the financial statements of the branches out-

side Jordan have been translated to the Jordanian dinar (JOD), according to the prevail-

ing exchange rate at the end of the year. Since 1995, the exchange rate of the Jordanian

dinar has been pegged to the US dollar at an average rate of 0.709.

Arab Bank Group applies the Internation-

al Accounting Standards (IAS) and Inter-

national Financial Reporting Standards

(IFRS) in the preparation of its financial

statements. These standards include IAS

30 (Disclosures in the Financial State-

ments of Banks and Similar Financial In-

stitutions), IAS 32 (Financial Instru-

ments: Disclosure and Presentation) and

IAS 39 (Financial Instruments: Recogni-

tion and Measurement).

The financial statements of Arab Bank Group consolidate the statements of Arab Bank

plc, its sister institution, Arab Bank (Switzerland), and the following subsidiaries:

Percentage ownership

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Arab Bank Australia Ltd., Sydney 100.00

Arab Bank AG, Frankfurt 100.00

Europe Arab Bank plc, London 100.00

Islamic International Arab Bank plc, Amman 100.00

Al Arabi  Investment Group, Amman 100.00

Arab Investment Bank S.A.L., Beirut 66.65

Arab Tunisian Bank, Tunis 64.24

Arab Palestinian Investment Bank, Ramallah 55.00

NON-FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Arab Leasing Company 100.00

Arab Real Estate Company for Management and Investment 100.00

Al Nisr Al Arabi Insurance Company 50.00

In 2006, the accounts of Arab Bank (Austria) AG were consolidated within Europe

Arab Bank plc. The equity accounts of Arab Bank AG, Frankfurt remain outstand-

ing and will be legally liquidated in 2007.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

THE IMPACT OF EUROPE ARAB

BANK PLC

The establishment of Europe Arab Bank

plc has affected the financial statements

of Arab Bank plc, as these statements no

longer include the financial figures of all

Arab Bank branches in Europe. The

Group’s figures, however, remain intact.

To illustrate the impact, the following

changes would be observed at Arab

Bank plc if the financial figures of the

European branches were to be included.

• Financial position

- Growth in customer deposits:

11.8% instead of 1.6%

- Growth in bank deposits: 127.9%

instead of 12.9%

- Growth in direct credit facilities:

28.4% instead of 18.8%

- Growth in total sources of funds: 37.6% instead of 9.7%

• Income statement

- Growth in net revenue: 18.5% instead of 13.9%

- Growth in operating expenses: 12.9% instead of 1.8%

- Growth in income after tax: 25.6% instead of 31.6%.

The remainder of this part of the Annual Report includes analyses of the following items:

A. Results of operations

B. Financial position

C. Income appropriation

D. Changes in shareholders’ equity

E. Capital adequacy

His Majesty King Abdullah II honouring Arab Bank by inaugurating the new head 
office building in Amman.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

A. RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

ARAB BANK GROUP

In 2006, Arab Bank Group’s income reached USD 624.6 million after provisions and

tax, an increase of USD 121.4 million, or 24.1% over 2005. Income before tax

amounted to USD 790.0 million, compared to USD 636.5 million the previous year.

Total expenses increased by USD 55.6 million, or 9.8%.

The principal components of the Group’s income are as follows:

2006 2005 Variance

In USD million %

Net revenue 1 411.0 1 201.9 209.1 17.4

Total expenses 621.0 565.4 55.6 9.8

Income before tax 790.0 636.5 153.5 24.1

Income tax 165.4 133.3 32.1 24.1

Income after tax 624.6 503.2 121.4 24.1

ARAB BANK PLC

The substantial improvement in the income of Arab Bank plc continued for the third

consecutive year. Its income for 2006, after provisions and tax, reached JOD 263.3

million, representing an increase of JOD 63.2 million, or 31.6% over that of the pre-

vious year.

The following table contains a comparative analysis of the principal components of

the Bank’s income earnings before and after tax.

2006 2005 Variance

In JOD million %

Income before bad debts, provisions and taxes 354.7 271.7 83.0 30.5

Provisions and bad debts 25.4 17.6 7.8 44.3

Income before tax 329.3 254.1 75.2 29.6

Income tax 66.0 54.0 12.0 21.1

Income after tax 263.3 200.1 63.2 31.6
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The results show a significant growth in

core income, mainly net interest income

and other revenue from financial servic-

es. Net interest income was 70.6% of to-

tal revenue in 2006, compared to 61.1%

in 2005.

Expenses increased by 1.8% over those

of 2005. This reflects management’s

ability to control expenses as well as the

exclusion of the expenses of the European branches from the financials of Arab 

Bank plc.

B. FINANCIAL POSITION

ARAB BANK GROUP

Total funds rose to USD 32.5 billion in 2006, representing an increase of USD 5.0 bil-

lion over the previous year. This growth was the result of the following:

In USD million

Increase in customer deposits and cash margin 2 475.8

Increase in deposits from banks 326.7

Increase in other liabilities and provisions 179.0

Increase in shareholders’ equity 1 999.5

Total 4 981.0

The increased funds were utilized as follows:

In USD million

Increase in cash and due from banks 1 250.9

Increase in securities and investments 772.5

Increase in direct credit facilities, net 2 440.2

Increase in fixed and other assets 517.4

Total 4 981.0
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The structure of the financial statements

of the Group was, in general, similar 

to that of Arab Bank plc. Customer 

deposits and cash margin accounted 

for 67% of total funds. On the other

hand, the direct credit facilities grew to

USD 14.2 billion, representing an in-

crease of USD 2,440.2 million, or 20.8%

over 2005.

ARAB BANK PLC

Total assets of Arab Bank plc as on 31 December 2006 amounted to JOD 18,440.1 mil-

lion, compared to JOD 16,815.8 million at the end of 2005, representing an increase

of JOD 1,624.3 million, or 9.7%. The total balance sheet grew to JOD 25,691.3 mil-

lion, which was an increase of JOD 2,796.6 million, or 12.2%. The actual growth in

customer deposits and the cash margin were much higher than is shown in the bal-

ance sheet, taking into consideration the transfer of the European branches’ financial

statements to Europe Arab Bank plc. Deposits from banks and financial institutions

increased by JOD 300.0 million, or 12.9%.

The following shows the changes in the sources of funds:

In JOD million

Increase in customer deposits and cash margin 188.0

Increase in deposits from banks 300.0

Decrease in other liabilities and provisions (98.0)

Increase in shareholders’ equity 1 234.3

Total 1 624.3

Most of the increase in equity resulted from the rights issue that took place in early 2006.

In 2006, Arab Bank plc worked to change the structure of its assets so as to increase

their productivity. The main changes in utilization of funds were as follows:

In JOD million

Increase in cash and due from banks 586.8

Decrease in securities and investments (233.8)

Increase in direct credit facilities 1 249.7

Increase in fixed and other assets 21.6

Total 1 624.3

FINANCIAL REVIEW
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

A summary of the total utilization of funds, depicting the drive to increase produc-

tivity while maintaining a high level of liquidity, is presented below:

2006 2005 Variance

In JOD million %

Cash and due from banks 6 614.6 6 027.9 586.7 9.7

Securities and investments 2 866.9 3 359.8 (492.9) (14.7)

Direct credit facilities 7 909.8 6 660.1 1 249.7 18.8

Long-term investments 513.7 254.6 259.1 101.8

Fixed and other assets 535.1 513.4 21.7 4.2

Total assets 18 440.1 16 815.8 1 624.3 9.7

C. INCOME APPROPRIATION

The continuous growth in income was a decisive factor in the Board’s decision to in-

crease the level of dividends distributed to its shareholders. Arab Bank follows a well-

established policy with regard to cash dividends, which aims at achieving two objec-

tives: enhancement of its earning power and distribution of the largest possible

amount to the shareholders. The Bank’s past policies used to set a limit on the cash

dividends payout ratio to 30% of net income after tax. This is demonstrated in the

following table:

In JOD million %

Year Income Cash Ratio of cash

after tax dividends dividends to 

income after tax

1997 107.7 17.6 16.3

1998 126.5 26.4 20.9

1999 120.5 26.4 21.9

2000 130.2 35.2 27.0

2001 139.2 35.2 25.3

2002 130.2 35.2 27.0

2003 120.2 35.2 29.3

2004 148.3 35.2 23.7

2005 200.1 53.4 26.7

2006 263.3 89.0* 33.8

* Proposed

FINANCIAL REVIEW
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As a result of the capital increase in 2006,

the Board proposes to distribute more

cash dividends than in 2005 and to allow

the amount to exceed the previously set

ceiling mark of 30% of net income.

It is also important to mention that the

dividends in 2006 will amount to 167%

of the dividends of 2005 and 253% of

the dividends of 2004.

ARAB BANK GROUP

The shareholders of Arab Bank Group receive annual dividends from Arab Bank plc

as well as from Arab Bank (Switzerland). Following the appropriation policy of Arab

Bank plc, the management of Arab Bank (Switzerland) decided to maintain the pro-

posed dividends at 25%, the same as in 2005.

The proposed income appropriation for Arab Bank (Switzerland) is as follows:

2006 2005

In CHF million

Income after tax 22.1 20.9

Retained earnings from previous year 3.9 5.1

Total available for appropriation 26.0 26.0

Proposed dividends (representing 25% of the nominal value of shares) 6.7 6.6

Allocation to general legal reserve 0.5 0.5

Allocation to other reserves 15.0 15.0

Surplus to be carried forward to next year 3.8 3.9

Total appropriation 26.0 26.0

Based on the above, the dividends for each share will be CHF 0.1875, with a withhold-

ing tax of 35% deducted before distribution to the shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
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The consolidated statement of Arab Bank Group shows the following appropriations:

2006 2005

In USD million

Income after tax 624.6 503.2

Retained earnings 86.7 46.0

Total available for appropriation 711.3 549.2

To statutory reserve 49.8 40.0

To voluntary reserve 107.4 81.5

To general reserve 58.8 25.5

To general banking risk reserve 59.7 84.6

To reserves with associated companies 205.7 144.5

Proposed cash dividends 139.4 86.4

Retained earnings carried forward 90.5 86.7

Total appropriation 711.3 549.2

ARAB BANK PLC

Arab Bank Board of Directors’ recommendation to the General Assembly for appro-

priation of the income is as follows:

2006 2005

In JOD million 

Income available for appropriation 263.3 200.1

Proposed distribution of appropriation:

Statutory reserve 33.0 26.0

Voluntary reserve 66.0 50.0

General reserve 33.0 10.0

General banking risk reserve 42.3 60.7

Proposed dividends 89.0 53.4

Total appropriation 263.3 200.1

Accordingly, the proposed dividends for Arab Bank’s shares are JOD 0.25 per share,

representing 25% of their nominal value. The dividends will be paid in full to the

shareholders who are registered in the respective books of the Bank on the date of the

Annual Meeting of the General Assembly.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
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D. CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

ARAB BANK GROUP

The new rights issue augmented the equity base by USD 1.5 billion. The rights issue

per share was in the form of JOD 1 capital and JOD 5 premium. The continuous or-

ganic growth in shareholders’ equity can also be assessed by examining the main com-

ponents of that equity in the appropriation statement presented below.

2006 2005

In USD million

Capital 525.0 271.0

Issuing premium 1 313.3 0

Treasury shares (48.5) 0

Statutory reserve 267.0 217.2

Voluntary reserve 594.8 487.4

General reserve 1 599.5 1 540.7

General banking risk reserve 281.6 221.9

Reserves with associated companies 870.9 665.2

Translation adjustments 89.7 43.8

Cumulative change in fair value 101.1 216.0

Retained earnings 90.5 86.7

Proposed dividends 139.4 86.4

Total shareholders’ equity (parent company) 5 824.3 3 836.3

Minority interest 60.3 48.7

Shareholders’ total equity 5 884.6 3 885.0

USD million
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ARAB BANK PLC

The comparative figures of the shareholders’ equity component of Arab Bank plc for

2006 and 2005 are as follows:

2006 2005 Variance

In JOD million %

Capital 356.0 176.0 180.0 102.3

Issuing premium 921.7 0 921.7 -

Treasury shares (34.4) 0 (34.4) -

Statutory reserve 166.0 133.0 33.0 24.8

Voluntary reserve 378.0 312.0 66.0 21.2

General reserve 900.0 867.0 33.0 3.8

General banking risk reserve 146.0 107.0 39.0 36.4

Translation adjustments 89.6 65.9 23.7 36.0

Cumulative change in fair value and 
retained earnings 82.0 145.3 (63.3) (43.6)

Proposed dividends 89.0 53.4 35.6 66.7

Total shareholders’ equity 3 093.9 1 859.6 1 234.3 66.4

E. CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The following table presents a summary of the Group’s capital adequacy calculations

in accordance with Basel I and Basel II rules as on 31 December 2006:

In USD thousand 

Basel I Basel II

Risk-weighted assets 20 451 084 20 305 911

Tier I capital 4 375 087 4 289 219

Tier II capital 471 618 380 966

Total regulatory equity 4 846 705 4 670 185

Tier I capital to risk-weighted assets 21.39% 21.12%

Total regulatory equity to risk-weighted assets 23.70% 23.00%

FINANCIAL REVIEW
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EXTRAORDINARY AND NON-RECURRING ITEMS

The transfer of Arab Bank plc branches in France, Italy, Spain and the United King-

dom to Europe Arab Bank plc affected the financial statements of Arab Bank plc, as

mentioned earlier and in note 50 of the financial statements.

SUMMARY OF ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2006 

The most important achievements of the Bank in 2006 can be summarized as follows:

• The management finalized the redesigning of the organizational structure of the

Bank’s head office and branches, aimed at enabling the Bank to enhance its per-

formance and to benefit from changes in the internal and external environments.

• The main financial objectives set in the business plan and budget were realized, and

the financial indicators showed the following results:

- 11.9% return on average equity

- 18.8% growth in the loan portfolio

- 51.4% liquidity ratio

- 50.2% efficiency ratio

• The Bank started its bancassurance business in 2006, offering its customers a full

portfolio of products.

• The Bank acquired a majority stake in Al Nisr Al Arabi Insurance Company in 

Jordan.

• Europe Arab Bank plc was created with an unrestricted licence from the Financial

Services Authority that will enable it to establish branches in any country in the Eu-

ropean Union. The following entities were transferred to Europe Arab Bank before

the end of the year: the branches in France, Italy, Spain and the United Kingdom

as well as subsidiaries in Austria and Germany.

• The ratings of Arab Bank improved as follows:

- Moody’s: A3

- Fitch: A-

Moreover, in early 2007, the Bank also obtained an “A-” rating from Standard &

Poor’s.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
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It is noteworthy that Arab Bank plc is the

first bank to obtain a credit rating high-

er than the rating of its home country,

which indicates its important position

among international financial institu-

tions and its superior diversification.

EXPECTED FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

AND PLANS FOR 2007

The following is a summary of the main

plans for 2007:

• Private banking: The Bank will set in

motion its plans for reorganizing its

private banking activities. The new

private banking organizational struc-

ture will be implemented in the first half of the year.

• Mergers and acquisitions: The acquisition of MNG Bank will be completed early

in the year. The Bank will also intensify its acquisition activities in accordance with

its new strategic directions.

• Investment banking: The Bank will complete the reorganization of its investment

banking via its two subsidiaries: Al Arabi Investment Group and AB Capital. It aims

to expand its investment banking activities to meet the demands of its corporate

clients, on the one hand, and increase its commission income on the other.

• Financial objectives for 2007:

- Increase the return on average equity to more than 13%

- Maintain the liquidity ratio at a level higher than 40%

- Achieve growth in the loan portfolio of not less than 15%

- Increase the efficiency ratio to 50% or better.

In conclusion, Arab Bank’s past and future success is dependent on the continuous

support of our shareholders, the loyalty and trust of our customers and the hard work

and dedication of our employees. We extend to all of them our thanks and apprecia-

tion.

The Board of Directors

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Annual strategy meeting of Arab Bank Group executives.



Financing small and medium-sized
projects is one of our main areas of
expertise.
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BUSINESS AND BANKING SERVICES

Five strategic business units currently work together to provide Arab Bank customers

with a set of comprehensive banking products and services:

- Global Banking Group

- Retail Banking Group

- Wealth Management Group

- Investment Banking Group

- Treasury Group

GLOBAL BANKING GROUP

During 2006, the Global Banking Group continued its efforts towards strengthening the

Bank’s leadership and enhancing its activities in corporate and commercial lending,

project and structured finance, trade finance, and lending to small and medium-sized

enterprises and financial institutions.

The Group achieved strong growth in corporate and commercial lending by widening

its product range, expanding its customer base by accessing new markets, and maximiz-

ing cross-selling opportunities. It energetically pursued its goal of diversification in

terms of borrowers, geographic spread and economic sectors. The favourable econom-

ic environment, supported by high oil prices, is expected to be conducive to sustainable

growth in these activities over the next few years.

Arab Bank played a major role in financing strategic projects throughout the Middle 

East and North Africa (MENA) region, with a special focus on the Gulf Cooperation 

Council (GCC) states. In 2006, it invest-

ed in infrastructure, services and high

value-added projects in the power and

utilities, telecommunications, petro-

chemicals, liquefied natural gas (LNG)

and air transport sectors.

As part of its strategic directions and initiatives, the Global Banking Group was split in

the last quarter of 2006 into two independent groups: the Corporate and Investment

Banking Group (CIB) and the Credit Group. This move should boost the capabilities of

the CIB for business development, relationship management, product innovation, pen-

etration of new markets, cross-selling, and better yields and profitability. At the same

time, it should enhance the credit management capabilities with the introduction of ad-

vanced credit methodologies and techniques equal to best practices in the financial in-

dustry. It will also be better equipped to meet the growing challenges in the regulatory

environment.

The Bank increased its role in financing trade flows to and from
the MENA region, capitalizing on its competitive advantage in
trade finance – an advantage that is underpinned by its exten-
sive global and regional network of branches and its strong ties
with other financial institutions.
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BUSINESS AND BANKING SERVICES

RETAIL BANKING GROUP

The Retail Banking Group has enhanced the Bank’s presence in the consumer finance

market, with continued strong growth in consumer loans, credit cards and customer 

deposits.

The Group has adopted the “customer-driven banking model” as a cornerstone of Arab

Bank’s global retail strategy. Key to its success is a deep understanding of customers’

needs, along with the development of products and services, to offer a “seamless bank-

ing experience” through traditional and electronic banking channels.

The global reorganization of our retail banking, has sought to combine international

best practices, successful programme

policies and local market expertise into a

cohesive, robust retail banking business.

The Retail Banking Group is positioning Arab Bank as a young and energetic bank, look-

ing to invest in the future of its younger generation and in the societies where it oper-

ates. Our branches were given a new image aimed at creating a sales-conducive environ-

ment and a progressive and adaptable brand that appeals to the young. The introduction

of the “Shabab” product, which packages features and benefits together into various re-

tail products, was specially designed to meet the growing needs of young professionals.

Bancassurance was launched in September 2006 in Jordan through 11 branches, and 89

Arab Bank employees have been trained and licensed to sell protection and savings plans.

In Egypt, a bancassurance cooperation agreement was signed with Allianz Life Egypt,

and 52 Arab Bank employees have been trained to promote bancassurance products.

Sales started in October 2006 through nine branches.

WEALTH MANAGEMENT GROUP

The Wealth Management Group (WMG) provides tailor-made products and services for

the high net worth clients of Arab Bank Group. This is a response to socio-economic

changes in areas where the Bank operates, requiring a progressive outlook in the offer-

ings of regional financial institutions. The range of products and services available to

this segment of the Bank’s clients includes: loans, deposits, investment management

services, brokerage services, property management and other related services.

In addition, for high net worth individuals who have more sophisticated investment re-

quirements, the WMG offers: private equity and placements, customized portfolios, dis-

The Bank’s good performance in 2006 is testimony to its 
ability to provide superior services, to excel in multi-channel
delivery functions and to offer value-added solutions to our 
customers. 



cretionary portfolio management, trust

services, estate planning and retirement

planning.

In collaboration with Arab Bank’s invest-

ment banking entity, a separate asset man-

agement strategy was formulated for the

development and packaging of propri-

etary portfolios and funds for WMG’s

clients. The brokerage business will con-

tinue to evolve through the development

of regional and international brokerage

capabilities as well as  the promotion of

brokerage services with internal and 

external parties.

Other functions include investment man-

agement, which is responsible for invest-

ment products and for supporting the re-

search and advisory units under the

WMG. The research unit in turn conducts

research and provides data to internal par-

ties. It also publishes periodic reports for

customers and external groups. The advi-

sory unit develops institutional portfolios

and assists the WMG sales team with in-

vestment recommendations.

INVESTMENT BANKING GROUP

Arab Bank Group performs its investment banking activities via its two subsidiaries:

Al Arabi Investment Group and AB Capital Limited.

AL ARABI INVESTMENT GROUP

Al Arabi Investment Group, Arab Bank’s investment banking arm in Amman,

Jordan, is one of the leading investment banking firms in the Levant region. Its services

include corporate finance, asset management and brokerage. Formerly known as the 

Atlas Investment Group, it was established in 1996 as the first independent investment

banking firm in Jordan. It pioneered integrated investment banking services in both 

Jordan and Palestine, and its partnerships with the region’s leading investment banking

firms provide a rich regional network to better serve Arab Bank’s clients.
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BUSINESS AND BANKING SERVICES

Exchange of an important partnership agreement between Arab Bank and the major
Jordanian telecommunications company, Fastlink.

Parallel to these reorganization efforts, WMG is providing staff
development and training and expanding its staff to foster a
team of proactive, qualified and experienced professionals for
both its back and front offices, in order to offer its clients the
best possible service.
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BUSINESS AND BANKING SERVICES

By offering comprehensive advisory services, Al Arabi Investment Group plays a catalyt-

ic role in the development of the Jordanian and Palestinian capital markets. It offers both

innovative and conventional financial products and strategies, and conducts in-depth

economic, corporate and securities research.

Al Arabi Investment Group devotes considerable resources to developing the highest

quality research products, which consti-

tute the core of its work. The objective is

to provide our clients with well-informed

opinions and advice concerning the in-

vestment opportunities and associated

risks currently prevailing in the area.

AB CAPITAL LIMITED

Arab Bank’s commitment to its clients’ needs and the developing needs of the region’s

capital markets prompted it to expand its investment banking services in the Arabian

Gulf. To this end, the Bank acquired a 60% share of Injaz Ltd. in Dubai, now known as

AB Capital.

AB Capital focuses on the GCC market, offering advisory services, corporate finance,

asset management and private equity services. The new entity also adds a strategically

important dimension to Arab Bank’s activities in the Gulf region. Its location in the

Dubai International Financial Center (DIFC) provides a unique opportunity to work

from a platform that has access to a larger client base. It is also able to keep in close touch

with the DIFC’s latest financial activities, enabling it to offer a wider and more sophis-

ticated range of products and financing schemes.

TREASURY GROUP

Responsible for the management of the Bank’s liquidity and market risk, Treasury Group

recorded another very positive year in 2006. A combination of favourable market 

conditions, trading skills, greater customer focus and wider product offerings have not

only raised the profile of the Bank but also made a significant contribution to its results.

The Group provides a wide range of financial products to its customer base as well as

advisory services on the management of all aspects of market risk. The Group’s special-

ized knowledge of the MENA regional market and its extensive presence there allows it

to give the Group’s customer base a highly informed, timely and efficient service. In ad-

dition to providing standard treasury products, the Group tailors structured financial

solutions for customers with more complex requirements.

2006 was a year of change and rebuilding with a view to expansion.

A new management took over and developed a fresh strategy to 

focus its business on the emerging opportunities of the Levant and

North Africa regions. In order to implement its strategy, Al Arabi

Investment Group increased its capital from JOD 3.6 million to

JOD 8.9 million.



Arab Bank provides expert financial
services to both young professionals
and well-established entrepreneurs.



Treasury Group is active in the following

areas:

-  Foreign exchange

-  Foreign exchange derivatives

-  Money market instruments

-  Interest rate derivatives

-  Fixed income securities and capital mar-

kets

-  Repos

-  Structured products

The Treasury Group continues to refine its

oversight and control of global treasury

activities. The trading and risk manage-

ment system already installed in the larg-

er treasury centres currently covers most

of the Bank’s trading activities, and com-

plementary systems cover the remaining

activities conducted in the smaller centres. Implementation of the value-at-risk model

has been introduced in all of the Group’s centres, enabling much greater management

oversight of treasury business and the ability to stress test the entire business of Trea-

sury Group.

As part of the creation of Europe Arab Bank, all of the Group’s European treasury cen-

tres have been merged into one trading centre based in London. Treasury sales teams

have been created in all the European centres, and their only function is to provide 

value-added treasury services to the Bank’s European customers.

The Financial Engineering team has also had a successful year providing support to the

Bank’s customers throughout its global network. It has crafted some innovative invest-

ment products, such as the Emirates Falcon which has proved popular with the Bank’s

customers.

MARKET SHARE

GENERAL

Arab Bank’s competitive position is based on several strengths, including:

- A solid reputation as a flight-to-quality financial institution

- A history of over 77 years of operations and of consistently meeting its obligations 

despite difficult business conditions and political unrest

BUSINESS AND BANKING SERVICES
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Arab Bank is renovating its branches to provide efficient services in a pleasant 
environment. 



- A good investment rating from the following rating agencies:

• Fitch: A-, with a stable outlook

• Moody’s: A3, with a stable outlook

• Standard & Poor’s: A-, with a stable outlook  

- An extensive network of branches covering most of the Arab countries as well as the

main international financial centres

- An outstanding financial position and long-term superior performance 

- A comprehensive portfolio of financial products and services.

MARKET SHARES IN SPECIFIC LOCATIONS

Arab Bank’s market shares vary by country, according to its historical presence as well

as the basis of measurement. The following table presents estimates of the Bank’s mar-

ket shares.

ARAB BANK’S MARKET SHARES

Country Total assets Deposits Direct credit

% % facilities  %

Bahrain 5.20 3.70 7.10

Egypt 2.20 2.09 1.93

Jordan 23.49 26.60 19.20

Lebanon 1.89 1.97 1.20

Palestine 37.20 41.50 35.50

Qatar 2.99 2.86 2.28

UAE 1.12 1.34 1.13

Yemen 17.80 20.45 8.95

The Bank’s shares in other markets may not be as significant as those listed above due

to the size of the market or the network and the duration of its operations in those mar-

kets.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CLIENTS

No specific individual supplier or client accounts for 10% or more of the Bank’s 

activities.
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PATENTS AND GOVERNMENT PROTECTION

Arab Bank competes in free and open economies on the basis of fair competition. It does

not enjoy any preferable protection. It has no advantages from specific patents.

BRANCH NETWORK AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Arab Bank has an extensive branch network (as listed below) which along with its sister

and subsidiary companies, covers the Arab region and the most important financial 

centres of the world.

Country No. of Operating Total assets No. of
branches since 31 December 2006 employees

In JOD thousand

Algeria 2 2001 90 152 117

Bahrain 4 1960 3 400 460 138

China (representative office) 2 1985 - 7

Cyprus 4 1984 297 031 111

Egypt 13 1947 2 138 872 798

Jordan 82 1934 5 527 729 2 856

Kazakhstan (representative office) 1 2004 - -

Lebanon 13 1944 912 446 311

Morocco 10 1962 313 324 215

Palestine 23 1930 1 416 253 827

Qatar 3 1957 758 607 134

Republic of Korea (representative office) 1 1989 - 3

Singapore 1 1984 436 620 44

UAE 8 1963 1 858 749 457

USA (federal agency) 1 1982 307 390 27

Yemen 10 1972 660 122 311

BUSINESS AND BANKING SERVICES
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Arab Bank’s Corporate and Investment
Banking Group is working to help Arab
companies in the region develop advanced
technologies.



36

The Group’s consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of

Arab Bank plc, Arab Bank (Switzerland), a sister company wholly-owned by the

shareholders of Arab Bank plc, and the following wholly- and majority-owned

banking subsidiaries:

- Arab Bank Australia Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary 

- Europe Arab Bank plc, a wholly-owned subsidiary

- Islamic International Arab Bank plc, a wholly-owned subsidiary

- Arab Investment Bank S.A.L. (66.65% ownership)

- Arab Tunisian Bank  (64.24% ownership)

- Arab Palestinian Investment Bank (55% ownership)

The Group also owns several non-banking subsidiaries, including:

- Al-Arabi Investment Group

- Arab Leasing Company

- Arab Real Estate Company for Management and Investment

- Al Nisr Al Arabi Insurance Company

The following is a brief description of the business of the banking entities and their

results in 2006.

ARAB BANK PLC

Arab Bank was established in 1930. Registered in Jordan as a public shareholding

company, it is the parent company of Arab Bank Group and is one of the principal

financial institutions in the Arab world. It ranks among the leading international

banks in terms of equity, earnings and assets. It is engaged in providing a wide vari-

ety of financial services, which include corporate banking, retail banking, private

banking, trade financing, commercial real estate lending and other banking services.

ARAB BANK (SWITZERLAND)

Arab Bank (Switzerland) is an independent entity founded in 1962 in accordance

with Swiss law. Its main areas of activity are private banking, covering asset and

investment management for both private and institutional clients, and trade financ-

ing, primarily for companies importing from and exporting to Arab countries.

The shareholders of Arab Bank (Switzerland) are identical to those of Arab Bank plc.

On 19 January 2006, an Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders took place

where the following motions were unanimously approved:

1. A reduction of the share capital from CHF 26,400,000 to CHF 13,200,000 by

reducing the par value of the 17,600,000 registered shares from CHF 1.50 to

PERFORMANCE OF THE GROUP’S ENTITIES
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CHF 0.75 per registered share – with a simultaneous re-increase of the share

capital from CHF 13,200,000 to CHF 26,400,000 by issuing 17,600,000 new 

registered shares at the par value of CHF 0.75 each.

2. Creation of an authorized share capital up to a maximum amount of

CHF 300,000 by issuing a maximum of 400,000 registered shares with a par

value of CHF 0.75 each.

This was done following the capital increase of Arab Bank plc Amman, Jordan,

in order to maintain the ratio of ten Arab Bank plc shares to one registered share 

of Arab Bank (Switzerland), as they are

traded in that ratio as factual twin

shares on the Amman Stock Exchange.

Despite the significant depreciation of the US dollar, which had a negative impact

on the Bank’s result – given that most of its revenue is USD-based – Arab Bank

(Switzerland) nevertheless managed to increase its total net profit after tax by 5.6%,

from CHF 20.9 million to CHF 22.1 million.

The following table lists the main financial highlights of 2006 compared to 2005:

2006 2005

In CHF million

Balance sheet

Balance sheet total 2 810.8 2 044.9

Due from customers 386.6 498.8

Mortgages 109.5 47.1

Securities and financial investments 331.9 344.7

Shareholders’ equity (before profit distribution) 485.2 451.6

Profit and loss statement

Net interest income 22.8 20.3

Results from commissions and service fee activities 23.2 23.0

Results from trading operations 5.7 4.5

Other revenue 0.7 0.2

Operating expenses (23.4) (19.6)

Gross profit 29.0 28.4

Net income after tax 22.1 20.9

Fiduciary transactions 3 125.5 3 325.1

PERFORMANCE OF THE GROUP’S ENTITIES

As a result of the capital increase at Arab Bank plc, the balance
sheet total increased by 37.5%, from CHF 2,044.9 million to
CHF 2,810.8 million (due to higher inter-company deposits).
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ARAB BANK AUSTRALIA LIMITED

Arab Bank Australia Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Arab Bank plc.

Originally established in 1986 as a merchant bank, it subsequently recognised the

opportunities of the Australian retail banking market and obtained its retail bank-

ing licence in 1994. It has since been focusing on providing retail banking products

and services primarily to the Australian

Arabic community in response to that

community’s needs. It has also

enhanced the global network of the

Arab Bank Group.

At the same time, though, Arab Bank Australia has been experiencing the effects of

an increasingly competitive financial services industry, particularly in its niche mar-

kets. This intense competition has exercised significant, unprecedented pressure on

interest margins. These challenging conditions have been exacerbated by a signifi-

cant downturn in the regional economies in which it operates. As a result the loan

book contracted by 7.65%, with a significant decline in the interest margin. The fall

in lending activity also caused a decline in traditional sources of fee income. Overall

profitability was thus adversely affected under these conditions. Nevertheless,

despite these difficult conditions, Arab Bank Australia is entirely self-funding.

In 2006, Arab Bank Australia sustained its enviable track record of awards for its

excellent products. For the first time in its history, it gained recognition from the

industry for its lending products by being awarded a “5 Star Rating” for its Basic

Home Loan; this is awarded only to products that are rated in the top 5% of all

products in their category. Arab Bank Australia was also rated Best Bank by Money

Magazine for three of its products: its 3-Year Fixed Rate Home Loan, its 5-Year

Fixed Rate Investment Loan, and its Premium Business Cheque Account. Arab Bank

Australia also gained 2nd and 3rd place for its Cash Management and Term Deposit

products respectively.

EUROPE ARAB BANK PLC

Europe Arab Bank plc (EAB) is a limited liability company established under British

law with headquarters in London. Incorporated in England and Wales, EAB is

authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority. Between August and

December 2006, the businesses of Arab Bank AG, Arab Bank (Austria) AG and Arab

PERFORMANCE OF THE GROUP’S ENTITIES

Throughout 2006, Arab Bank Australia continued to benefit
from increased deposits due to its favourable reputation in the
Australian market. Deposits as at 31 December 2006 were up
by 5.7% compared to the previous year, and with an improved
margin.
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Bank’s branches in London, Rome, Madrid, Paris and Cannes were integrated into

the new entity, EAB. In early 2007, EAB is scheduled to open a branch in Milan.

The three principal business activities of EAB are treasury, private banking and corpo-

rate banking. With annual trade volumes in the last few years exceeding USD 250 bil-

lion, the European Union is one of the largest trading partners of the MENA region.

This large market gives EAB the oppor-

tunity to provide a niche service to its

clients based in Europe and that region.

EAB’s vision is to become the pre-eminent bank for clients engaged in business

activities between Europe and the MENA region. A number of key professionals are

now in position to lead our business units and develop detailed and competitive

business strategies. New client products and services are expected to strengthen rev-

enue even further. In addition, significant customer benefits and cost synergies are

expected as EAB forges ahead with a single operating model in 2007.

The following are the main financial figures for Europe Arab Bank plc in 2006:

PERFORMANCE OF THE GROUP’S ENTITIES

In January 2007, Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services assigned
“A-” long-term and “A-2” short-term counterparty credit ratings
to EAB. This is a very significant achievement for the Bank. 

In EUR million

Balance sheet as on 31 December 2006

Total assets 5 156.4

Balance with banks and financial institutions 1 666.5

Trading securities 512.3

Direct credit facilities, net 682.0

Investment securities 530.6

Income statement for the year ended 31 December 2006

Net interest income 2.3

Commission income 3.7

Other revenue 3.8

Net revenue 9.8

Total expenses (33.2)

Income after tax (23.4)
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The 2006 results showed a net loss of EUR 23.4 million, due to integration and

restructuring costs. These operational changes will begin to generate more efficient

and effective processes in 2007.

ISLAMIC INTERNATIONAL ARAB BANK PLC

Islamic International Arab Bank plc, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Arab Bank plc,

offers a full range of banking products and services which are in accordance with

Islamic Sharia rules. Established in Jordan in 1997, the Bank started its operations

the following year.

In 2006 the Bank earned a net income (before tax) of JOD 12.6 million, as com-

pared to JOD 6.3 million the previous year. Net profit (after tax and fees) was 

JOD 7.9 million, as compared to JOD 3.8 million in 2005. This profit growth result-

ed primarily from an increase in credit facilities as well as the rise in Murabaha rates

due to the rise in the interest rates on the Jordanian dinar. Credit facilities grew to

JOD 244 million in 2006 from JOD 175 million in 2005, representing an increase of

39%. Shareholders’ equity increased by JOD 7.8 million, to reach JOD 62.5 million.

The Bank had 286 employees at the end of 2006 compared to 259 in 2005. In-house

training is crucial to the success of the Islamic International Arab Bank. In 2006, the

Bank conducted 66 in-house training courses, with a total of 1,440 participants.

ARAB INVESTMENT BANK S.A.L 

Arab Investment Bank s.a.l., founded in 1998 with a paid-up capital of 15 billion

Lebanese pounds (LBP), started its operations in 1999. The Bank is a majority-

owned subsidiary of Arab Bank plc and is its investment arm in Lebanon. The

Bank’s activities are governed by Lebanese law.

As an investment bank, Arab Investment Bank specializes in medium- and long-

term lending. Its activities also include deposit-taking for terms of six months and

longer. The Bank is required to maintain a ratio of at least 1:1 between its lending

and investments.

Despite adverse conditions in Lebanon during 2006, the Bank recorded good

results. Return on equity reached 11.19%, while return on assets improved from

1.9% in 2005 to 2.8% in 2006.

As a result of the Bank’s non-renewal of Lebanese government bonds and other

fixed-income securities, its total assets witnessed a 47.1% decline last year, reflect-

PERFORMANCE OF THE GROUP’S ENTITIES
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ing the overall fall in deposits with banks in that country. Given the prevailing

unfavourable political and economic situation, many customers shifted their

deposits to terms of less than six months, which resulted in deposits moving from

Arab Investment Bank to Arab Bank plc.

To compensate for its reduction in size, the Bank is working towards enhancing its

fee-income from operations through participation in capital market activities and

the further promotion of custody services.

ARAB TUNISIAN BANK 

Arab Tunisian Bank was incorporated in Tunisia in 1982 and is a majority-owned sub-

sidiary of Arab Bank plc. It operates in the country with a network of 66 branches.

Arab Tunisian Bank performed extremely well during the course of 2006. Its assets

registered a 17.37% increase over 2005, to total 2,134 million Tunisian dinars

(TND). Net revenue reached TND 90.3 million in 2006, an increase of 26.80% over

2005.

Customer deposits improved to reach TND 1,772 million in 2006 against 

TND 1,510 million in 2005, representing an increase of 17.34%. Its direct credit

facilities amounted to TND 1,120 million. Income after tax rose 41.45% to TND

24.9 million, compared to TND 17.6 million in 2005.

ARAB PALESTINIAN INVESTMENT BANK

Arab Palestinian Investment Bank obtained its licence from the Palestinian

Authority in 1997. With a capitalization of USD 15 million, ownership of the Bank

is as follows: 55% by Arab Bank plc, 25% by International Finance Corporation of

the World Bank, 15% by Deutsche Investitions–und Entwicklungsgeselschaft mbH

and 5% by Enterprise Investment Company.

Since the 2002 reoccupation of the West Bank and the Gaza Strip, the Palestinian

economy has suffered. Restrictions on movements of workers, people and goods

between the Palestinian cities and the surrounding villages have had enormous

adverse economic effects.

The banking industry has come to a near standstill in the Palestinian Territories,

and Arab Palestinian Investment Bank has stopped almost all lending since 2002.

Consequently, its credit portfolio declined by the amount of repayments in 2006.

The financial results for 2006 showed a net profit of USD 0.17 million.

PERFORMANCE OF THE GROUP’S ENTITIES



The Wealth Management Group excels in
serving our high net worth clients. It provides
a range of products and services, from simple
ones, such as currency and precious metal
trading, to financial derivatives and
sophisticated asset management.
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OVERVIEW

Arab Bank Group operates amid a variety of banking risks by applying best prac-

tices and the most advanced management systems available in the financial markets.

Risk management at Arab Bank Group is dynamic, continuously drawing from the

latest practical experiences and scientific research in this field. The ultimate objec-

tive of the risk management function is to ensure that total banking risks do not

exceed Arab Bank’s overall predetermined risk framework while aiming to achieve

the best possible results.

Risk management is exercised at several levels of Arab Bank, including the Board 

of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the High Asset and Liability Management

Committee (High ALCO), the Group Chief Financial Officer, the Head of Global

Treasury, the Head of the Risk Management Group, the Head of Group Internal

Audit, heads of strategic business units and other supporting units as well as coun-

try heads.

The Board of Directors ensures that management maintains an effective and effi-

cient system of internal control. It also approves general risk management policies,

the risk profile and framework.

As the most senior executive responsible for all of Arab Bank’s activities, the Chief

Executive Officer is the first in line of responsibility for risk management and relat-

ed practices. The Group Chief Financial Officer is in charge of defining financial

and strategic risks, middle office controls, safeguarding the quality of the financial

data and ensuring that the disclosed financial statements are accurate and reliable.

The heads of strategic business units identify and manage risks within their specif-

ic business units. The Head of Global Treasury is responsible for liquidity risk and

market risks related to treasury functions. The Head of the Risk Management

Group supervises all areas covering credit risk, market risk and operational risk.

The Global Head of Group Regulatory Compliance ensures that the Bank is in com-

pliance with all related regulations, especially those issued by banking regulatory

authorities. Depending on the activities of each supporting unit, the concerned

head is responsible for risks pertaining to his/her unit. The Assets and Liabilities

Committee, along with other committees involved with risk management issues,

functions within predetermined powers and authorized limits, in accordance with

formal procedures.

CREDIT RISK

In parallel to its business development thrust, Arab Bank remains committed to the

highest credit risk standards, and has been continuously enhancing its approach to

credit risk management to ensure a sustainable, high quality portfolio.

RISK MANAGEMENT
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CREDIT CONCENTRATION

Credit concentration is subject to regulatory authority constraints. The Central

Bank of Jordan requires that credit concentration should not exceed 25% of regu-

latory equity.

CRITERIA FOR CREDIT RATING

Arab Bank applies a well-defined system for rating the creditworthiness of its clients

on the basis of the following:

1. Borrower strength, which is measured on the basis of six different criteria: the

nature of the business activities, competitiveness, financial performance, cash

flow, financial position and management.

2. Quality of credit, which is measured on the basis of four criteria: guarantee,

structure of the loan, duration and collateral.

RISK MITIGATION PROCEDURES

Arab Bank follows specific policies for risk mitigation, including:

1. Structuring the credit in harmony with the nature of the business, its objectives

and maturity of payment.

2. Completing all relative controls on the utilisation and payment of the credit.

3. Obtaining proper collaterals to be utilised as a second source of payment in case

of occurrence of unforeseen negative events.

CREDIT ANALYSIS, CONTROL AND FOLLOW-UP

Credit is managed by the following four independent managerial units:

1. Marketing and sales department, which is involved in credit creation and devel-

opment.

2. Financial analysis and research department, which undertakes the needed stud-

ies in order to provide relevant information for decision-making.

3. Execution and documentation department, which covers all issues related to

documentation, legal processing and actual implementation.

4. Credit control department, which provides continuous control and follow-up of

the credit, from the initiation stage to the final repayment.

DEVELOPMENT OF THE DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES

Loans and advances net of provisions grew by USD 2,440.2 million, or 20.8%, to

reach USD 14,165.3 million.

The total credit risk of the Group increased by 32.4%. The following table provides

comparative data for the Group credit risk in 2006, 2005 and 2004.
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2006 2005 2004

In USD million

Direct credit facilities, net 14 165.3 11 725.1 10 774.2

Off-balance-sheet:

- Acceptances 615.7 506.5 606.7

- Letters of credit 1 945.9 1 538.5 1 829.0

- Letters of guarantee 7 445.3 5 573.5 4 730.8

- Unused credit facilities 4 162.1 2 059.6 2 023.2

Total off-balance sheet 14 169.0 9 678.1 9 189.7

Total exposure 28 334.3 21 403.2 19 963.9

Direct credit facilities constituted 43.6% of total assets in 2006 compared to 42.7%

at the end of the previous year. They also represented 2.4 times the shareholders’

equity, compared to 3 times in 2005.

PROVISION FOR DIRECT CREDIT FACLILTIES

The Group implements the International Accounting Standards and International

Financial Reporting Standards. The fair value of impaired assets in accordance with

IAS 39 is measured by the net present value of the expected future cash flows.

Provision for impairment of direct credit facilities is determined by the difference

between the book value and the net present value of expected future cash flows.

Expected future cash flows are determined by an evaluation of individual credits.

Special consideration is also given to changes in the size and character of credit

risks, collaterals and other related factors. Risk assets are classified into five groups

according to their quality: current, watch, substandard, doubtful and loss. Credits

with serious degrees of classification are reviewed by the Head Office on a quarter-

ly basis. The credit portfolio is reviewed quarterly in order to determine whether

there are sufficient provisions. Levels and amounts of provisions are also examined

in the light of the monetary authorities’ guidelines as well as studies undertaken by

the external auditors. The Group ceases to accrue interest on non-performing direct

credit facilities as soon as they are classified as such.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity is the strength of the Group and an important focus of its operations. The

Group maintains a high level of liquid assets and a diversified and stable funding

base. Arab Bank Group’s traditional emphasis on maintaining ample liquidity has

enabled it to survive and thrive, despite regional volatility and global shocks. This

emphasis remains as strong today as ever.
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The core objectives of liquidity management are to ensure that all obligations are

met in full and on time, regardless of circumstances, and that the Group continues

to fulfil its long-term lending commitments and strategic goals.

Standardized “liquidity ladders” that measure cash-flow mismatches according to

predefined maturity bands are used in each Arab Bank location to ensure that any

undesirable clustering of payment maturities is avoided.

The local treasurers are responsible for ensuring that the Bank’s liquidity policies,

set by the Global Treasurer (reporting on this matter to the High ALCO), and local

regulatory liquidity regulations are observed. The local treasurers are supported in

this task by asset and liability committees within their respective units. These com-

mittees analyse the business flow and payment profile, taking action, where appro-

priate, to adjust the pricing and product mix in order to ensure that all prudential

requirements are fulfilled.

The Global Treasurer receives all local data, both separately and on a consolidated

basis, to obtain a complete up-to-date picture of the entire Group’s liquidity. This

enables him to provide the High ALCO with accurate management information as

the basis for medium- and long-term strategic decisions on the asset/liability mix.

These decisions are supported by stress testing, using various and tough “what-if ”

scenarios.

The Group maintains, at all times, a sizeable and diversified pool of high-quality, mar-

ketable OECD floating rate assets and a substantial cushion of interbank deposits

with the highest rated OECD financial institutions. On the liability side, considerable

emphasis is placed on developing and maintaining reliable and diversified sources of

funding, in particular, retaining and expanding a loyal retail depositor base.

A comparative analysis of the liquid assets of the Group for the years 2006, 2005 and

2004 is presented in the following table:

2006 2005 2004

In USD million

Cash and banks 9 546.0 8 295.0 8 501.5

Trading securities 2 008.6 1 367.8 1 448.8

Securities available-for-sale 2 173.4 2 696.4 3 024.7

Securities held-to-maturity, net 2 052.8 1 620.1 2 223.6

Total 15 780.8 13 979.3 15 198.6

RISK MANAGEMENT
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The external sources of funds are as follows:

2006 2005 2004

In USD million

Funds from the money market 3 568.0 3 241.4 3 389.8

Customer deposits 21 766.3 19 290.5 19 548.3

Total 25 334.3 22 531.9 22 938.1

It is noteworthy that the majority of customer deposits are stable. Several studies

conducted by the Bank found that these deposits are stationary and are constantly

renewed for further periods. This confirms the strong customer confidence in and

fidelity to the Bank over many years.

The following table presents some liquidity ratios of the Group over the last three

years:

2006 2005 2004

In percent

Cash and quasi-cash to total external funds 62.3 62.0 66.3

Cash and quasi-cash to total assets 48.6 50.9 55.5

Loan portfolio to customer deposits 65.1 60.8 55.1

Customer deposits to total assets 67.0 70.2 71.4

The following table shows the net financial position of Arab Bank Group over spe-

cific time intervals, representing the maturity profile of its assets and liabilities as at

the end of 2006:

In USD million

Within 3 After 3 After 6 After 12 Not tied to Total
months months months months a maturity 

and before  and before period
6 months 12 months

Assets 16 962.6 3 714.4 3 270.6 3 085.9 5 431.9 32 465.4

Liabilities 18 501.1 1 041.4 843.3 665.5 11 414.1 32 465.4

Net position (1 538.5) 2 673.0 2 427.3 2 420.4 (5 982.2) - - -

RISK MANAGEMENT
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The notes to the financial statements (Note no. 43) contain details of the maturities

of the assets and liabilities of the Bank and the Group.

MARKET RISK 

Market risk is the exposure created by potential changes in market prices and rates.

On recommendations of the Chief Executive Officer, and based on proposals by the

High ALCO, the Board of Directors approves the market risk policies and deter-

mines the overall market risk appetite.

The Global Treasurer, the Head of Group Risk and the Group Chief Financial Officer,

each in their own capacity, are responsible for the supervision, control and manage-

ment of market risk. The main components of market risk in Arab Bank include:

interest rate risk, risk of capital market instruments and foreign exchange risk.

Market risk is defined as the potential possible loss resulting from market price

changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, securities and equity prices.

Positions in the trading and banking book are measured for market risk. Positions

affected by market risk result from transactions with customers, and from the activ-

ities of the local treasuries within the internal market limit structures. Limit struc-

tures provide parameters for the risk to earnings ratio and for the economic value

of equity.

Arab Bank identifies, measures, supervises and steers market risk through the im-

plementation of risk-specific limits. Depending on the type of risk, Arab Bank

Group defines volume limits, position limits, sensitivity limits and stop-loss limits.

Only authorized and trained traders can undertake treasury transactions and posi-

tions. All positions and limits are monitored and supervised locally on a daily basis

and globally on a weekly basis.

In general, Arab Bank Group adopts a very conservative approach towards market

risk, and avoids excessive market risk exposure, in particular option leveraged

transactions.

INEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk in Arab Bank is limited, well managed, continuously supervised

and contained. The majority of this interest rate exposure is concentrated on the

short end, with durations of up to one year. Exposure of more than one year is  well

contained. In general, the Bank has no significant long-term or complex interest

rate positions.

RISK MANAGEMENT
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The Group seeks to minimize the negative impact on net income of adverse move-

ments in interest rates. It manages its interest rate risks in accordance with the poli-

cies and limits established by the Head Office of the Bank. The asset liability man-

agement committees at the centres, as well as the respective treasurers, handle the

day-to-day management of interest rate risks. The High ALCO at Head Office deals

with strategic positions and policies.

The Group has a relatively stable and uncomplicated balance sheet, and is subject to

minimal repricing and basis risks. Some securities have call options, but the amount

is a small segment of the investment portfolio.

Investment strategies take into account management’s conservative risk profile and

risk management capabilities. The Group in general has limited appetite for inter-

est rate risk and for impairing economic value for the benefit of enhanced earnings.

The notes to the financial statements (Note no. 42) contain details of the Bank’s and

the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk.

CAPITAL MARKET INSTRUMENTS

Investments in capital market instruments are subject to market risks stemming

from changes in their prices. Arab Bank Group’s exposure to this kind of risk is lim-

ited due to its strong control over interest rate risk. Most of the debt instruments in

the portfolio have floating rate coupons. Risks arising from  fixed rate coupons are

usually hedged by derivatives.

The following table provides the balances of the Group’s capital market portfolio

for the last three years:

2006 2005 2004

In USD million

Trading securities 2 008.6 1 367.8 1 448.8

Available-for-sale 2 173.4 2 696.4 3 024.7

Held-to-maturity, net 2 052.8 1 620.1 2 223.6

Total 6 234.8 5 684.3 6 697.1

Percentage of total assets 19.2% 20.7% 24.5%

In general, the Group’s own trading transactions involve small amounts, the limits

of which have already been set by the High ALCO within a strict framework of trad-

ing rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Income from foreign exchange is generated mainly from customer transactions.

Strict foreign exchange risk limits are set to define volume and sensitivity limits for

proprietary trading in foreign exchange. The Bank hedges itself appropriately

against potential currency fluctuations in order to minimize foreign exchange expo-

sure. In treasury, positions are held open only for small risk equivalents. The major-

ity of the transactions are liquidated on a daily basis. Positions are measured and

supervised by local management daily, and by global management weekly.

Foreign exchange exposure resulting from participations is well contained and

strictly managed.

The following shows the revenue generated from foreign exchange trading during

the last three years:

2006 2005 2004

In USD million

Revenue from foreign exchange 49.6 48.2 50.2

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into local

currencies. Translation adjustments of net foreign investments are taken to

“Translation adjustments” in the shareholders’ equity accounts.

Balances of translation adjustments in the shareholders’ equity are listed below:

2006 2005 2004

In USD million

Translation adjustments 89.7 43.8 144.1

OTHER RISKS

In addition to the above, Arab Bank faces a number of other banking risks, which

include compliance risk and strategy risk.

RISK MANAGEMENT
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COMPLIANCE RISK

Regulatory compliance has always been a core value of Arab Bank. This corporate

culture is formalized in a dedicated regulatory compliance division that is responsi-

ble for establishing the compliance framework and ensuring its implementation

throughout the organization, and for promoting a high level of awareness of compli-

ance requirements. Financial institutions must comply with a growing array of

national and international legislation and recommendations. But compliance is

more than just meeting the letter of the law; it is also about ensuring transparency,

mitigating risk, maintaining customer confidence and enabling profitable growth.

The Bank’s sound organizational integrity and strong ethical principles provide the

foundations of its compliance programme. The programme’s success requires effec-

tive and consistent implementation of policies, procedures and training to ensure

awareness and conformity with regulatory requirements. Equally important is a sys-

tem of internal controls, including periodic monitoring and reporting, to make sure

there is continued compliance across the Bank’s global network. Country, line of

business and operating unit managers are responsible for ensuring that their respec-

tive areas conduct business in line with applicable laws, regulations and corporate

policies as part of their corporate responsibilities. Strategic direction and oversight

with regard to compliance is provided by Arab Bank Group Regulatory Compliance,

a centralized division reporting directly to the Bank’s Chief Executive Officer. It

works in close collaboration with a network of country compliance officers through-

out Arab Bank’s global network.

STRATEGY RISK

The Bank maintains clearly defined working standards and comprehensive strategic

planning procedures. The Board of Directors, together with the Bank’s manage-

ment, periodically assesses the effective and potential impact of the Bank’s major

operations on its strategy, including the internal and external working conditions,

the implications of competition, customer requirements, changes in laws and infor-

mation technology, as well as the Bank’s existing systems. Management also analy-

ses the Group’s historical performance and, possibly, the need to revise its objectives

in the context of a continuously changing working environment.

The achievement of the Bank’s clearly defined objectives depends on a basic princi-

ple: its ability to maintain and promote its widespread network of branches, strong

customer base, unique product and banking services and sound financial position.



True to its vision, Arab Bank works to 
develop the wealth of the region.
More than 15 percent of the loan portfolio 
of Arab Bank Group is invested in oil and 
oil-related industries.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Arab Bank has a well-established framework for good corporate governance which

provides a solid basis for an effective relationship between the Bank, its Board of

Directors, its shareholders and other interest groups. The general framework for

corporate governance ensures equitable treatment of all shareholders, and recog-

nizes the established legal rights of both minority and foreign shareholders. It also

guarantees the availability of timely and precise information in all material matters

concerning the corporation, along with the accountability of the Board of Directors

to the Bank, its shareholders and other related groups.

Arab Bank attaches considerable importance to good corporate governance prac-

tices. Indeed, it pioneered these practices in the Arab region. The Board of Directors

of the Bank is committed to applying the highest standards of professional compe-

tence in all its activities. The Bank follows the guidelines of the Central Bank of

Jordan, which are based on the 1999 Basel Committee recommendations on corpo-

rate governance. It also observes the regulatory requirements of the other countries

in which it operates. In early 1996, the Audit Committee was established, and in

2002, a special committee for corporate governance was created. More recently, to

enhance good corporate governance at the executive level, the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee was established in 2006.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board’s primary role is to protect and enhance the shareholders’ long-term

value by taking responsibility for overall corporate governance of the Bank, includ-

ing defining and monitoring its strategic objectives and ensuring achievement of

the goals set by the executive management.

Arab Bank’s Board of Directors is composed of 11 members who are elected for a

period of four years by the General Assembly of the Shareholders. Their names are

listed on page 2 of this report. On 31 March 2006, the General Assembly elected a new

Board for a period of four years. The members possess a range of skills and experi-

ences, which enables them to make valuable contributions to Board discussions. They

elect the Chairman from among themselves in the first Board meeting following the

General Assembly elections. The Board meets at least six times a year, with a specific

agenda for each meeting. Minutes duly record all formal discussions and decisions. All

members have access to the Secretary-General, who is responsible for ensuring com-

pliance with Board procedures and adherence to applicable laws and regulations.
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To assist it in carrying out its numerous duties, the Board of Directors has estab-

lished three specialized committees: the Audit Committee, the Corporate

Governance and General Policy Committee, and the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee. These committees have written mandates and operating procedures

that are regularly reviewed and updated. The Board has also established a framework

for the Bank’s overall management, which includes systems for internal control and

risk management, and for appropriate enforcement of ethical standards.

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

In 2006, members of the Audit Committee were re-elected. It is composed of three

non-executive members of the Board of Directors. The Board has approved a special

charter outlining the Committee’s role. Specifically, the Audit Committee must advise

on and recommend a general framework governing internal control systems and pro-

fessional guidelines deemed the most suitable for the overall management of the

Bank. It must also ensure that the quality of financial information provided to the

Board of Directors or for external use is in full compliance with rules and regulations.

The elected Audit Committee is composed of the following members:

Mr Wahbé A. Tamari  (Chairman)

Mr Sabih Taher D. Masri (Deputy Chairman)

H.E. Mr Samir Farhan Kawar

The Audit Committee holds meetings six times a year. The meetings may also be

attended by the Chief Executive Officer, Group Chief Financial Officer, Head of

Internal Audit, and other members of senior management, as and when required,

for discussions and deliberations.

The duties of the Audit Committee consist of:

� Reviewing the reports and financial statements that are presented to the Board of

Directors.

� Monitoring the general framework of risk assessment.

� Reviewing modifications to accounting policies and ensuring compliance with

the latest international accounting standards.

� Supervising internal audit activities.

� Reviewing internal and external audit reports, and making recommendations

regarding the appointment of the external auditors.

� Ensuring the total independence of the external auditors’ duties.

� Maintaining a good line of communication with the external auditors to ensure

that the quarterly, semi-annual and annual audit procedures are correctly followed.
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� Ensuring the availability of a general and comprehensive framework for internal

audit, and improving it as and when necessary.

� Ensuring that there is a general framework for proper professional behaviour.

� Ensuring the establishment of general policies relating to compliance with official

rules and regulations in accordance with the law.

� Reviewing special reports concerning dishonesty, fraud and theft, and taking

action to prevent such activities.

During the year, the Audit Committee meets with the external auditors to review

the following activities:

� Audit planning, which includes:

- Discussing the external audit plan

- Discussing other important and anticipated matters

- Reviewing the nature and impact of any change in accounting policies

- Discussing anticipated audit fees.

� Discussing the quarterly, semi-annual and annual financial reports, which in-

volves:

- Reviewing the results and comments of the external auditors and the adequacy

of the internal and financial control systems, as well as supervising implemen-

tation of suggested recommendations.

- Reviewing the draft financial statements and audit report, and preparing and

presenting the necessary recommendations to the Board of Directors for its

approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND GENERAL POLICY COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors appointed a Corporate Governance and General Policy

Committee in 2002, chaired by the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and com-

prising three non-executive Board Members. This committee oversees corporate

governance and general policies, and must ensure that they are strictly and duly

adhered to. It also aims to ensure that the Bank’s general policies promote effective

implementation of its strategies.

The following are members of the Corporate Governance and General Policy

Committee:

- Mr Abdel Hamid A. M. Shoman (Chairman)

- Mr Sabih Taher D. Masri (Deputy Chairman)

- H.E. Mr Samir Farhan Kawar

- Mr Mohammed Hariri
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In 2006, a Nomination and Remuneration Committee was established. It is respon-

sible for selecting top executives, evaluating their performance and deciding on

their remuneration and promotion. The Committee is composed of the following

members:

- Mr Abdel Hamid A.M. Shoman (Chairman)

- Mr Sabih Taher D. Masri

- H.E. Mr Samir Farhan Kawar

RELATIONSHIP WITH THE SHAREHOLDERS

Arab Bank has about 24,000 institutional and private shareholders who have the

right to vote at the General Assembly, and to participate in the discussions covering

issues on the General Assembly agenda. They are also entitled to add any item to the

agenda of the Ordinary General Assembly meeting, provided it has been approved by

no less than 10% of the votes of those present at that particular meeting. All share-

holders receive the Annual Report, an invitation to the General Assembly meeting,

the agenda, and any other general information which they are entitled to receive.

Shareholders have the right to examine the Shareholders’ Register in accordance with

prevailing policies. Dividends are distributed equitably, each shareholder receiving

the same percentage of dividends relative to the nominal value of his/her shares.

INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The Board of Directors acknowledges and accepts responsibility for the overall

internal control framework. However, it is recognized that no internal control sys-

tem in an internal or external environment can totally eliminate errors or irregular-

ities. For additional support, the Board members have initiated an internal control

framework to help the Board perform its duties and responsibilities. This frame-

work consists of the following:

Annual budgetary control system – This system is developed and approved by sen-

ior management.

Monthly reports – These reports, which include an analysis of actual performance

compared with projected performance, are presented to senior management on a

monthly basis.

Financial reports – The Bank’s senior management presents these reports to the

Board of Directors at each of its regular meetings. It also publishes the quarterly

financial statements and sends the financial and other comprehensive reports on

the Bank’s businesses to the shareholders on an annual basis.



Retail Group understands the needs of
its ever-increasing base of young clients 
and provides them with the best services.
The range of its products includes car 
financing, housing loans and loans for 
the purchase of professional equipment.
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Quality and integrity of personnel – Employees are required to study a detailed

code of conduct manual and confirm their compliance with its requirements.

Formal employee appraisals are conducted annually on the basis of standards out-

lined in the manual.

Operating unit controls – Internal financial controls and procedures, including

information systems controls, are detailed in the operations manual.

Internal controls – Arab Bank recognizes that an internal audit management sys-

tem is essential for assuring an effective internal control system and for overseeing

the general framework for risk management of the various banking activities. The

Audit Committee approves the annual audit plan, monitors its implementation and

reviews audit findings. It is directly responsible for overseeing the activities of the

Internal Audit Division. This division performs and implements its activities

according to the following:

1. Audit charter

The audit charter defines the mission statement and provides the terms of refer-

ence for the operations of the internal audit within the organizational structure

of the Group.

2. General framework and guidelines

The internal audit complies with the Standards for the Professional Practice of

Internal Auditing and the Code of Ethics of the Institute of Internal Auditors and

other relevant guidelines of audit and accountancy bodies within the countries

in which the Bank operates. It lays particular emphasis on the need to exercise

independence, objectivity and professionalism in performing audit activities.

3. Audit methodology 

In line with efforts to adopt best practices in the banking and financial industry,

the internal audit function has concentrated increasingly on the risk-based audit

concept, which facilitates identification of strategic risks facing the Bank as a

whole and its strategic business units in their specific activities. Therefore, highly

precise risk-based audits, directly related to business units and the geographical

locations, are carried out.

The internal audit policies and procedures provide mechanisms for ensuring

quality auditing of each completed task in accordance with established standards.

The audit teams prepare comprehensive working papers and files. A database of

audit findings from the various audit results has been established and can be used

as a source of information by internal auditors to enhance their overall expertise.

4. Audit planning, implementation, reporting and follow-up

The annual audit plan is prepared on the basis of the audit assessment of each

level of activity, taking into account the financial and non-financial indicators, as

well as the experience and acquired knowledge of the internal audit function.

The Audit Committee regularly meets to monitor and assess auditing activities
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and review comments contained in audit reports. The Committee is also the

focal point for the Board of Directors and the internal audit function. It provides

an effective control mechanism for implementing the audit plan and provides

clarification on reports that are regularly submitted to management, including

the results of follow-up actions and any remaining risks that face the Bank.

5. Organizational structure

In line with the Bank’s commitment to implementing corporate governance stan-

dards, the internal audit system was restructured by establishing regional internal

audit centres and implementing the established methodology on risk-based assess-

ment. This approach was further reinforced by restructuring and upgrading the

specialized working units within the internal audit set-up, as outlined below:

- The Treasury Audit Unit focuses on reviewing internal control procedures and

the general audit framework for treasury operations. The unit also reviews the

operating mechanism for the various treasury activities: capital markets, mon-

etary markets and foreign exchange markets.

- The Credit Review Audit Unit scrutinizes credit activities and ensures that cred-

it risk is appropriately managed. It also constructively reviews the adequacy of

provisions made against doubtful debts.

- The Operational Audit Unit is responsible for guaranteeing the reliability of the

Bank’s operations and risk management.

- The Internal Control Audit Unit reviews the mechanism for producing reports

and regular financial statements, and assesses their level of reliability in pro-

viding the necessary information for strategic planning and appropriate deci-

sion-making by management. It also guarantees compliance with International

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) No. 7.

- The Information Systems Audit Unit focuses on the strategic information tech-

nology risks at the Bank as a whole as well as at the various business units. It

enables the Bank to demonstrate that it is capable of protecting the privacy,

authenticity and availability of information, as well as ensuring its reliability.

The unit also helps other audit units to carry out their functions.

Each of the above audit units has specialized know-how of each of the Bank’s busi-

ness and supporting units. This expertise is considered of prime importance in

implementing the audit methodology based on risk assessment.

PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS

The Bank maintains a comprehensive manual on professional codes of conduct.

This manual is distributed to all employees, and they are expected to uphold the

highest levels of professional conduct with the aim of enhancing the Bank’s reputa-

tion and performance in the regions in which it operates.
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REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

Regulatory compliance has always been a core value of the Bank. This corporate 

culture has been formalized by the establishment of a dedicated Regulatory

Compliance Division that is responsible for the compliance framework and its

implementation throughout the Bank, and for promoting a high level of awareness

of compliance requirements. This division relies on independent regulatory compli-

ance officers, appointed in all the countries where the Bank operates. Its mission is

to ensure that the Bank has a robust system for the identification and management

of compliance requirements in all jurisdictions.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr Abdel Hamid A.M. Shoman

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Arab Bank plc

Date of birth: 1947

Experience:

- Member of the Jordan Senate

- Deputy Chairman and CEO, Arab Bank plc 

- Assistant General Manager, Arab Bank plc

- Member of the Board, Central Bank of Jordan

Academic education: Bachelor of Science in Business Administration (1970) 

Mr Sabih Taher D. Masri

Deputy Chairman

Date of birth: 1937

Experience:

- Businessman with diversified experience in investment, finance and management 

- Founder and chairman of several companies 

Academic education: Bachelor of Science in Chemical Engineering (1964)

Ministry of Finance and Economy, Saudi Arabia

Represented by H.E. Mr Saleh Saad  A. Al-Muhanna

Date of birth: 1959

Experience:

- Member of the team negotiating with international oil companies regarding nat-

ural gas initiatives (2000 – 2004)

- Member of the special committee responsible for the sovereign rating of the

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia since 2001

- Member of the Board of the Saudi Moroccan Investment Co. (2000 – 2006)

- Member of the Board of the National Water Desalination Corporation since 2005

Academic education: Bachelor of Science in Industrial Management, Master of Arts

in Economics
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Mrs Nazik Odah Al Hariri

Date of birth: 1948

Experience:

- President of several humanitarian, cultural and educational institutions 

- Member of the Board of the Mediterranean Holdings Group

- Member of the Board of Bank Med

- Member of the Nahda Philanthropic Society for Woman, Saudi Arabia

- Heads the Rafik Hariri Foundation

Academic education: University graduate

Social Security Corporation, Amman, Jordan

Represented by H.E. Mr Ibrahim Youssouf Ibrahim Izziddin

Date of birth: 1934

Experience:

- Held posts in the media and Jordanian Government (including a ministerial post) 

- President of the Higher Media Council of Jordan (2006)

- Director General of the Shoman Foundation (2002)

Academic education: Bachelor of Arts, Political Science (1955)

H.E. Mr Samir Farhan Kawar  

Date of birth: 1934

Experience:

- Chairman, Middle East Insurance Company, Amman

- Member of the Board and founder of several companies 

- Head of Natural Resources Industries and Minerals, Jordan Development Council

- Member of the Jordanian Parliament (1989 – 2001)

- Member of the Jordanian Senate (2001 – 2002)

- Minister of Transportation and Water Irrigation, Jordan  (1990, 1993, 1996 and

1997)

Academic education: Master of Science in Chemical Engineering (1961)

H.E. Mr “Mohammed Thabet” Abdulraouf S. Taher

Date of birth: 1928

Experience:

- Minister of Energy and Mineral Resources (1989-1992)

- Member of the Board, Central Bank of Jordan

- Member of the Board, Jordan Arab Investment Bank

- Chairman of National Petroleum Co.

- General Manager, Jordan Phosphate Co.

- General Manager, Arab Mining Co.

- Deputy chairman, Businessmen’s Association

- Secretary General of the Union of Arab Businessmen

Academic education: Master’s degree in Management (1963)
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Mr Riad Burhan Taher Kamal

Date of birth: 1943

Experience:

- Businessman with diversified experience in engineering and construction 

Academic education: Master of Sciences in Civil Engineering (1965)

Mr Mohammed Hariri

Date of birth: 1958

Experience:

- Manager, Saudi Oger Ltd.

- Chairman and CEO of Méditerranée Investors Group

- Chairman of several finance and investment companies

- Chairman of Oger Telecommunications

Academic education: Bachelor of Science in Business Administration (1979)

Mr Wahbé A. Tamari 

Date of birth: 1963

Experience:

- More than 19 years experience in international trade as well as experience in

investment, finance and business administration

- Founder, chairman and member of the boards of a number of foundations in

Switzerland and Lebanon

- Founder, chairman and member of the boards of a number of companies in

Switzerland and Lebanon

- Chairman of Arabia Insurance Company

- Board Member of Arab Company for Finance (Holding Company)

- Board Member of Arab Investment Bank

- Board Member of Commercial Buildings Company – Lebanon

Academic education: Certificate in Business Administration and Finance

(Switzerland) (1985)

Abdel Hameed Shoman Foundation

Represented by H.E. Dr Tayseer Radwan Saleem Al-Smadi

Date of birth: 1966

Experience:

- Chief Executive Officer, First Strategieh Consulting 

- Member of the Board of Trustees, Jordan Hashemite Fund for Human

Development

- Member of the Consultative Council for Ajloun Governorate

- Minister of State for Public Sector (2005)

- Several leading posts in government, public services and banking

- Previous membership of boards of directors of many private and public institutions

Academic education: Doctor of Philosophy in Economics (1998)
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SENIOR EXECUTIVES

Dr Farouk El-Kharouf

Group Chief Financial Officer and Head of Strategic Investments 

Date of birth: 1947

Experience:

- Director General of Finance Accountancy, Mohassaba SA

- Financial Manager of Arab National Bank

- Professor and Lecturer in several universities 

- Accountant, Central Bank of Jordan

Academic education: Doctor of Philosophy in Accountancy (1982)

Mr Michel Accad

Assistant to the Chief Executive Officer

Date of birth: 1953

Experience:

- Regional Head for the  Middle East and North Africa, Citigroup (2001 – 2006)

- General Manager for Nigeria and West Africa, Citigroup (1996 – 2001)

- Several other posts in Citigroup (1979 – 1996)

Academic education: Master’s degree in Business Administration

Dr Ghaith Mismar

Legal Counsel and Secretary-General of the Board of Directors

Date of birth: 1961

Experience:

- Preliminary Court Judge, Amman

- Military Judge, Jordanian Army

Academic education: Doctor of Philosophy in Law

Mr Ghassan Tarazi

Head of Internal Audit Department

Date of birth: 1964

Experience:

- Audit Manager in major auditing firms, including Arthur Anderson and KPMG

- Head of Internal Audit and Risks, Gulf Investment Institution, Kuwait

Academic education: Master of Business Administration



From education to retirement,
Arab Bank has the right insurance 
policy for you.



65

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BOARD COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS IN 2006

(In JOD)

Name Board Annual Travel Total
remuneration salary expenses and

transportation

Mr Abdel Hamid A.M. Shoman
Chairman and CEO 5 000 268 000 266 620 539 620

Mr Munib R. Masri
Until 30 March 2006 833 - 10 540 11 373

Mr Sabih Taher D. Masri
Deputy Chairman 5 000 - 12 000 17 000

Mr Said Toufic El-Khoury 
Until 30 March 2006 833 - 6 364 7 197

H.E. Mr Mohammed Abdullah Al-Kharashi 
Until 30 March 2006 833 - 7 394 8 227

H.E. Mr Saleh  Saad A. Al-Muhanna 4 167 - 11 999 16 166

Mrs Nazik Odah Al Hariri 5 000 - 12 000 17 000

Dr Khalid W. Al-Wazani 
Until 30 March 2006 833 - 4 000 4 833

H.E. Mr Ibrahim Youssouf Ibrahim Izziddin 4 167 - 8 000 12 167

H.E. Mr Samir Farhan Kawar 5 000 - 12 000 17 000

H.E. Mr “Mohammed Thabet” Abdulraouf S.Taher 5 000 - 12 000 17 000

Mr Riad Burhan Taher Kamal 5 000 - 24 282 29 906

Mr Mohammed Hariri 5 000 - 14 906 19 906

Mr Wahbé A. Tamari 4 167 - 15 596 19 763

H.E. Dr Tayseer Radwan Saleem Al-Smadi 4 167 - 8 000 12 167

SALARIES AND COMPENSATION OF SENIOR EXECUTIVES

Salaries and bonuses of the senior executives were paid in accordance with the

salary scale of the Bank. The compensation of the senior executives is presented in

the notes to the financial statements.

BENEFITS AND OTHER EXPENSES OF SENIOR EXECUTIVES IN 2006

(In JOD)

Name Air fares Accommo- Travel Transport-
dation expenses ation

Dr Farouk El-Kharouf 10 807 11 804 5 796 -

Mr Michel Accad 12 356 3 734 298 -

Dr Ghaith Mismar 3 504 371 870 -

Mr Ghassan Tarazi 23 534 5 415 3 154 -
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NUMBER OF ARAB BANK SHARES OWNED BY MEMBERS OF THE BOARD, THEIR 

RELATIVES AND CONTROLLED COMPANIES AS ON 31 DECEMBER 2006 AND 

31 DECEMBER 2005

Ownership Number of shares
31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Mr Abdel Hamid A.M. Shoman 9 775 800 4 887 900
- Mrs S. Shoman - -

Mr Sabih Taher D. Masri 4 678 080 2 319 040
- Mrs N. Masri - -

Ministry of Finance and Economy, Saudi Arabia
Represented by H.E. Mr Saleh Saad A. Al-Muhanna 16 000 000 8 000 000

Mrs Nazik Odah Al Hariri 40 080 20 040

Social Security Corporation 
Represented by H.E. Mr Ibrahim Youssouf Ibrahim Izziddin 50 905 230 25 398 850

H.E. Mr Samir Farhan Kawar 146 000 70 000

- Mrs R. Kawar

H.E. Mr “Mohammed Thabet” Abdulraouf S. Taher 4 000 2 000

Mr Riad Burhan Taher Kamal 1 000 192 870

Mr Mohammed Hariri 38 800 6 400

Mr Wahbé A. Tamari 1 000 -

Abdel Hameed Shoman Foundation
Represented by H.E. Dr Tayseer Radwan Saleem Al- Smadi 7 187 600 3 588 800

ARAB BANK SHARES OWNED BY EXITING MEMBERS OF THE BOARD AS ON 

31 DECEMBER 2006 AND 2005

Ownership Number of shares
31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Mr Munib R. Masri - 392 800

- Mrs A. Masri - -

Mr Said Toufic El-Khoury - 513 600

NUMBER OF ARAB BANK SHARES OWNED BY SENIOR EXECUTIVES AS ON 

31 DECEMBER 2006 AND 2005 

Ownership Number of shares
31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Dr Farouk El-Kharouf 15 000 7 500

Mr Michel Accad - -

Dr Ghaith Mismar 2 000 600

Mr Ghassan Tarazi - -
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Spouse’s holdings Holdings of controlled companies
31.12.2006 31.12.2005 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

- - - -
16 000 8 000 - -

- - - -
2 115 200 1 576 600 - -

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -

- - Middle East Insurance Co

70 000 30 000 504 600 251 300

- - - -

- - Al Gazal Foundation
682 540 -

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -

Spouse’s holdings Holdings of controlled companies
31.12.2006 31.12.2005 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

- - - -

- 240 000 - -

- - - -

Spouse’s holdings Holdings of controlled companies
31.12.2006 31.12.2005 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -
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NUMBER OF SHARES OWNED BY MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AS ON 31 DECEMBER

2006

Shareholder’s name Nationality Number of shares Percentage ownership

31.12.2006 31.12.2005 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Social Security Jordanian 50 905 230 25 398 850 14.30 14.43

Saudi Oger Ltd Saudi Arabia 31 796 380 15 603 000 8.93 8.87

Shoman family Jordanian 20 075 100 10 282 300 5.64 5.84

Oger Middle East Holding Lebanese 18 013 600 9 006 800 5.06 5.12

Total 120 790 310 60 290 950 33.93 34.26

CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS WITH MEMBERS OF THE BOARD AND

SENIOR EXECUTIVES

All contracts and agreements with members of the Board and senior executives are in

conformity with normal banking practices. There have been no special or exceptional

events to warrant disclosure in accordance with Article (6) of the Disclosure and

Accounting Standards issued by the Security Exchange Commission. Related party

transactions are disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S COMPENSATION 

Total compensation paid to the independent auditor and consultancy agencies in

Jordan and outside Jordan for 2006 was JOD 10,609,341, as detailed in the following

table:

2006 2005

JOD thousand

Fees for annual, semi-annual and quarterly audits and reviews 763 1 182

Fees for consultancies and taxation 9 846 2 688

Total 10 609 3 870
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DONATIONS AND SOCIAL WELFARE ACTIVITIES

Arab Bank endeavours to enhance the welfare of the societies in the countries where it

operates. The concept of social contribution is a major pillar of the Bank’s vision. Arab

Bank has directly contributed, through the Abdul Hameed Shoman Foundation and

other social welfare societies, towards diverse activities in humanitarian, health, educa-

tional, scientific and professional areas. In addition, Arab Bank plays a significant role

in supporting non-governmental groups concerned with environmental protection.

The following table indicates the amount of donations made by Arab Bank in 2006 and

2005:

2006 2005

JOD thousand

Abdul Hameed Shoman Foundation 8 143 6 188

Other welfare societies and associations 5 009 3 156

Total 13 152 9 344

HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT

Arab Bank organised a total of 979 internal training programmes during 2006, involv-

ing 5,079 participants.

The Bank is an equal opportunity employer, the main considerations for employment

and evaluation being qualifications, personal abilities and efficiency in job perform-

ance.
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CLASSIFICATION OF STAFF 2006 2005

Category

Classified 5 550 5 113

Unclassified 806 960

Total 6 356 6 073

Level of education

University degree 3 916 3 579

College diploma 864 877

Vocational qualifications 1 576 1 617

Total 6 356 6 073

Employee turnover

Resignation 708 806

Retirement 20 25

Total 728 831

Percentage of total employee turnover 11.5% 13.7%

TIME SERIES OF MAJOR FINANCIAL INDICATORS OVER THE PAST FIVE

YEARS ARE PRESENTED BELOW 

(In JOD million for Arab Bank plc, and in USD million for Arab Bank Group)

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Arab Bank plc: Income 263.3 200.1 148.3 120.2 130.2

Arab Bank Group: Income 624.6 503.2 326.9 227.7 230.1

Arab Bank plc: Shareholders’ equity 3 093.9 1 859.6 1 640.5 1 433.5 1 286.0

Arab Bank Group: Shareholders’ equity 5 884.6 3 885.0 3 424.3 2 880.5 2 585.4

Dividends distributed by Arab Bank plc 89.0 53.4 35.2 35.2 35.2

Number of issued shares (000) 356 000 176 000 17 600 8 800 8 800

Share price on the last working day 21.4 63.3 237.8 305.0 190.0
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Note 2006 2005

ARAB BANK GROUP (USD 000) (USD 000)

Cash and balances with central banks 5 2 904 777 3 023 357

Balances with banks and financial institutions 6 5 548 274 4 781 670

Deposits with banks and financial institutions 7 1 092 915 489 973

Trading securities 8 2 008 597 1 367 802

Direct credit facilities, net 9 14 165 289 11 725 125

Investment securities - available for sale 10 2 173 423 2 696 446

Investment securities - held to maturity, net 11 2 052 808 1 620 076

Investment in associated companies 12 1 047 390 825 401

Fixed assets, net 13 349 499 272 357

Other assets 14 1 100 546 663 995

Deferred tax, assets 15 21 885 18 202

Total assets 32 465 403 27 484 404
Liabilities on guarantees, letters of credit and other contingencies 38 14 169 056 9 678 141

Total 46 634 459 37 162 545

Bank and financial institution deposits 16 3 466 802 3 187 438

Customer deposits 17 19 650 574 17 668 802

Cash margin 18 2 115 747 1 621 734

Borrowed funds 19 101 229 53 919

Other provisions 20 168 429 143 125

Provision for income tax 21 189 232 154 626

Other liabilities 22 866 714 744 342

Deferred tax, liabilities 23 22 120 25 379

Total liabilities 26 580 847 23 599 365

Capital 24 525 047 271 017

Issuing premium 24 1 313 254 0

Treasury shares 24 ( 48 523) 0

Statutory reserve 266 978 217 155

Voluntary reserve 25 594 806 487 403

General reserve 1 599 483 1 540 652

General banking risk reserve 26 281 607 221 963

Reserves with associated companies 870 870 665 164

Translation adjustments 27 89 742 43 795

Cumulative change in fair value, net 28 101 139 216 049

Retained earnings 29 90 421 86 710

Proposed dividends 139 442 86 405

Total shareholders' equity (Parent Company) 5 824 266 3 836 313
Minority interest 60 290 48 726

Total shareholders' equity 5 884 556 3 885 039
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 32 465 403 27 484 404
Guarantees, letters of credit and other contingencies 38 14 169 056 9 678 141

Total 46 634 459 37 162 545
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Note 2006 2005
ARAB BANK GROUP (USD 000) (USD 000)

Interest income 30 1 906 644 1 274 918

Less: Interest expense 31 1 118 020 675 075

Net interest income 788 624 599 843

Commission income, net 32 181 158 195 501

Net interest and commission income 969 782 795 344

Foreign exchange trading 49 618 48 242

Gain from trading securities 33 2 121 4 796

Gain from available-for-sale securities 34 21 093 56 069

Bank’s share of the associated companies’ profits 295 582 220 093

Other revenue 35 72 781 77 373

Net revenue 1 410 977 1 201 917

Employee expenses 36 259 842 261 538

Other expenses 37 257 993 226 727

Depreciation and amortization 13 44 068 40 045

Provision for impairment - direct credit facilities 9 25 769 21 751

Provision for impairment - held to maturity investments 11 6 429 64

Other provisions 23 821 12 995

Bad debts 3 061 2 264

Total expenses 620 983 565 384

Income before tax 789 994 636 533

Income tax 21 165 434 133 341

Income after tax 624 560 503 192

Attributable to:

- Arab Bank shareholders 616 370 498 497

- Minority interest 8 190 4 695

Income for the year 624 560 503 192

Income for the year 624 560 503 192

Retained earnings brought forward 86 710 46 046

Total 711 270 549 238

Statutory reserve 49 823 39 956

Voluntary reserve 107 403 81 495

General reserve 58 831 25 558

General banking risk reserve 59 644 84 603

Reserves with associated companies 205 706 144 511

Proposed cash dividends 139 442 86 405

Retained earnings carried forward 90 421 86 710

Total appropriation 711 270 549 238

Income per share / USD 49 1.85 2.83

INCOME STATEMENT 
for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005

ARAB BANK GROUP USD thousand

Issuing Treasury Statutory Voluntary General
Capital premium shares reserve reserve reserve

Balance on 1 January 271 017 - - - - - - 217 155 487 403 1 540 652

Deferred tax - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Capital increase 254 030 1 313 254 (48 523) - - - - - - - - -

Impact of the sale of available-for-sale 

securities - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Net income for the year - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Allocated to reserves - - - - - - - - - 49 823 107 403 58 831

Proposed dividends - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Paid dividends - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Translation adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Cumulative change in fair value, net - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Change during the year - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Change in minority interest - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Balance on 31 December 525 047 1 313 254 (48 523) 266 978 594 806 1 599 483

Balance on 1 January 271 017 - - - - - - 177 199 405 908 1 515 094

Deferred tax - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Impact of the sale of available for

sale securities - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Net income for the year - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Allocated to reserves - - - - - - - - - 39 956 81 495 25 558

Proposed dividends - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Paid dividends - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Translation adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Cumulative change in fair value, net - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Foreign currency adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Change in minority interest - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Balance on 31 December 271 017 0 0 217 155 487 403 1 540 652
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USD thousand

General Reserves with Translation Cumulative Retained Proposed Total Minority Total
banking associated adjustments change in earnings dividends shareholders’ interest share-

risk companies fair value, equity (parent holders’
reserve net company) equity

221 963 665 164 43 795 216 049 86 710 86 405 3 836 313 48 726 3 885 039

- - - - - - - - - - - - (4 068) - - - (4 068) - - - (4 068)

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1 518 761 - - - 1 518 761

- - - - - - - - - - - - (3 939) - - - ( 3 939) - - - (3 939)

- - - - - - - - - - - - 624 560 - - - 624 560 - - - 624 560

59 644 205 706 - - - - - - (481 407) - - - - - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - - - - - (139 442) 139 442 - - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (86 405) (86 405) - - - (86 405)

- - - - - - 45 947 - - - - - - - - - 45 947 - - - 45 947

- - - - - - - - - (114 910) - - - - - - (114 910) - - - (114 910)

- - - - - - - - - - - - 8 007 - - - 8 007 - - - 8 007

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 11 564 11 564

281 607 870 870 89 742 101 139 90 421 139 442 5 824 266 60 290 5 884 556

148 538 520 653 144 083 85 621 60 559 59 764 3 388 436 35 845 3 424 281

- - - - - - - - - - - - (2 061) - - - (2 061) - - - (2 061)

- - - - - - - - - - - - (12 452) - - - (12 452) - - - (12 452)

- - - - - - - - - - - - 503 192 - - - 503 192 - - - 503 192

84 603 144 511 - - - - - - (376 123) - - - - - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - - - - - (86 405) 86 405 - - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (59 764) (59 764) - - - (59 764)

- - - - - - (100 288) - - - - - - - - - (100 288) - - - (100 288)

- - - - - - - - - 130 428 - - - - - - 130 428 - - - 130 428

(11 178) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (11 178) - - - (11 178)

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 12 881 12 881

221 963 665 164 43 795 216 049 86 710 86 405 3 836 313 48 726 3 885 039
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Note 2006 2005

ARAB BANK GROUP (USD 000) (USD 000)

Net income before tax 789 994 636 533

Adjustments:

- Depreciation and amortization 44 068 40 045

- Provision for impairment - Direct credit facilities 25 769 21 751

- Bad debts written off 3 061 2 264

- Proceeds from sale of fixed assets (866) (489)

- Other provisions 30 250 13 059

Total 892 276 713 163

(Increase) decrease in assets

Deposits with banks and financial institutions (567 944) 482 083

Direct credit facilities, net (2 468 994) (974 936)

Trading securities (640 795) 81 027

Other assets (440 234) (206 315)

Increase (decrease) in liabilities

Bank and financial institution deposits (maturing after 3 months) 168 566 (10 610)

Customer deposits 1 981 772 (232 069)

Cash margin 494 013 (25 696)

Other liabilities 135 419 (14 690)

Net cash provided from operations before income tax (445 921) (188 043)

Income tax paid (130 828) (100 495)

Net cash provided from operations (576 749) (288 538)

(Purchase) sale of available-for-sale securities 404 854 458 706

(Purchase) sale of held-to-maturity investment securities (439 161) 603 572

(Purchase) sale of investments in associated companies (221 989) (146 482)

(Purchase) of fixed assets (120 344) (53 860)

Net cash provided from (used in) investing activities (376 640) 861 936

Increase (decrease) in borrowed funds 47 310 803

Dividends paid to shareholders (86 405) (59 764)

Capital increase 1 518 761 0

Net cash provided from (used in) financing activities 1 479 666 (58 961)

Translation adjustments 45 947 (100 288)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent 572 224 414 149

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 50 4 572 228 4 158 079

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year 50 5 144 452 4 572 228

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005
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1. GENERAL  

- Arab Bank plc (the parent company) was established in 1930, and is registered in Jordan

as a public shareholding limited company. The head office of the Bank is in Amman, Jor-

dan, and it operates worldwide through its branches, subsidiaries and sister company,

Arab Bank (Switzerland).

- The accompanying financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors at its

meeting no. 1/2007 on 25 January 2007. The financial statements are subject to the ap-

proval of the shareholders’ general assemblies.

2. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION 

- The accompanying financial statements of Arab Bank Group, reported in US dollars, in-

clude the financial statements of Arab Bank plc, its sister company, Arab Bank (Switzer-

land), and the following wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries:

Percentage ownership as on 31 December 2006

%

Arab Bank Australia Ltd., Sydney 100.00

Arab Bank AG, Frankfurt 100.00

Islamic International Arab Bank plc, Amman 100.00

Arab Leasing Company, Amman 100.00

Arab Real Estate Company for Management and Investment 100.00

Europe Arab Bank plc, London 100.00

Arab Investment Bank S.A.L., Beirut (*) 66.65 

Arab Tunisian Bank, Tunis 64.24

AB Capital Ltd. 60.00

Arab Palestinian Investment Bank 55.00

Al Nisr Al Arabi 50.00

(*) Direct ownership

- Subsidiaries are the companies under the effective control of Arab Bank plc. Control 

becomes effective when the Bank has the power to govern the financial and operating

policies of the subsidiary so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

- The consolidated financial statements reflect the financial position and results of op-

erations at the level of the single economic ownership of Arab Bank plc and the sister

company Arab Bank (Switzerland), which is considered an integral part of Arab Bank

Group.
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- The results of the operations of a subsidiary are included in the income statement effec-

tive from the acquisition date, which is the date of the transfer of control over the sub-

sidiary. The results of the operations of a disposed subsidiary are included in the income

statement up to the date of disposition, which is the date of relinquishing control over

the subsidiary.

- Intergroup transactions are eliminated from the consolidated financial statements. Items

in transit are reported under other assets or other liabilities, as the case may be. Minority

interest is reported separately within shareholders’ equity in the consolidated balance

sheet.

- In the separate financial statements of the Bank, investments in subsidiaries are stated at

cost.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the stan-

dards issued by the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the interpretations

issued by the Committee of the IFRS Board, the prevailing rules of the countries where the

Group operates, and the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan.

- The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, except for fi-

nancial assets held for trading, financial assets available for sale and financial derivatives,

which are stated at fair value on the date of the financial statements. Hedged assets and li-

abilities are also stated at fair value.

- The accounting policies for the current year are consistent with those used in previous

years, except for the following changes in accounting policies:

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has issued amendments to the Inter-

national Accounting Standards as well as new Financial Reporting Standards. Applying

these amendments and their interpretations has no significant impact on the financial state-

ments. The following accounting standards were changed:

- The International Accounting Standard IAS 39 on valuation at fair value. The amend-

ment to this standard has changed the definition of the financial instruments that can be

valued at fair value through the income statement, and narrows the possibility of using

such a classification. It also mandates that financial guarantees should be recorded at fair

value. The requirements of this amendment to IAS 39 have been applicable since 1 Janu-

ary 2006.

- International Financial Reporting Standard IFRS 7 concerning disclosures of financial 

instruments. This standard supersedes IAS 30 on disclosures of the financial statements of

banks and similar financial institutions. IFRS 7 also amends some of the disclosure re-

quirements of IAS 32, which defined presentation and disclosures of financial instru-

ments. The amendment now requires only the presentation of the financial instruments.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The requirements of this amendment became applicable as of 1 January 2007.

- Amendments to IAS 1 on presentation of the financial statements and related disclosures

on the goals of a bank, its policies and procedures with regard to managing its capital.

This amendment became applicable as of 1 January 2007.

RECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The sale and purchase of financial assets are recognized on the trade date, which is the date

that the entity commits to purchase or sell the financial assets.

FAIR VALUE

Fair value represents the closing market price of financial assets and derivatives on the date

of the financial statements. Where declared market prices do not exist and active trading of

some financial assets and derivatives is not available, or the market is inactive, fair value is

estimated by one of several methods, such as:

- Using the fair value of another financial asset with similar terms and conditions;

- Taking the present value of expected future cash flows from similar instruments; or

- Adopting option pricing models.

The valuation methods aim to provide a fair value that reflects the expectations of the mar-

ket, and the expected risks and benefits.

Financial assets are stated at cost less any impairment, when the fair value cannot be meas-

ured reliably.

FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING

- Financial assets held for trading are initially recognized at their fair value when pur-

chased, and subsequently reported at the prevailing fair value. The resulting change is re-

ported in the income statement in the period in which it arises, including exchange rate

differences in fair value resulting from the translation of non-monetary assets denomi-

nated in foreign currencies. Changes in fair value resulting from changes in the foreign

exchange rate are recorded in the income statement as profit or loss on foreign exchange.

- Dividends and realized interest are reported in the income statement.

DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES 

- Direct credit facilities are recorded at cost, and are stated in the balance sheet after deduct-

ing provisions, interest and commission in suspense.

- A provision for the impairment of direct credit facilities is recognized when it is apparent

that the financial assets of the Group cannot be recovered, and when there is objective ev-

idence of an event that will negatively affect the future cash flows of the direct credit fa-

cilities and the impairment amount can be estimated. This provision is taken to the in-

come statement.

- Interest and commission on non-performing credit facilities are suspended in accordance

with the instructions of the regulatory authorities in the countries where the Group 

operates.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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- Impaired direct credit facilities, for which specific provision has been taken, are written

off by charging the provision after all efforts have been made to recover the assets; any

surplus in the provisions or recoveries is taken to the income statement, while debt previ-

ously written off recoveries are taken to income.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

- Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recorded at fair value, including acquisition

costs. They are subsequently reported at fair value as of the date of the financial state-

ments; changes in fair value are recorded in a separate account in shareholders’ equity.

When these assets are fully or partially sold, disposed of, or determined to be impaired,

the change in fair value is recorded in the income statement, including related amounts

previously recorded in shareholders’ equity. The loss resulting from the impaired value of

the debt instruments is reversed when it is objectively evident that the increase in their

fair value occurred after the losses had been recognized. Impairment losses resulting from

the decline in the value of equity securities cannot be reversed.

- Income and losses resulting from changes in the rate of foreign exchange of interest-bear-

ing debt instruments are included in the income statement. Differences in foreign cur-

rency of equity instruments are included in the cumulative change in fair value within

shareholders’ equity.

- Interest from available-for-sale financial instruments is recorded in the income statement

using the effective interest rate method. Impairment in assets is recorded in the income

statement when it is incurred.

- Financial instruments for which fair value cannot reliably be determined are shown at

cost. A decline in value is recorded in the income statement.

HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Held-to-maturity investments are recorded at cost (fair value) plus acquisition costs, less

provision for impairment in value. Premiums and discounts are systematically amortized in

the income statement using the “effective interest rate method”.

IMPAIRMENT IN THE VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group reviews the values of the financial assets on the date of the balance sheet in or-

der to determine if there are any indications of impairment in their value, individually or in

the form of a portfolio. In case such indications exist, the recoverable value is estimated so

as to determine the impairment loss.

Impairment is determined as follows:

- Impairment in financial assets recorded at amortized cost is determined on the basis of

the present value of the cash flows discounted at the original interest rate.

- Impairment in the financial assets available-for-sale recorded at fair value represents the

difference between the book value and the fair value.

- Impairment in the financial assets recorded at cost is determined on the basis of the pres-

ent value of the expected cash flows discounted at the market interest rate of similar in-

struments.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Impairment in value is recorded in the income statement. Any surplus in the subsequent pe-

riod, resulting from previous declines in the fair value of financial assets, is taken to the in-

come statement, except for available-for-sale equity securities.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

- Associated companies are those in which the Group has a significant influence over the fi-

nancial and operating policy decisions, and in which the Group holds between 20% and

50% of the voting rights.

- Investments in associated companies are reported in the consolidated financial state-

ments using the “equity method”.

- Investments in associated companies are stated at cost when preparing separate financial

statements for the Bank.

REALIZATION OF INCOME AND RECOGNITION OF EXPENSES

- Realization of income and recognition of expenses are recorded on an accrual basis, ex-

cept for interest and commission on non-performing direct credit facilities, which are not

recognized as revenue but recorded as interest and commission in a suspense account un-

til they are received in cash.

- Commission is recorded as revenue when the related services are provided.

- Dividends are recorded when realized.

FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES

Financial derivatives (e.g. currency forward contracts, forward rate agreements, swaps and

option contracts) are recorded in the balance sheet under other assets or other liabilities, as

the case may be.

FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

For hedge accounting purposes, financial derivatives are stated at fair value.

Hedges are classified as follows:

- Fair value hedge: hedge for exposure changes the fair value of the Group’s assets and lia-

bilities. When the conditions for an effective fair value hedge are met, the resulting gain or

loss from re-measuring the fair value hedging is recognized in the income statement.

When the conditions for an effective portfolio hedge are met, the gain or loss resulting

from the revaluation of the hedging instrument at fair value, as well as the change in the

fair value of the hedged assets or liabilities portfolio, is recorded in the income statement

for the same period.

- Cash flow hedge: hedge for exposure changes the current and expected cash flows of the

Group’s assets and liabilities. When the conditions for an effective cash flow hedge are

met, the gain or loss of the hedging instruments is recognized in shareholders’ equity, and

such gain or loss is transferred to the income statement in the period in which the hedge

transaction impacts the income statement.

- Hedge for net investment in foreign entities: When the conditions of the hedge for net in-

vestment in foreign entities are met, fair value is measured for the hedging instrument of
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the hedged net assets. In the case of an effective relationship, the effective portion of the

loss or profit related to the hedging instrument is recognized in shareholders’ equity,

while the ineffective portion is recognized in the income statement. The effective portion

is recorded in the income statement when the investment in foreign entities is sold.

- When the conditions for an effective hedge do not apply, gain or loss resulting from the

change in fair value of the hedging instrument is recorded in the income statement of the

same period.

FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES FOR TRADING

The fair value of financial derivatives for trading, such as forward foreign currency con-

tracts, future interest rate contracts, swap agreements and foreign currency options, is

recorded in the balance sheet under other assets or other liabilities, as the case may be. The

change in their fair value is recognized in the income statement.

REPURCHASE AND RESALE AGREEMENTS

- Assets sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a future date continue to

be recognized in the financial statements due to the continued control of those assets; the

related risks and benefits are transferred to the Group when incurred. They also continue

to be measured in accordance with the adopted accounting policies. Amounts received

against these contracts are recorded within liabilities under borrowed funds. The differ-

ence between the sale price and the repurchase price is recognized as an interest expense,

and is amortized over the contract period using the effective interest rate method.

- Purchased assets with corresponding commitment to sell at a specific future date are not

recognized in the financial statements because the Group has no control over such assets,

and the related risks and benefits are not transferred to the Group when incurred. Pay-

ments related to these contracts are recorded under deposits with banks or under credit

facilities, depending on the nature of each case. The difference between the purchase price

and resale price is recorded as interest revenue, and is amortized over the period of the

contract using the effective interest rate method.

FORECLOSED ASSETS

Assets that have been the subject of foreclosure by the Group are shown under “other assets”,

at the acquisition value or fair value, whichever is lower. As of the balance sheet date, these

assets are revalued individually at fair value. Any decline in their market value is taken to the

income statement, whereas an increase is not recognized to the extent it does not exceed the

previously recorded impairment.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

- Goodwill represents the excess of an amount paid to acquire or purchase an investment

in an associate or subsidiary on the date of the transaction over the fair value of the net

investment in that company. Goodwill resulting from investment in an affiliated company

constitutes part of the investment in that company, and is recorded at cost. The cost of

goodwill is reduced subsequently by any decline in the value of the investment.

- Goodwill is distributed over the cash-generating unit(s) for the purpose of testing the im-

pairment of the value.
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- The value of goodwill is tested on the date of each financial statement. The goodwill value

is reduced when there is evidence that its value has declined, or that the recoverable value

of the cash-generating unit(s) is lower than the book value. The decline in value is

recorded in the income statement as impairment loss.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

- Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are recorded at the exchange rates pre-

vailing at the date of the transaction.

- Financial assets and financial liabilities are translated at the average rates prevailing on the

balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

and recorded at fair value are translated on the date when the fair value was determined.

- Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency translation are recorded in the income

statement.

- Differences resulting from the translation of non-monetary assets and liabilities denomi-

nated in foreign currency, such as securities, are recorded as part of the change in the fair

value.

FIXED ASSETS

- Fixed assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Fixed assets (except for

land) are depreciated according to the straight-line method over their estimated useful

lives, and in accordance with the prevailing rules and regulations in the countries where

the Group operates. When the carrying amounts of any of the fixed assets exceed the re-

coverable values, the value of the assets is reduced accordingly.

- The useful lives of the fixed assets are reviewed at the end of each year. Where the expected

useful life is different from what was previously determined, the change in estimate will

be recorded as such in the subsequent year.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognized when the Group has an obligation on the date of the balance sheet

as a result of past events, and if the obligation is likely to be settled, and if a reliable estimate

can be made of the amount of the obligation.

PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES’ END-OF-SERVICE INDEMNITIES

Provision for employees’ end-of-service indemnities is estimated in accordance with the

prevailing rules and regulations in the countries in which the Group operates. Required pro-

vision for the year for the end-of-service indemnities is recorded in the income statement.

Payments to departing employees are taken to the income statement or deducted from the

provision amount.

INCOME TAX

- Income tax expenses represent accrued taxes.

- The tax expenses are accounted for on the basis of taxable income. Income subject to tax

differs from income declared in the financial statements, because the latter includes non-

taxable revenue, tax expenses not deductible in the current year but deductible in subse-
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quent years, accumulated losses accepted by the tax authorities, and items not accepted

for tax purposes or subject to tax.

- Taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates applicable according to the prevailing

laws, regulations and instructions of the countries where the Group operates.

- Deferred taxes are taxes expected to be paid or recovered as a result of temporary timing

differences between the value of the assets and liabilities in the financial statements and

the value of the taxable amount.

- Deferred tax is calculated on the basis of the liability method in the balance sheet, and ac-

cording to the rates expected to be applied when it is anticipated that the liability will be

settled or when tax assets are recognized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as of the date of

the balance sheet, and reduced if it is expected that no benefit will arise from this deferred

tax, partially or totally.

TREASURY SHARES

- Treasury shares appear as a separate item in the shareholders’ equity, and are deducted

from total shareholders’ equity.

- Gain or loss from the sale of treasury shares is not recognized in the income statement.

OFFSETTING

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reflected in the bal-

ance sheet only when there is a legal right to set off the recognized amounts, and the Group

intends to either settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simulta-

neously.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances with central banks and balances with

banks and financial institutions that are maturing within three months, less restricted funds

and balances due to banks and financial institutions that are maturing within three months.

4. USING ESTIMATES 

Preparation of the accompanying financial statements requires estimations and judgments

in applying accounting policies relating to some of the items listed in those statements. Ex-

amples of such items include an estimation of the provision for impairment of non-per-

forming direct credit facilities, the intention of management to hold the financial invest-

ment until maturity, and an estimation of the productive life of assets and the impairment

of their value. Management also uses estimation and judgment for some uncertain matters

on the date of the balance sheet that may cause significant risks, and that may require mate-

rial adjustments to the balances of the assets and liabilities stated in the financial statements

of the following year. This includes estimations of the various provisions and contingent 

liabilities.
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2006 2005

5. CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS (USD 000) (USD 000)

Cash 229 700 297 130

Balances with central banks:

- Current accounts 280 531 307 092

- Time and notice 464 044 516 564

- Mandatory cash reserve 860 022 866 517

- Certificates of deposit 1 070 480 1 036 054

Total 2 904 777 3 023 357

2006 2005

6. BALANCES WITH BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (USD 000) (USD 000)

Current accounts 1 234 475 727 822

Time deposits maturing within 3 months 4 304 253 2 634 101

Certificates of deposit 9 546 1 419 747

Total 5 548 274 4 781 670

2006 2005

7. DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (USD 000) (USD 000)

Time deposits maturing after 3 months and before 6 months 798 367 264 855

Time deposits maturing after 6 months and before 9 months 245 515 127 104

Time deposits maturing after 9 months and before 12 months 43 816 87 450

Time deposits maturing after one year 5 217 10 564

Total 1 092 915 489 973

2006 2005

8. TRADING SECURITIES (USD 000) (USD 000)

Treasury bills and bonds 1 342 828 432 685

Corporate bonds 618 920 921 631

Shares 46 849 13 486

Total 2 008 597 1 367 802
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(USD 000)

COMPOSITION OF DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES BY INDUSTRY 2006 2005

Jordan Other Arab Europe Asia (*) America Total Total
countries

(excl. Jordan)

Government and public sector 100 551 439 061 46 434 15 528 - - - 601 574 954 464

Agriculture 67 416 60 850 1 510 4 736 - - - 134 512 84 452

Industry and mining 541 334 2 109 436 41 303 24 203 - - - 2 716 276 1 844 407

Construction 170 635 1 296 510 51 296 149 222 - - - 1 667 663 1 217 132

Real estate 210 406 680 805 131 589 203 419 - - - 1 226 219 754 515

Trade 514 608 1 542 965 642 918 15 942 - - - 2 716 433 2 048 386

Transportation (including 

airline companies) 38 166 217 448 11 255 142 415 - - - 409 284 487 295

Tourism and hotels 102 998 192 701 67 733 20 279 - - - 383 711 302 957

General services 366 475 743 710 51 234 83 565 - - - 1 244 984 962 944

Financial 28 754 624 225 331 685 37 686 - - - 1 022 350 866 676

Cars 86 547 178 964 5 760 - - - - - - 271 271 170 200

Consumer goods 336 815 413 446 15 232 82 646 - - - 848 139 536 649

Other 478 038 564 192 342 599 151 584 6 1 536 419 2 145 234

Total 3 042 743 9 064 313 1 740 548 931 225 6 14 778 835 12 375 311

(*) Excluding Arab countries

- Direct credit facilities granted to governments and guaranteed by governments as at 31 December 2006 amounted

to USD 601.6 million, or 4.1% of total direct credit facilities, compared to USD 954.5 million, or 7.8% of total di-

rect credit facilities at the end of 2005.
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2006 2005

9. DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES, NET (USD 000) (USD 000)

Discounted bills (*) 800 380 644 738

Overdrafts 3 231 780 3 061 138

Loans (**) 10 675 423 8 602 732

Capital lease 32 275 40 485

Credit cards 38 977 26 218

Total 14 778 835 12 375 311
Less:

Interest and commission in suspense 176 436 199 270

Provision for impairment – direct credit facilities 437 110 450 916

Total 613 546 650 186
Direct credit facilities, net 14 165 289 11 725 125

(*) Net, after deducting the interest and commission received in advance, which amounted to USD 16.9 million in 2006, com-
pared to USD 18.0 million in 2005.

(**) Net, after deducting the interest and commission received in advance, which amounted to USD 7.9 million in 2006, compared
to USD 9.7 million in 2005.
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- Non-performing direct credit facilities as at 31 December 2006 amounted to USD 637.0 million, or 4.3% of total

direct credit facilities, compared to USD 604.2 million, or 4.9% of total direct credit facilities at the end of 2005.

- Non-performing direct credit facilities, after deducting interest and commission in suspense, as at 31 December

2006, amounted to USD 460.6 million, or 3.2% of total direct credit facilities, compared to USD 404.9 million, or

3.3% of total direct credit facilities at the end of 2005.

- Direct credit facilities collateralized by mortgage amounted to USD 2,594.6 million as at 31 December 2006, com-

pared to USD 1,783.2 million at the end of 2005.

Movements of interest in suspense during the year were as follows:

2006 2005

(USD 000) (USD 000)

Balance at the beginning of the year 199 270 191 071

Interest in suspense during the year 29 868 30 612

Interest in suspense written off (42 588) (14 132)

Recoveries (13 046) (3 585)

Translation adjustments 2 932 (4 696)

Balance at the end of the year 176 436 199 270

Movements in the provision for impairment of the direct credit facilities were as follows:

2006 2005

(USD 000) (USD 000)

Balance at the beginning of the year 450 916 485 941

Addition: Charged to income 82 764 56 379

Direct credit facilities written off (54 001) (36 995)

Recoveries (56 995) (34 628)

Translation adjustments 14 426 (19 781)

Balance at the end of the year 437 110 450 916

Distribution of credit facilities by sector:

2006 2005

(USD 000) (USD 000)

Public sector 601 574 954 464

Private sector:

- Corporate 13 024 840 10 040 728

- Retail 1 152 421 1 380 119

Total 14 778 835 12 375 311
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2006 2005

10. INVESTMENT SECURITIES – AVAILABLE FOR SALE (USD 000) (USD 000)

Treasury bills and bonds 286 320 376 284

Government bonds 286 764 701 772

Corporate bonds 1 339 196 1 246 179

Shares 261 143 372 211

Total 2 173 423 2 696 446

Analysis of bonds according to interest:

Fixed interest bonds 959 676 1 317 145

Variable interest bonds 952 604 1 007 090

Total 1 912 280 2 324 235

Financial assets according to the market quotation:

Financial assets quoted in the market 1 886 310 2 095 012

Financial assets not quoted in the market 287 113 601 434

Total 2 173 423 2 696 446

2006 2005

11. INVESTMENT SECURITIES – HELD TO MATURITY, NET (USD 000) (USD 000)

Treasury bills and bonds 1 428 526 974 999

Government bonds 301 792 279 628

Corporate bonds 326 848 369 623

Provision for the impairment of investments (4 358) (4 174)

Total 2 052 808 1 620 076

Movements in the provision for impairment of the held-to-maturity investments were as follows:

2006 2005

(USD 000) (USD 000)

Balance at the beginning of the year 4 174 6 401

Addition: charged to income 6 429 64

Written off (6 168) - - -

Recoveries - - - (703)

Translation adjustments (77) (1 588)

Balance at the end of the year 4 358 4 174
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2006 2005

(USD 000) (USD 000)

Analysis of bonds  according to  interest:

Fixed interest bonds 1 638 201 1 112 412

Variable interest bonds 414 607 507 664

Total 2 052 808 1 620 076

Financial assets according to the market quotation:

Financial assets quoted in the market 1 025 131 407 616

Financial assets not quoted in the market 1 027 677 1 212 460

Total 2 052 808 1 620 076

12. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 

2006 2005

Ownership Historical Ownership Historical Country Activity

cost cost

% (USD 000) % (USD 000)

Oman Arab Bank S.A.O. 49.00 81 940 49.00 68 701 Oman Banking

Arab Bank Syria 49.00 14 694 49.00 14 694 Syria Banking

Arab National Bank 40.00 898 875 40.00 667 880 Saudi Arabia Banking

Arabia Insurance Co. 36.79 36 996 36.79 31 140 Lebanon Insurance

Commercial Building Co. 32.77 282 32.77 282 Lebanon Real estate

Other 14 603 42 704

Total 1 047 390 825 401

The movements of the investment in associated companies were as follows:

2006 2005

(USD 000) (USD 000)

Balance at the beginning of the year 825 401 678 919

Bank’s share of income (loss) of the year 260 046 207 674

Bank’s share of income tax (54 340) (41 584)

Dividends received (30 678) (29 924)

Change in owner equity 46 961 10 316

Balance at the end of the year 1 047 390 825 401
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2006

13. FIXED ASSETS, NET (USD 000) 

Land Buildings Furniture, Computer Motor Leasehold Total

fixtures and and com- vehicles improve-

equipment munication ments

equipment

Historical cost

Balance at the beginning of the year 39 810 200 790 127 602 60 883 11 587 39 180 479 852

Additions 4 681 77 166 20 080 6 418 4 137 13 372 125 854

Disposals (2 757) (4 661) (20 111) (14 977) (1 687) (15 010) (59 203)

Translation adjustments 547 4 320 2 647 357 191 307 8 369

Balance at the end of the year 42 281 277 615 130 218 52 681 14 228 37 849 554 872

Accumulated depreciation:

Balance at the beginning of the year - - - 44 914 85 096 47 157 8 023 22 305 207 495

Depreciation for the year - - - 8 169 18 117 5 561 1 367 10 854 44 068

Disposals - - - (3 687) (19 678) (11 566) ( 905) (9 235) (45 071)

Translation adjustments - - - 170 (1 004) ( 261) 27 ( 51) (1 119)

Balance at the end of the year - - - 49 566 82 531 40 891 8 512 23 873 205 373

Net book value 42 281 228 049 47 687 11 790 5 716 13 976 349 499

2005

(USD 000) 

Historical cost

Balance at the beginning of the year 40 504 190 778 124 477 63 659 11 112 32 096 462 626

Additions 1 054 19 211 17 440 5 824 1 706 16 654 61 889

Disposals (844) (1 029) (9 806) (6 276) (823) (8 247) (27 025)

Translation adjustments (904) (8 170) (4 509) (2 324) (408) (1 323) (17 638)

Balance at the end of the year 39 810 200 790 127 602 60 883 11 587 39 180 479 852

Accumulated depreciation - - - 47 422 88 227 48 953 8 312 22 915 215 829

Translation adjustments - - - (2 508) (3 131) (1 796) (289) (610) (8 334)

Total - - - 44 914 85 096 47 157 8 023 22 305 207 495

Net book value 39 810 155 876 42 506 13 726 3 564 16 875 272 357
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2006 2005

14. OTHER ASSETS (USD 000) (USD 000)

Accrued interest receivable 406 758 236 760

Expenses paid in advance 42 288 40 829

Foreclosed assets 38 508 38 303

Unrealized gains – financial derivatives 14 786 12 574

Items in transit 194 634 41 544

Miscellaneous assets 403 572 293 985

Total 1 100 546 663 995

Movements of foreclosed assets during 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

2006 2005

(USD 000) (USD 000)

Land Buildings Total Land Buildings Total

Balance at the beginning of the year 16 801 21 502 38 303 15 559 16 666 32 225

Additions 369 3 125 3 494 2 644 6 289 8 933

Disposals (767) (2 498) (3 265) (1 337) (1 426) (2 763)

Translation adjustments (20) (4) (24) (65) (27) (92)

Balance at the end of the year 16 383 22 125 38 508 16 801 21 502 38 303

2006 2005

15. DEFERRED TAX, ASSETS (USD 000) (USD 000)

Balance at Added/ Balance at Deferred Deferred

the beginning released the end of tax tax

of the year amounts the year

Provision for impairment – direct credit facilities 38 200 11 870 50 070 10 154 11 310

End-of-service indemnity 16 181 12 605 28 786 9 154 5 664

Interest in suspense 102 1 242 1 344 499 35

Provisions and other 3 409 3 243 6 652 2 078 1 193

Total 57 892 28 960 86 852 21 885 18 202
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Movements of the deferred tax assets during the year were as follows:

2006 2005

(USD 000) (USD 000)

Balance at the beginning of the year 18 202 18 124

Addition during the year 9 918 5 952

Deduction during the year (6 235) (5 874)

Balance at the end of the year 21 885 18 202

- Deferred tax is resulting from the time differences of provisions which were not deducted for tax purposes in pre-

vious years. This was calculated according to the regulations where the Group operates. The Group will benefit

from these amounts in the future.

2006 2005

16. BANK AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTION DEPOSITS (USD 000) (USD 000)

Current and demand 859 100 606 123

Time deposits maturing within 3 months 2 309 498 2 451 677

Time deposits maturing after 3 months and before 6 months 234 608 113 006

Time deposits maturing after 6 months and before 9 months 47 119 705

Time deposits maturing after 9 months and before one year 13 001 531

Time deposits maturing after one year 3 476 15 396

Total 3 466 802 3 187 438

2006 2005

17. CUSTOMER DEPOSITS (USD 000) (USD 000)

Current and demand 4 971 016 4 566 854

Savings 1 346 590 1 346 449

Time and notice 13 057 419 11 513 364

Certificates of deposit 275 549 242 135

Total 19 650 574 17 668 802

- Public sector deposits amounted to USD 1,284.1 million, or 6.5% of total customer deposits at the end of 2006,

compared to USD 1,138.5 million, or 6.4% of total customer deposits at the end of 2005.

- Non-bearing interest deposits amounted to USD 2,228.6 million, or 11.3% of total customer deposits at the end

of 2006, compared to USD 2,352.3 million, or 13.3% of total customer deposits at the end of 2005.

- Blocked deposits amounted to USD 3.0 million, or 0% of total customer deposits at the end of 2006, compared to

USD 95.5 million, or 0.5% of total customer deposits at the end of 2005.

- Dormant deposits amounted to USD 75.5 million, or 0.4% of total customer deposits at the end of 2006, compared

to USD 234.2 million, or 1.3% of total customer deposits at the end of 2005.
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2006 2005

18. CASH MARGIN (USD 000) (USD 000)

Against direct credit facilities 1 238 483 1 030 726

Against indirect credit facilities 786 369 525 591

Cash margin, financial derivatives 23 144 7 569

Cash margin, other 67 751 57 848

Total 2 115 747 1 621 734

2006 2005

19. BORROWED FUNDS (USD 000) (USD 000)

From central banks - - - 709

From banks abroad 101 229 53 210

Total 101 229 53 919

2006

20. OTHER PROVISIONS (USD 000)

Balance at Addition Utilized Returned Translation Balance at
the beginning during during to income adjustments the end of

of the year the year the year the year

End-of-service indemnity 101 719 23 243 (2 059) (409) 1 133 123 627

Self-insurance 1 696 - - - 18 1 714

Other 39 710 4 533 (3 665) (527) 3 037 43 088

Total 143 125 27 776 (5 724) (936) 4 188 168 429

2005

(USD 000)

End-of-service indemnity 97 769 16 139 (9 784) (255) (2 150) 101 719

Self-insurance 1 869 - (147) - (26) 1 696

Other 17 483 2 590 24 572 (625) (4 310) 39 710

Total 117 121 18 729 14 641 (880) (6 486) 143 125
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2006 2005 

21. PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (USD 000) (USD 000)

Balance at the beginning of the year 154 626 121 780

Income tax paid 165 434 (100 495)

Income tax due (130 828) 133 341

Balance at the end of the year 189 232 154 626

Provision for income tax in the income statement comprises the following:

2006 2005 

(USD 000) (USD 000)

Income tax provision for the year 164 791 132 316

Income tax for previous years 643 1 025

Total 165 434 133 341

2006 2005

22. OTHER LIABILITIES (USD 000) (USD 000)

Accrued interest payable 262 099 100 864

Remittances in transit 88 996 138 994

Interest and commission received in advance 77 169 44 381

Due expenses 52 624 40 861

Unrealized losses – financial derivatives 63 806 16 471

Miscellaneous liabilities 322 020 402 771

Total 866 714 744 342

2006 2005

23. DEFERRED TAX, LIABILITIES USD (000) USD (000)

Balance at Added/ Balance at Deferred Deferred

the beginning released the end of tax tax

of the year amount the year

Cumulative change in fair value 96 854 (35 358) 61 496 22 120 25 379
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24. CAPITAL

The subscribed and paid-up capital amounted to USD 525.0 million at the end of 2006,

compared to USD 271.0 million at the end of 2005.

The extraordinary meeting of the General Assembly of the Shareholders which was held

on 26 November 2005 approved the following:

A. Increasing the share capital of the Bank by issuing 180 million new shares, of which

176 million shares to be subscribed only by the existing shareholders who can subscribe

in the new shares equal in number to those they owned prior to the issuance of the new

shares. The price of the new share is JOD 6, which represents JOD 1 nominal value and

JOD 5 issuance allowance. Should the new shares not be fully subscribed, the Bank will

buy the remaining unsubscribed shares at the same price of JOD 6 each as treasury

shares.

B. The Bank will buy 4 million shares as treasury shares at the same price of JOD 6 per

share.

All legal procedures have been completed in accordance with the company law, and the

new shares were offered for the above-mentioned private subscription. Thus the sub-

scribed share capital became USD 525.0 million. An issuance allowance of USD 1,313.3

million was collected. Unsubscribed shares amounted to USD 48.5 million and were con-

sidered treasury shares to be deducted from the total shareholders’ equity. Treasury shares

give no voting power and no dividend rights.

25. VOLUNTARY RESERVE

The voluntary reserve amounted to USD 594.8 million at the end of 2006, compared to

USD 487.4 million at the end of 2005.

26. GENERAL BANKING RISK RESERVE

This reserve is available for disposal in accordance with certain procedures, including the

approval of the banking authorities or the approval of the General Assembly, only when

the amount of that reserve exceeds the minimum amount set or required by the instruc-

tions of the relevant banking authorities.
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27. TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS

Translation adjustments represent the differences resulting from translating the foreign

currencies, that constitute the net investment in foreign subsidiaries and branches, when

consolidating the financial statements of the Group.

2006 2005

(USD 000) (USD 000)

Balance at the beginning of the year 43 795 144 083

Addition (deduction) during the year 45 947 (100 288)

Balance at the end of the year 89 742 43 795

2006 2005

28. CUMULATIVE CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE, NET (USD 000) (USD 000)

Shares Bonds Cash flow Total Total

hedge

Balance at the beginning of the year 185 970 30 472 (393) 216 049 85 621

Change in fair value during the year (72 677) (47 109) 393 (119 393) 163 849

Gain (loss) realized, reported to income statement 5 180 2 635 - 7 815 (33 197)

Decline, losses reported to income statement (3 219) (608) - (3 827) -

Translation adjustments 333 162 - 495 (224)

Balance at the end of the year 115 587 (14 448) 0 101 139 216 049

2006 2005

29. RETAINED EARNINGS (USD 000) (USD 000)

Balance at the beginning of the year 86 710 60 559

Income for the year 624 560 503 192

Change during the year 8 007 -

Total 719 277 563 751

Deduction:

Transferred to reserves 481 407 376 123

Proposed dividends 139 442 86 405

Impact of the sale of available-for-sale securities 3 939 12 452

Deferred tax benefit 4 068 2 061

Balance at the end of the year 90 421 86 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



97

2006 2005

30. INTEREST INCOME (USD 000) (USD 000)

Direct credit facilities:

- Discounted bills 54 994 45 595

- Overdrafts 247 329 232 839

- Loans 621 769 424 988

- Capital lease 118 192

- Credit cards 5 138 3 119

Central banks 93 471 76 093

Banks and financial institutions 393 607 235 591

Trading securities 321 008 134 374

Available-for-sale securities 86 802 71 496

Held-to-maturity securities 82 408 50 631

Total 1 906 644 1 274 918

2006 2005

31. INTEREST EXPENSE (USD 000) (USD 000)

Banks and financial institutions 460 145 184 759

Customer deposits:

- Current and demand 22 333 13 543

- Savings 33 155 27 431

- Time and notice 506 845 382 633

- Certificates of deposit 12 958 15 539

Cash margin 72 278 41 210

Borrowed funds 3 335 3 508

Deposit insurance fees 6 971 6 452

Total 1 118 020 675 075

2006 2005

32. COMMISSION INCOME, NET (USD 000) (USD 000)

Commission income:

- From direct credit facilities 62 158 52 870

- From indirect credit facilities 83 380 98 186

- Other 46 598 53 973

Less: Commission expense 10 978 9 528

Commission, net 181 158 195 501
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2006 2005

33. GAIN FROM TRADING SECURITIES (USD 000) (USD 000)

Treasury bills and bonds 1 843 1 623

Shares 278 3 173

Total 2 121 4 796

2006 2005

34. GAIN  FROM AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES (USD 000) (USD 000)

Gain from available-for-sale securities 12 905 50 216

Dividends 13 161 9 639

Less: decline in the value of the securities 4 973 3 786

Total 21 093 56 069

2006 2005

35. OTHER REVENUE (USD 000) (USD 000)

Revenue from services 18 553 11 689

Safe box rent 4 581 1 971

Gain from derivatives 2 266 110

Miscellaneous revenue 47 381 63 603

Total 72 781 77 373

2006 2005

36. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES (USD 000) (USD 000)

Salaries 181 977 181 261

Social security 15 021 17 427

Saving fund 4 337 4 382

Indemnity compensation 12 360 16 299

Medical 5 876 6 021

Training 2 074 2 897

Allowances (housing and transportation) 26 912 19 448

Other employee expenses 11 285 13 803

Total 259 842 261 538
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2006 2005

37. OTHER EXPENSES (USD 000) (USD 000)

Occupancy 50 873 43 623

Office 61 984 54 905

Services 63 737 47 191

Fees 8 453 32 187

Information technology 27 865 27 854

Other expenses 45 081 20 967

Total 257 993 226 727

2006 2005

38. LIABILITY AND CONTINGENT ACCOUNTS (USD 000) (USD 000)

Letters of credit 1 945 905 1 538 498

Payment guarantees 1 040 507 786 284

Other guarantees 6 404 817 4 787 246

Acceptances 615 727 506 461

Unused credit facilities 4 162 100 2 059 652

Total 14 169 056 9 678 141

2006 2005

39. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES (USD 000) (USD 000)

Forward rate agreements 1 619 495 27 019

Interest rate swaps 10 137 843 5 769 399

Currency forward contracts 4 998 381 3 320 135

Total 16 755 719 9 116 553
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DETAILS OF FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES ARE AS FOLLOWS:

2006

(USD 000)

Notional amounts by maturity 

As on 31 December Positive Negative Total Within From  From More

fair fair notional 3 3 to 12 1 year to than

value value amount months months 3 years 3 years

Derivatives held for trading 10 153 57 154 14 285 508 7 936 694 5 918 033 97 549 333 232

Derivatives held for fair value hedge 4 393 6 652 1 438 001 625 473 660 507 80 331 71 690

Derivatives held for cash flow hedge 240 - - - 1 032 210 607 820 197 176 24 095 203 119

Total 14 786 63 806 16 755 719 9 169 987 6 775 716 201 975 608 041

2005

(USD 000) 

Derivatives held for trading 8 311 9 535 3 865 184 3 199 432 478 774 32 898 154 080

Derivatives held for fair value hedge 3 696 5 819 4 492 800 2 280 422 1 752 307 354 070 106 001

Derivatives held for cash flow hedge 567 1 117 758 569 560 391 182 001 16 177 -

Total 12 574 16 471 9 116 553 6 040 245 2 413 082 403 145 260 081

40. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CONCENTRATION

The following is the geographical distribution of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items:

2006

(USD 000)

Assets Liabilities and Off-balance sheet

shareholders' equity

Jordan 6 457 833 7 849 111 849 515

Other Arab countries (excl. Jordan) 16 770 994 16 400 411 7 555 956

Asia (*) 1 312 942 1 109 720 1 438 609

Europe 7 447 688 6 838 094 3 581 551

America 475 049 261 475 719 524

Rest of the world 897 6 592 23 901

Total 32 465 403 32 465 403 14 169 056
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2005

(USD 000)

Assets Liabilities and Off-balance sheet

shareholders' equity

Jordan 4 952 129 7 480 771 820 673

Other Arab countries (excl. Jordan) 12 910 545 13 047 243 5 542 762

Asia (*) 1 073 901 753 881 833 106

Europe 8 037 056 6 175 558 1 996 926

America 510 773 26 951 483 086

Rest of the world - - - - - - 1 588

Total 27 484 404 27 484 404 9 678 141

(*) Excluding Arab countries

41. BUSINESS LINES

Business lines are segmented as follows:

2006

(USD 000)

Corporate Treasury Private Retail Other Total

banking banking banking

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks 
and financial institutions - - - 9 316 266 - - - 229 700 - - - 9 545 966

Financial investments 1 120 851 4 805 985 - - - - - - 1 355 382 7 282 218

Direct credit facilities, net 12 341 415 - - - 404 680 1 419 194 - - - 14 165 289

LIABILITIES

Bank and financial institution deposits - - - 3 568 031 - - - - - - - - - 3 568 031

Customer deposits 7 637 080 - - - 3 654 277 8 359 217 - - - 19 650 574

Cash margin 1 860 671 - - - 96 719 158 357 - - - 2 115 747

INCOME STATEMENT

Net interest income 291 264 37 096 54 786 300 662 104 816 788 624

Commission income, net 117 695 (357) 13 472 49 231 1 117 181 158

Other revenue 24 793 103 764 2 569 14 487 295 582 441 195

Net revenue 433 752 140 503 70 827 364 380 401 515 1 410 977
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42. INTEREST RATE RISK

A) EXPOSURE TO INTEREST RATE VOLATILITY

(Classification is based on interest rate repricing or maturity dates, whichever occures first.)

Within After 3 months

3 months and before

6 months

ASSETS

Cash - - - - - -

Mandatory cash reserve with central banks - - - - - -

Balances with central banks 1 394 523 95 001

Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 4 313 905 798 367

Trading securities 1 387 100 435 030

Direct credit facilities, net 8 094 234 2 085 288

Investment securities – available for sale 1 125 840 168 601

Investment securities – held to maturity, net 646 997 132 143

Investment in associated companies - - - - - -

Fixed assets, net - - - - - -

Other assets - - - - - -

Deferred tax, assets - - - - - -

Total assets 16 962 599 3 714 430

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Bank and financial institution deposits 2 320 177 234 608

Customer deposits 14 870 741 495 359

Cash margin 1 208 965 311 462

Borrowed funds 101 229 - - -

Other provisions - - - - - -

Provision for income tax - - - - - -

Other liabilities - - - - - -

Deferred tax, liabilities - - - - - -

Shareholders' equity - - - - - -

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 18 501 112 1 041 429

Gap (1 538 513) 2 673 001

Accumulated gap (1 538 513) 1 134 488
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2006

(USD 000) 

After 6 months After 12 months After Not tied to Total Effective

and before and before 36 months a specific interest rate

12 months 36 months maturity %

- - - - - - - - - 229 700 229 700 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 860 022 860 022 - - -

- - - 45 000 - - - 280 531 1 815 055 5.15

289 331 5 118 99 1 234 369 6 641 189 5.93

139 603 15 - - - 46 849 2 008 597 16.36

2 594 906 475 718 915 143 - - - 14 165 289 6.56

152 613 197 474 267 752 261 143 2 173 423 4.54

94 110 642 846 536 712 - - - 2 052 808 4.01

- - - - - - - - - 1 047 390 1 047 390 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 349 499 349 499 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 1 100 546 1 100 546 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 21 885 21 885 - - -

3 270 563 1 366 171 1 719 706 5 431 934 32 465 403 - - -

60 120 3 476 - - - 848 421 3 466 802 13.27

395 582 452 758 1 497 3 434 637 19 650 574 2.93

387 579 71 054 136 687 - - - 2 115 747 3.42

- - - - - - - - - - - - 101 229 3.29

- - - - - - - - - 168 429 168 429 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 189 232 189 232 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 866 714 866 714 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 22 120 22 120 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 5 884 556 5 884 556 - - -

843 281 527 288 138 184 11 414 109 32 465 403 - - -

2 427 282 838 883 1 581 522 (5 982 175) - - - - - -

3 561 770 4 400 653 5 982 175 - - - - - - - - -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



104

B) EXPOSURE TO INTEREST RATE VOLATILITY

(Classification is based on interest rate repricing or maturity dates, whichever occures first.)

Within After 3 months

3 months and before

6 months

ASSETS

Cash - - - - - -

Mandatory cash reserve with central banks - - - - - -

Balances with central banks 1 377 619 - - -

Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 4 053 848 264 855

Trading securities 525 647 23 778

Direct credit facilities, net 5 681 059 2 434 370

Investment securities – available for sale 662 179 164 370

Investment securities – held to maturity, net 1 089 055 66 452

Investment in associated companies - - - - - -

Fixed assets, net - - - - - -

Other assets - - - - - -

Deferred tax, assets - - - - - -

Total assets 13 389 407 2 953 825

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Bank and financial institution deposits 2 451 677 113 006

Customer deposits 12 791 951 412 032

Cash margin 796 427 331 723

Borrowed funds 53 919 - - -

Other provisions - - - - - -

Provision for income tax - - - - - -

Other liabilities - - - - - -

Deferred tax, liabilities - - - - - -

Shareholders' equity - - - - - -

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 16 093 974 856 761

Gap (2 704 567) 2 097 064

Accumulated gap (2 704 567) (607 503)
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2005

(USD 000) 

After 6 months After 12 months After Not tied to Total Effective

and before and before 36 months a specific interest rate

12 months 36 months maturity %

- - - - - - - - - 297 130 297 130 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 866 517 866 517 - - -

- - - 174 999 - - - 307 092 1 859 710 4.09

214 554 10 564 - - - 727 822 5 271 643 4.47

74 434 118 955 611 502 13 486 1 367 802 9.92

2 561 353 391 150 657 193 - - - 11 725 125 6.03

311 659 201 990 984 037 372 211 2 696 446 3.08

61 319 5 009 398 241 - - - 1 620 076 3.13

- - - - - - - - - 825 401 825 401 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 272 357 272 357 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 663 995 663 995 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 18 202 18 202 - - -

3 223 319 902 667 2 650 973 4 364 213 27 484 404 - - -

1 236 15 098 298 606 123 3 187 438 5.80

315 986 395 618 84 784 3 668 431 17 668 802 2.40

357 269 50 505 85 810 - - - 1 621 734 2.54

- - - - - - - - - - - - 53 919 6.51

- - - - - - - - - 143 125 143 125 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 154 626 154 626 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 744 342 744 342 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 25 379 25 379 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 3 885 039 3 885 039 - - -

674 491 461 221 170 892 9 227 065 27 484 404 - - -

2 548 828 441 446 2 480 081 (4 862 852) - - - - - -

1 941 325 2 382 771 4 862 852 - - - - - - - - -
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43. LIQUIDITY RISK

A) MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Within After 1 month

1 month and before

3 months

ASSETS

Cash - - - - - -

Mandatory cash reserve with central banks - - - - - -

Balances with central banks 136 952 1 257 571

Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 3 149 179 1 164 726

Trading securities 1 240 946 146 154

Direct credit facilities, net 5 401 721 2 692 513

Investment securities - available for sale 293 567 832 273

Investment securities - held to maturity, net 457 895 189 102

Investment in associated companies - - - - - -

Fixed assets, net - - - - - -

Other assets 67 793 135 586

Deferred tax, assets - - - - - -

Total assets 10 748 053 6 417 925

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Bank and financial institution deposits 2 088 159 232 018

Customer deposits 9 801 068 2 186 704

Cash margin 806 808 402 157

Borrowed funds 101 229 - - -

Other provisions - - - - - -

Provision for income tax - - - - - -

Other liabilities 43 683 87 366

Deferred tax, liabilities - - - - - -

Shareholders' equity - - - - - -

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 12 840 947 2 908 245

Gap (2 092 894) 3 509 680

Accumulated gap (2 092 894) 1 416 786

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2006

(USD 000) 

After 3 months After 6 months After 12 months After Not tied to Total

and before and before and before 36 months a specific 

6 months 12 months 36 months maturity 

- - - - - - - - - - - - 229 700 229 700

- - - - - - - - - - - - 860 022 860 022

95 001 - - - 45 000 - - - 280 531 1 815 055

798 367 289 331 5 118 99 1 234 369 6 641 189

435 030 139 603 15 - - - 46 849 2 008 597

2 085 288 2 594 906 475 718 915 143 - - - 14 165 289

168 601 152 613 197 474 267 752 261 143 2 173 423

132 143 94 110 642 846 536 712 - - - 2 052 808

- - - - - - - - - - - - 1 047 390 1 047 390

- - - - - - - - - - - - 349 499 349 499

203 379 - - - - - - - - - 693 788 1 100 546

- - - - - - - - - - - - 21 885 21 885

3 917 809 3 270 563 1 366 171 1 719 706 5 025 176 32 465 403

234 608 60 120 3 476 - - - 848 421 3 466 802

495 359 395 582 452 758 1 497 6 317 606 19 650 574

311 462 387 579 71 054 136 687 - - - 2 115 747

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 101 229

- -- - - - - - - - - - 168 429 168 429

- -- - - - - - - - - - 189 232 189 232

131 049 - - - - - - - - - 604 616 866 714

- -- - - - - - - - - - 22 120 22 120

- - - - - - - - - - - - 5 884 556 5 884 556

1 172 478 843 281 527 288 138 184 14 034 980 32 465 403

2 745 331 2 427 282 838 883 1 581 522 (9 009 804) - - -

4 162 117 6 589 399 7 428 282 9 009 804 - - - - - -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B) MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Within After 1 month

1 month and before

3 months

ASSETS

Cash - - - - - -

Mandatory cash reserve with central banks - - - - - -

Balances with central banks 237 056 1 140 563

Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 1 976 825 2 077 023

Trading securities 516 157 9 490

Direct credit facilities, net 3 153 239 2 527 820

Investment securities - available for sale 504 700 157 479

Investment securities - held to maturity, net 925 800 163 255

Investment in associated companies - - - - - -

Fixed assets, net - - - - - -

Other assets 64 762 78 536

Deferred tax, assets - - - - - -

Total assets 7 378 539 6 154 166

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Bank and financial institution deposits 1 844 069 607 608

Customer deposits 7 646 399 2 900 680

Cash margin 445 522 350 905

Borrowed funds 53 919 - - -

Other provisions - - - - - -

Provision for income tax - - - - - -

Other liabilities 23 657 35 777

Deferred tax, liabilities - - - - - -

Shareholders' equity - - - - - -

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 10 013 566 3 894 970

Gap (2 635 027) 2 259 196

Accumulated gap (2 635 027) (375 831)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



109

2005

(USD 000)

After 3 months After 6 months After 12 months After Not tied to Total

and before and before and before 36 months a specific 

6 months 12 months 36 months maturity 

- - - - - - - - - - - - 297 130 297 130

- - - - - - - - - - - - 866 517 866 517

- - - - - - 174 999 - - - 307 092 1 859 710

264 855 214 554 10 564 - - - 727 822 5 271 643

23 778 74 434 118 955 611 502 13 486 1 367 802

2 434 370 2 561 353 391 150 657 193 - - - 11 725 125

164 370 311 659 201 990 984 037 372 211 2 696 446

66 452 61 319 5 009 398 241 - - - 1 620 076

- - - - - - - - - - - - 825 401 825 401

- - - - - - - - - - - - 272 357 272 357

93 462 - - - - - - - - - 427 235 663 995

- - - - - - - - - - - - 18 202 18 202 

3 047 287 3 223 319 902 667 2 650 973 4 127 453 27 484 404

113 006 1 236 15 098 298 606 123 3 187 438

412 032 315 986 395 618 84 784 5 913 303 17 668 802

331 723 357 269 50 505 85 810 - - - 1 621 734

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 53 919

- - - - - - - - - - - - 143 125 143 125

- - - - - - - - - - - - 154 626 154 626

41 430 - - - - - - - - - 643 478 744 342

- - - - - - - - - - - - 25 379 25 379

- - - - - - - - - - - - 3 885 039 3 885 039

898 191 674 491 461 221 170 892 11 371 073 27 484 404

2 149 096 2 548 828 441 446 2 480 081 (7 243 620) - - -

1 773 265 4 322 093 4 763 539 7 243 620 - - - - - -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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44. NET FOREIGN CURRENCY POSITIONS

The following were the foreign currency positions as on 31 December 2006 and 2005:

2006 2005

(USD 000) (USD 000)

Currency: Amount Equivalent Amount Equivalent

USD (102 951) (102 951) (7 414) (7 414)

EUR 73 216 96 077 106 623 125 783

JPY 1 585 469 13 350 (345 743) (2 935)

GBP 41 118 80 494 934 1 610

Other currencies (*) - - - 29 634 - - - (11 738)

Total - - - 116 604 - - - 105 306

(*)Various foreign currencies translated into US dollars 

2006 2005

45. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (USD 000) (USD 000)

Book value Fair value Book value Fair value

ASSETS

Cash and balances with central banks 2 904 777 2 906 862 3 023 357 3 039 266

Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 6 641 189 6 674 493 5 271 643 5 314 589

Trading securities 2 008 597 2 008 597 1 367 802 1 367 802

Investment securities – available for sale 2 173 423 2 173 423 2 696 446 2 696 446

Investment securities – held to maturity, net 2 052 808 2 075 123 1 620 076 1 623 172

Investment in associated companies 1 047 390 1 047 390 825 401 825 401

Direct credit facilities, net 14 165 289 14 228 918 11 725 125 11 768 071

LIABILITIES

Bank and financial institution deposits 3 466 802 3 488 557 3 187 438 3 195 734

Customer deposits 19 650 574 19 702 117 17 668 802 17 709 826

Cash margin 2 115 747 2 126 445 1 621 734 1 625 772

Borrowed funds 101 229 101 229 53 919 53 919

46. MINORITY INTEREST
This item represents the share of the other shareholders in the results and net assets of the subsidiary
companies.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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47. CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The capital adequacy ratio is calculated according to the regulations of the Central Bank of Jordan and is in line with

the requirements of the Basel Committee. The following table shows the capital adequacy ratios as on 31 December

2006 and 31 December 2005. Credit risk and market risk requirements have been utilized in the calculations.

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Ratio-to- Ratio-to-

risk weighted risk weighted

(USD 000) assets (%) (USD 000) assets (%)

Regulatory capital 4 846 705 23.70 3 033 917 19.01

Core capital 4 375 087 21.39 2 629 531 16.48

2006 2005

48. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES USD (000) USD (000)

Dues from associated companies 121 053 270 560

Deposits from associated companies 195 463 307 712

Interest income from associated companies 1 251 7 077

Interest expense paid to associated companies 1 228 2 558

Guarantees, acceptances and letters of credit - associated companies 36 324 26 224

Major shareholders and members of the boards of directors:

Direct credit facilities 528 618 585 728

Letters of credit 123 698 107 828

Guarantees 69 926 276 841

- Interest on facilities granted to major shareholders and members of the Board of Directors are recorded on arm’s

length.

- The salaries and other fringe benefits of senior executives in Jordan and abroad amounted to USD 16.4 million in

2006, compared to USD 14.3 million in 2005.

49. INCOME PER SHARE

The income per share is calculated by dividing the income after tax by the average number of shares as on 31 December

2006 and 2005, as follows:

2006 2005

Income after tax attributed to the shareholders of the parent company (USD 000) 616 370 498 497

Average number of shares (thousand shares) 332 513 176 000

Income per share (USD) 1.85 2.83

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2006 2005

50. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (USD 000) (USD 000)

Cash and balances with central banks, maturing within 3 months 2 764 776 2 848 358

Plus: Balances with banks and financial institutions, maturing within 3 months 5 548 274 4 781 670

Less: Bank and financial institution deposits, maturing within 3 months 3 168 598 3 057 800

Total 5 144 452 4 572 228

51. LEGAL CASES

A) At the end of 2006, there were several lawsuits filed against Arab Bank plc, all of

which were based on similar factual allegations, wherein the Bank, through its New

York branch, was falsely alleged to have channelled money to persons described as

terrorist organisations and, thus, aiding and abetting acts of terrorism that resulted

in the death or injury of members of the claimants’ families. Consequently, the

claimants, in all the said lawsuits, were requesting damages for the alleged acts of the

Bank. All lawsuits were still pending in 2006.

B) During 2005, the branch of Arab Bank in New York entered into an agreement with

the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (OCC) pursuant to which the former

paid a fine in the amount of USD 24 million, and the Bank’s branch in New York was

converted into a federal agency with limited operations, in compliance with the pro-

visions of the United States Federal Banking Act. The agreement also allowed the

agency to maintain assets in the amount of USD 420 million, mostly in assets avail-

able for sale.

Additionally, in 2005, and upon a request of the OCC, the United States Department

of Justice carried out an investigation of the Bank’s branch in New York. The coun-

sels for the Bank have stated that they are unaware of any adverse effect that the in-

vestigation may have on the Bank.

C) The value of commercial legal cases filed against the Arab Bank Group totalled ap-

proximately USD 23.4 million as on 31 December 2006, compared to USD 48.8 mil-

lion as on 31 December 2005. The Arab Bank management believes that no addi-

tional liability shall arise beyond the relevant existing provision of USD 7.2 million

as on 31 December 2006, compared to USD 3.9 million allocated as on 31 December

2005.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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INDEPENDANT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the shareholders of ARAB BANK plc

Amman - Jordan

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arab Bank Group, which com-

prise the balance sheet as of 31 December 2006, the income statement, the statement of

changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, a summary of signif-

icant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial

statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards. This respon-

sibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material mis-

statement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting poli-

cies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing. Those

standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from materi-

al misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judg-

ment, including an assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial state-

ments, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor consid-

ers the internal controls relevant to the Group’s preparation and fair presentation of the

financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circum-

stances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting

policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as

well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

position of Arab Bank Group as on 31 December 2006, and its financial performance and its

cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting

Standards. We therefore recommend that the General Assembly of Shareholders approve

these financial statements.

Amman, Jordan Deloitte & Touche (M.E.), Jordan

25 January 2007
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Note 2006 2005

ARAB BANK PLC (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Cash and balances with central banks 5 1 940 964 2 044 984

Balances with banks and financial institutions 6 4 321 512 3 683 586

Deposits with banks and financial institutions 7 352 151 299 282

Trading securities 8 635 759 716 110

Direct credit facilities, net 9 7 909 806 6 660 103

Investment securities - available for sale 10 1 349 419 1 718 225

Investment securities - held to maturity, net 11 881 735 925 488

Investment in subsidiaries and associated cosmpanies 12 513 741 254 608

Fixed assets, net 13 168 439 163 045

Other assets 14 352 269 338 300

Deferred tax, assets 15 14 343 12 073

Total assets 18 440 138 16 815 804

Liabilities on guarantees, letters of credit and other contingencies 38 7 251 122 6 078 893

Total 25 691 260 22 894 697

Bank and financial institution deposits 16 2 627 291 2 326 832

Customer deposits 17 10 756 760 10 936 131

Cash margin 18 1 470 897 1 103 537

Borrowed funds 19 0 503

Other provisions 20 98 278 83 308

Provision for income tax 21 88 046 73 457

Other liabilities 22 289 320 414 509

Deferred tax, liabilities 23 15 598 17 897

Total liabilities 15 346 190 14 956 174

Capital 24 356 000 176 000

Issuing premium 24 921 688 0

Treasury shares 24 (34 414) 0

Statutory reserve 166 000 133 000

Voluntary reserve 25 378 000 312 000

General reserve 900 000 867 000

General banking risk reserve 26 145 988 107 049

Translation adjustments 27 89 665 65 912

Cumulative change in fair value, net 28 65 922 134 330

Retained earnings 29 16 099 10 939

Proposed dividends 89 000 53 400

Total shareholders' equity 3 093 948 1 859 630

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 18 440 138 16 815 804

Guarantees, letters of credit and other contingencies 38 7 251 122 6 078 893

Total 25 691 260 22 894 697
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Note 2006 2005

ARAB BANK PLC (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Interest income 30 931 750 723 986

Less: Interest expense 31 464 662 368 730

Net interest income 467 088 355 256

Commission income, net 32 98 481 103 325

Net interest and commission income 565 569 458 581

Foreign exchange trading 26 612 26 483

Gain from trading securities 33 464 2 190

Gain from available-for-sale securities 34 12 922 33 692

Dividends from subsidiaries and associates 25 203 24 112

Other revenue 35 31 074 35 939

Net revenue 50 661 844 580 997

Employee expenses 36 134 792 151 652

Other expenses 37 150 361 135 889

Depreciation and amortization 13 22 053 21 740

Provision for impairment - direct credit facilities 9 6 337 6 746

Other provisions 16 865 9 216

Bad debts 2 165 1 606

Total expenses 50 332 573 326 849

Income before tax 329 271 254 148

Income tax 21 65 994 54 056

Income after tax 263 277 200 092

Statutory reserve 33 000 26 000

Voluntary reserve 66 000 50 000

General reserve 33 000 10 000

General banking risk reserve 42 277 60 692

Proposed cash dividends 89 000 53 400

Total appropriation 263 277 200 092

INCOME STATEMENT 
for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005

ARAB BANK PLC (JOD 000)

Capital Issuing Treasury Statutory

premium shares reserve

Balance on 1 January 176 000 - - - - - - 133 000

Deferred tax - - - - - - - - - - - -

Capital increase 180 000 921 688 (34 414) - - -

Net income for the year - - - - - - - - - - - -

Allocated to reserves - - - - - - - - - 33 000

Proposed dividends - - - - - - - - - - - -

Paid dividends - - - - - - - - - - - -

Translation adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - -

Cumulative change in fair value, net - - - - - - - - - - - -

Change during the year - - - - - - - - - - - -

Foreign currency adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - -

Balance on 31 December 356 000 921 688 (34 414) 166 000

Balance on 1 January 176 000 - - - - - - 107 000

Deferred tax - - - - - - - - - - - -

Net income for the year - - - - - - - - - - - -

Allocated to reserves - - - - - - - - - 26 000

Proposed dividends - - - - - - - - - - - -

Paid dividends - - - - - - - - - - - -

Translation adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - -

Cumulative change in fair value, net - - - - - - - - - - - -

Foreign currency adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - -

Balance on 31 December 176 000 - - - - - - 133 000
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(JOD 000)

Voluntary General General Translation Cumulative Retained Proposed Total

reserve reserve banking adjustments change in earnings dividends

risk reserve fair value, net

312 000 867 000 107 049 65 912 134 330 10 939 53 400 1 859 630

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (2 885) - - - (2 885)

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1 067 274

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 263 277 - - - 263 277

66 000 33 000 42 277 - - - - - - (174 277) - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (89 000) 89 000 - - -

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (53 400) (53 400)

- - - - - - - - - 23 753 - - - - - - - - - 23 753

- - - - - - - - - - - - (68 408) - - - - - - (68 408)

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 8 045 - - - 8 045

- - - - - - (3 338) - - - - - - - - - - - - (3 338)

378 000 900 000 145 988 89 665 65 922 16 099 89 000 3 093 948

262 000 857 000 46 558 100 982 43 378 12 401 35 200 1 640 519

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (1 462) - - - (1 462)

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 200 092 - - - 200 092

50 000 10 000 60 692 - - - - - - (146 692) - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (53 400) 53 400 - - -

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (35 200) (35 200)

- - - - - - - - - (35 070) - - - - - - - - - (35 070)

- - - - - - - - - - - - 90 952 - - - - - - 90 952

- - - - - - (201) - - - - - - - - - - - - (201)

312 000 867 000 107 049 65 912 134 330 10 939 53 400 1 859 630
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Note 2006 2005

ARAB BANK PLC (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Net income before tax 329 271 254 148

Adjustments:

- Depreciation and amortization 22 053 21 740

- Provision for impairment - Direct credit facilities 6 337 6 746

- Bad debts written off 2 165 1 606

- Proceeds from sale of fixed assets (614) (404)

- Other provisions 16 865 9 216

Total 376 077 293 052

(Increase) decrease in assets

Deposits with banks and financial institutions (17 409) 208 211

Direct credit facilities, net (1 258 205) (766 496)

Trading securities 80 351 104 730

Other assets (16 239) (107 145)

Increase (decrease) in liabilities

Bank and financial institution deposits (maturing after 3 months) 54 845 (4 439)

Customer deposits (179 371) (160 051)

Cash margin 367 360 (23 853)

Other liabilities (125 262) (34 390)

Net cash provided from operations before income tax (717 853) (490 381)

Income tax paid (51 405) (35 787)

Net cash provided from operations (769 258) (526 168)

(Purchase) sale of available-for-sale securities 298 099 309 049

(Purchase) sale of held-to-maturity investment securities 43 753 400 066

(Purchase) sale of investment in subsidiaries and associates (259 133) (15 306)

(Purchase) sale of fixed assets (26 833) (28 369)

Net cash provided from (used in) investing activities 55 886 665 440

Increase (decrease) in borrowed funds (503) (13 911)

Dividends paid to shareholders (53 400) (35 200)

Capital increase 1 067 274 0

Net cash provided from (used in) financing activities 1 013 371 (49 111)

Translation adjustments 23 753 (35 070)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent 323 752 55 091

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 48 3 365 559 3 310 468

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year 48 3 689 311 3 365 559

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL  

Arab Bank plc was established in 1930 and is registered in Jordan as a public shareholding

limited company. The Bank has its head office in Amman, Jordan, and operates worldwide

through its 82 branches in Jordan and 96 abroad.

The accompanying financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors at its

meeting no. 1/2007 on 25 January 2007. The financial statements are subject to the approval

of the shareholders’ General Assembly.

During 2006, Arab Bank’s branches and subsidiaries operating in Europe were consolidated

into one entity under the name “Europe Arab Bank”, which is a new subsidiary wholly-

owned by Arab Bank plc.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank’s

branches both in Jordan and abroad, after the elimination of inter-branch balances. Trans-

actions in transit at year-end are shown under other assets or other liabilities, as the case

may be. Financial statements in foreign currencies of the Bank’s branches outside Jordan are

translated into Jordanian dinars at the exchange rates as at year end.

The Bank also issues consolidated financial statements for the Bank and its subsidiaries, in-

cluding the financial statements of its sister company, Arab Bank (Switzerland), to reflect the

consolidated economic ownership of the Group.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION 

The accompanying financial statements are prepared in accordance with the standards 

issued by the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the interpretations issued

by the Committee of the IFRS Board, the prevailing rules of the countries where the Bank

operates, and the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan.

- The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for 

financial assets held for trading, those available for sale, and financial derivatives which

are stated at fair value on the date of the financial statements. Hedged assets and liabilities

are also stated at fair value.

- The accounting policies for 2006 are consistent with those used in previous years, except

for the following:
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The International Accounting Standards Board has issued amendments to the International

Accounting Standards as well as new Financial Reporting Standards. Applying these amend-

ments and their interpretations has had no significant impact on the financial statements.

The following accounting standards were changed:

- Amendments to the international accounting standard IAS 39 on the valuation at fair

value. This amendment changes the definition of the financial instruments that can be

valued at fair value in the income statement, and narrows the possibility of using such a

classification. It also specifies which financial guarantees can be recorded at fair value. The

requirements of this amendment to IAS 39 have been applicable since 1 January 2006.

- International financial reporting standard IFRS 7 concerning financial instruments dis-

closures. This standard supersedes the international accounting standard IAS 30 on dis-

closures in the financial statements of banks and similar financial institutions. IFRS 7 also

amends some of the disclosure requirements of the international accounting standard

IAS 32, which defined presentation and disclosures of the financial instruments. The

amendment now requires only the presentation of the financial instruments, and it is ap-

plicable as of 1 January 2007.

- Amendments to the international accounting standard IAS 1 on presentation of the fi-

nancial statements and related disclosures on the goals of a bank, and its policies and pro-

cedures in managing its capital. These amendments apply as of 1 January 2007.

RECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Sale and purchase of financial assets are recognized on the trade date, which is the date that

the entity commits to purchase or sell the financial assets.

FAIR VALUE

Fair value represents the closing market price of financial assets and derivatives on the date

of the financial statements. Where the declared market prices do not exist and active trading

of some financial assets and derivatives is not available, or the market is inactive, fair value

is estimated by one of several methods, such as:

- Taking the fair value of another financial asset with similar terms and conditions;

- Using the present value of expected future cash flows for similar instruments; or

- Adopting option pricing models.

The valuation methods aim to arrive at a fair value that reflects the expectations of the mar-

ket, expected risks and expected benefits.

When the fair value cannot be measured reliably, financial assets are stated at cost less any

impairment.

FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING

- Financial assets held for trading are initially recognized at their fair value when pur-

chased, and subsequently reported at the prevailing fair value. The resulting change is 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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included in the income statement in the period in which it arises, including exchange 

differences in fair value resulting from the translation of non-monetary assets denomi-

nated in foreign currencies. Changes in fair value resulting from changes in the foreign

exchange rate are recorded in the income statement as profit or loss on foreign exchange.

- Dividends and realized interest are reported in the income statement.

DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES 

- Direct credit facilities are recorded at cost, and stated in the balance sheet after deducting

provisions, interest and commission in suspense.

- A provision for the impairment of direct credit facilities is recognized when it is apparent

that the financial assets of the Bank cannot be recovered, and there is objective evidence

of an event that negatively affects the future cash flows of the direct credit facilities, and

when the impairment amount can be estimated. The provision is taken to the income

statement.

- Interest and commission on non-performing credit facilities are suspended in accordance

with the instructions of the regulatory authorities in the countries where the Bank oper-

ates.

- Impaired direct credit facilities, for which specific provision has been made, are written

off by charging the provision after all efforts have been made to recover the assets; any

surplus in the provisions or recoveries is taken to the income statement, while debt previ-

ously written off recoveries are taken to income.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

- Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recorded at fair value, including acquisition

costs. They are subsequently reported at fair value as of the date of the financial state-

ments; changes in fair value are recorded in a separate account in shareholders’ equity.

When these assets are fully or partially sold, disposed of, or determined to be impaired,

the change in fair value is recorded in the income statement, including related amounts

previously recorded in shareholders’ equity. The loss resulting from an impaired value of

the debt instruments is reversed when it is objectively evident that the increase in their

fair value occurred after the losses had been recognized. Impairment losses resulting from

a decline in the value of equity securities cannot be reversed.

- Income and losses resulting from foreign exchange of interest-bearing debt instruments

are included in the income statement. Differences in foreign currency of equity instru-

ments are included in the cumulative change in fair value within shareholders’ equity.

- Interest from available-for-sale financial instruments is recorded in the income statement

using the effective interest rate method. When impairment in assets is incurred, it is

recorded in the income statement.

- Financial instruments for which fair value cannot reliably be determined are shown at

cost. A decline in value is recorded in the income statement.
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HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Held-to-maturity investments are recorded at cost (fair value) plus acquisition costs, less

provision for impairment in value. Premiums and discounts are systematically amortized in

the income statement using the effective interest rate method.

IMPAIRMENT IN THE VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Bank reviews the values of the financial assets on the date of the balance sheet in order

to determine if there are any indications of impairment in their value individually or in the

form of a portfolio. In case such indications exist, the recoverable value is estimated so as to

determine the impairment loss.

Impairment is determined as follows:

- Impairment in financial assets recorded at amortized cost is determined on the basis of

the present value of the cash flows discounted at the original interest rate.

- Impairment in the financial assets available-for-sale recorded at fair value represents the

difference between the book value and the fair value.

- Impairment in the financial assets recorded at cost is determined on the basis of the pres-

ent value of the expected cash flows discounted at the market interest rate of similar in-

struments.

Impairment in value is recorded in the income statement. Any surplus in the subsequent pe-

riod, resulting from previous declines in the fair value of financial assets, is taken to the in-

come statement, except for available-for-sale equity securities.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

- Associated companies are those in which the Bank has a significant influence over the fi-

nancial and operating policy decisions, and in which the Bank holds between 20% and

50% of the voting rights.

- Investments in associated companies are stated at cost.

REALIZATION OF INCOME AND RECOGNITION OF EXPENSES

- Realization of income and recognition of expenses are recorded on an accrual basis, ex-

cept for interest and commission on non-performing direct credit facilities, which are not

recognized as revenue but recorded as interest and commission in a suspense account un-

til they are received in cash.

- Commission is recorded as revenue when the related services are provided.

- Dividends are recorded when realized.

FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES

Financial derivatives (e.g. currency forward contracts, forward rate agreements, swaps and

option contracts) are recorded in the balance sheet under other assets or other liabilities, as

the case may be.

FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

For hedge accounting purposes, financial derivatives are stated at fair value.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Hedges are classified as follows:

- Fair value hedge: hedge for exposure changes the fair value of the Bank’s assets and liabil-

ities. When the conditions for an effective fair value hedge are met, the resulting gain or

loss from re-measuring the fair value hedging is recognized in the income statement.

When the conditions for an effective portfolio hedge are met, the gain or loss resulting

from the revaluation of the hedging instrument at fair value, as well as the change in the

fair value of the hedged assets or liabilities portfolio, are recorded in the income statement

for the same period.

- Cash flow hedge: hedge for exposure changes the current and expected cash flows of the

Bank’s assets and liabilities. When the conditions for an effective cash flow hedge are met,

the gain or loss of the hedging instruments is recognized in shareholders’ equity, and such

gain or loss is transferred to the income statement in the period in which the hedge trans-

action impacts the income statement.

- Hedge for net investment in foreign entities: When the conditions of the hedge for net in-

vestment in foreign entities are met, fair value is measured for the hedging instrument of

the hedged net assets. In the case of an effective relationship, the effective portion of the

loss or profit related to the hedging instrument is recognized in shareholders’ equity,

while the ineffective portion is recognized in the income statement. The effective portion

is recorded in the income statement when the investment in foreign entities is sold.

- When the conditions for an effective hedge do not apply, gain or loss resulting from the

change in fair value of the hedging instrument is recorded in the income statement of the

same period.

FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES FOR TRADING

The fair value of financial derivatives for trading, such as forward foreign currency con-

tracts, future interest rate contracts, swap agreements and foreign currency options, is

recorded in the balance sheet under other assets or other liabilities, as the case may be. The

change in their fair value is recognized in the income statement.

REPURCHASE AND RESALE AGREEMENTS

- Assets sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a future date continue to

be recognized in the financial statements due to the Bank’s continued control of those as-

sets; the related risks and benefits are transferred to the Bank when incurred. They also

continue to be measured in accordance with the adopted accounting policies. Amounts

received against these contracts are recorded within liabilities under borrowed funds. The

difference between the sale price and the repurchase price is recognized as an interest ex-

pense, and is amortized over the contract period using the effective interest rate method.

- Purchased assets with corresponding commitment to sell at a specific future date are not

recognized in the financial statements because the Bank has no control over such assets,

and the related risks and benefits are not transferred to the Bank when incurred. Pay-

ments related to these contracts are recorded under deposits with banks or under credit

facilities, depending on the nature of each case. The difference between the purchase price

and resale price is recorded as interest revenue, and is amortized over the period of the

contract using the effective interest rate method.
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FORECLOSED ASSETS

Assets that have been the subject of foreclosure by the Bank are shown under “other assets”,

at the acquisition value or fair value, whichever is lower. As of the balance sheet date, these

assets are revalued individually at fair value. Any decline in their market value is taken to the

income statement, whereas an increase is not recognized to the extent it does not exceed the

previously recorded impairment.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

- Goodwill represents the excess of an amount paid to acquire or purchase an investment

in an associate or subsidiary on the date of the transaction over the fair value of the net

investment in that company. Goodwill resulting from the investment in an affiliated com-

pany constitutes part of the investment in that company. It is recorded at cost. The cost of

goodwill is reduced subsequently by any decline in the value of the investment.

- Goodwill is distributed over the cash-generating unit(s) for the purpose of testing the im-

pairment of the value.

- The value of goodwill is tested on the date of each financial statement. The goodwill value

is reduced when there is evidence that its value has declined or that the recoverable value

of the cash-generating unit(s) is lower than the book value. The decline in value is

recorded in the income statement as impairment loss.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

- Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are recorded at the exchange rates pre-

vailing at the date of the transaction.

- Financial assets and financial liabilities are translated at the average rates prevailing on the

balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

and recorded at fair value are translated on the date when the fair value was determined.

- Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency translation are recorded in the income

statement.

- Differences resulting from the translation of non-monetary assets and liabilities denomi-

nated in foreign currency, such as securities, are recorded as part of the change in the fair

value.

FIXED ASSETS

- Fixed assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Fixed assets (except for

land) are depreciated according to the straight-line method over their estimated useful

lives, and in accordance with the prevailing rules and regulations in the countries where

the Bank operates. When the carrying amounts of any of the fixed assets exceed the recov-

erable values, the values of the assets are reduced accordingly.

- The useful lives of the fixed assets are reviewed at the end of each year. Where the expected

useful life differs from what was previously determined, the change in estimate will be

recorded as such in the subsequent year.
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PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has an obligation on the date of the balance sheet

as a result of past events, and if the obligation is likely to be settled, and if a reliable estimate

can be made of the amount of the obligation.

PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES’ END-OF-SERVICE INDEMNITIES

Provision for employees’ end-of-service indemnities is estimated in accordance with the

prevailing rules and regulations in the countries in which the Bank operates. Required pro-

vision for the year for the end-of-service indemnities is recorded in the income statement.

Payments to departing employees are taken to the income statement or deducted from the

provision amount.

INCOME TAX

- Income tax expenses represent accrued taxes.

- Income tax expenses are accounted for on the basis of taxable income. Income subject to

tax differs from income declared in the financial statements, because the latter includes

non-taxable revenue, tax expenses not deductible in the current year but deductible in

subsequent years, accumulated losses accepted by the tax authorities, and items not ac-

cepted for tax purposes or subject to tax.

- Taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates applicable according to the prevailing

laws, regulations and instructions of the countries where the Bank operates.

- Deferred taxes are taxes expected to be paid or recovered as a result of temporary timing

differences between the value of the assets and liabilities in the financial statements and

the value of the taxable amount.

- Deferred tax is calculated on the basis of the liability method in the balance sheet, and ac-

cording to the rates expected to be applied when it is anticipated that the liability will be

settled or when tax assets are recognized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as of the date of

the balance sheet, and reduced if it is expected that no benefit will arise from this deferred

tax, partially or totally.

TREASURY SHARES

- Treasury shares appear as a separate item in the shareholders’ equity, and are deducted

from total shareholders’ equity.

- Gain or loss from the sale of treasury shares is not recognized in the income statement.

OFFSETTING

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reflected in the bal-

ance sheet only when there is a legal right to set off the recognized amounts, and the Bank

intends to either settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simul-

taneously.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances with central banks and balances with

banks and financial institutions that are maturing within three months, less restricted

funds and balances due to banks and financial institutions that are maturing within three

months.

4. USING ESTIMATES 

Preparation of the accompanying financial statements requires estimations and judg-

ments in applying accounting policies relating to some of the items listed in those state-

ments. Examples of such items include an estimation of the provision for impairment of

non-performing direct credit facilities, the intention of management to hold the finan-

cial investment until maturity, and an estimation of the productive life of assets and the

impairment of their value. Management also uses estimation and judgment for some 

uncertain matters on the date of the balance sheet that may cause significant risks and

that may require material adjustments to the balances of the assets and liabilities stated

in the financial statements of the following year. This includes estimations of the various

provisions and contingent liabilities.

2006 2005

5. CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Cash 148 358 201 608

Balances with central banks:

- Current accounts 107 343 141 510

- Time and notice 318 471 355 719

- Mandatory cash reserve 607 586 612 208

- Certificates of deposit 759 206 733 939

Total 1 940 964 2 044 984

Balances maturing after three months amounted to JOD 88.7 million as at 31 December

2006, compared to JOD 124.1 million as at end 2005.

2006 2005

6. BALANCES WITH BANKS AND FINANCIAL  INSTITUTIONS (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Current accounts 474 129 369 347

Time deposits maturing within 3 months 3 840 613 2 307 326

Certificates of deposit 6 770 1 006 913

Total 4 321 512 3 683 586
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2006 2005

7. DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Time deposits maturing after 3 months and before 6 months 151 672 145 060

Time deposits maturing after 6 months and before 9 months 172 828 90 073

Time deposits maturing after 9 months and before 12 months 25 454 62 021

Time deposits maturing after one year 2 197 2 128

Total 352 151 299 282

2006 2005

8. TRADING SECURITIES (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Treasury bills and bonds 208 795 64 539

Corporate bonds 423 831 643 465

Shares 3 133 8 106

Total 635 759 716 110

2006 2005

9. DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES, NET (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Discounted bills (*) 298 274 256 861

Overdrafts 2 097 849 1 997 844

Loans (**) 5 808 684 4 730 210

Capital lease 22 890 28 713

Credit cards 27 643 18 594

Total 8 255 340 7 032 222

Less:

Interest and commission in suspense 110 259 126 307

Provision for impairment – direct credit facilities 235 275 245 812

Total 345 534 372 119

Direct credit facilities, net 7 909 806 6 660 103

(*) Net, after deducting the interest and commission received in advance, which amounted to JOD 12.0 million in 2006, compared

to JOD 10.3 million in the previous year.

(**) Net, after deducting the interest and commission received in advance, which amounted to JOD 5.6 million in 2006, compared

to JOD 6.9 million in the previous year.
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2006 2005 

DISTRIBUTION OF DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES BY SECTOR (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Public sector 390 370 669 750

Private sector:

- Corporate 7 113 825 5 383 664

- Retail 751 145 978 808

Total 8 255 340 7 032 222

2006 2005

COMPOSITION OF DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES BY INDUSTRY (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Jordan Other Arab Europe Asia (*) America Total Total
countries

(excl. Jordan)

Governments and public sector 71 313 311 391 580 7 086 - 390 370 669 750

Agriculture 47 122 24 270 317 1 648 - 73 357 57 026

Industry and mining 375 432 1 294 061 18 113 8 824 - 1 696 430 1 236 828

Construction 112 725 884 914 10 913 - - 1 008 552 739 983

Real estate 105 124 455 321 50 357 57 910 - 668 712 468 051

Trade 283 700 978 686 19 612 - - 1 281 998 1 233 477

Transportation (including 

airline companies) 25 558 143 561 7 982 65 847 - 242 948 304 856

Tourism and hotels 73 048 94 127 37 787 - - 204 962 159 854

General services 256 190 483 727 27 48 111 - 788 055 549 972

Financial 19 812 442 713 281 225 20 851 - 764 601 516 084

Cars 57 910 126 925 - - - 184 835 109 351

Consumer goods 238 872 293 224 10 803 - - 542 899 304 450

Other 165 780 208 031 3 431 30 375 4 407 621 682 540

Total 1 832 586 5 740 951 441 147 240 652 4 8 255 340 7 032 222

(*) Excluding Arab countries

- Direct credit facilities granted to a government and guaranteed by the government as at 31 December 2006

amounted to JOD 390.4 million, or 4.7% of total direct credit facilities, compared to JOD 669.8 million, or 9.5%

of total direct credit facilities at the end of 2005.

- Non-performing direct credit facilities as at 31 December 2006 amounted to JOD 369.6 million, or 4.5% of total

direct credit facilities, compared to JOD 347.3 million, or 4.9% of total direct credit facilities at the end of 2005.

- Non-performing direct credit facilities, after deducting interest and commission in suspense, as at 31 December

2006 amounted to JOD 259.4 million, or 3.2% of total direct credit facilities, compared to JOD 221.0 million, or

3.2% of total direct credit facilities at the end of 2005.

- Direct credit facilities collateralized by mortgage amounted to JOD 1,499.6 million as at 31 December 2006, com-

pared to JOD 1,095.8 million at the end of 2005.
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Movements of interest in suspense during the year were as follows:

2006 2005

(JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Balance at the beginning of the year 126 307 118 142

Interest in suspense during the year 19 555 20 097

Interest in suspense written off (30 204) (8 626)

Recoveries (6 332) (2 134)

Translation adjustments 933 (1 172)

Balance at the end of the year 110 259 126 307

Movements in the provision for the impairment of the direct credit facilities were as follows:

2006 2005

(JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Balance at the beginning of the year 245 812 260 658

Addition: Charged to income 46 517 31 305

Direct credit facilities written off (23 458) (17 959)

Recoveries (40 180) (24 559)

Translation adjustments 6 584 (3 633)

Balance at the end of the year 235 275 245 812

2006 2005

10. INVESTMENT SECURITIES – AVAILABLE FOR SALE (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Treasury bills and bonds 203 064 263 553

Government bonds 194 309 493 236

Corporate bonds 788 039 704 959

Shares 164 007 256 477

Total 1 349 419 1 718 225

Analysis of bonds according to interest:

Fixed interest bonds 671 552 930 829

Variable interest bonds 513 860 530 919

Total 1 185 412 1 461 748

Financial assets according to the market quotation:

Financial assets quoted in the market 1 146 078 1 294 066

Financial assets not quoted in the market 203 341 424 159

Total 1 349 419 1 718 225
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2006 2005

11. INVESTMENT SECURITIES – HELD TO MATURITY, NET (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Treasury bills and bonds 680 167 685 849

Government bonds 154 511 177 497

Corporate bonds 47 057 62 142

Total 881 735 925 488

Movements in the provision for impairment of the held-to-maturity investments were as follows:

2006 2005

(JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Balance at the beginning of the year - - - 513

Recoveries - - - (453)

Translation adjustments - - - (60)

Balance at the end of the year - - - - - -

2006 2005

(JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Analysis of bonds according to interest:

Fixed interest bonds 769 347 783 305

Variable interest bonds 112 388 142 183

Total 881 735 925 488

Financial assets according to the market quotation:

Financial assets quoted in the market 158 589 65 587

Financial assets not quoted in the market 723 146 859 901

Total 881 735 925 488

130



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

131

12. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 

2006 2005

Owner- Historical Owner- Historical Country Activity

ship cost ship cost

% (JOD 000) % (JOD 000)

Investment in subsidiaries:

Europe Arab Bank plc 100.00 227 806 - - - - - - U.K. Banking

Arab Bank (Austria) AG - - - - - - 100.00 7 637 Austria Banking

Arab Bank AG, Frankfurt 100.00 53 062 100.00 47 932 Germany Banking

Arab Bank Australia Ltd 100.00 30 806 100.00 28 622 Australia Banking

Islamic International Arab Bank plc 100.00 40 000 100.00 40 000 Jordan Banking

Arab Leasing Company 100.00 14 000 100.00 14 000 Jordan Lease finance

Arab Real Estate Company for
Management and Investment 100.00 5 500 100.00 5 500 Jordan Real estate

Al-Arabi Investment Group 100.00 3 766 100.00 3 766 Jordan Services and
financial

consulting

Arab Investment Bank SAL 66.65 5 129 66.65 5 129 Lebanon Banking

Arab Tunisian Bank 64.24 38 054 64.24 36 202 Tunisia Banking

AB Capital Limited 60.00 12 762 - - - - - - U.A.E. Services and
financial

consulting

Arab Palestinian Investment Bank 55.00 5 849 55.00 5 849 Palestine Banking

Al-Nisr Al Arabi 50.00 11 250 - - - - - - Jordan Insurance

Other - - - 10 531 - - - 10 159

Total 458 515 204 796

Investment in associated companies:

Oman Arab Bank S.A.O. 49.00 18 048 49.00 12 633 Oman Banking

Arab Bank Syria 49.00 10 421 49.00 10 421 Syria Banking

Arab National Bank 40.00 26 474 40.00 26 474 Saudi Arabia Banking

Arabia Insurance Co. 36.79 75 36.79 75 Lebanon Insurance

Commercial Building Co. 32.77 200 32.77 200 Lebanon Real estate

Other - - - 8 - - - 9

Total 55 226 49 812

Grand total 513 741 254 608
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2006

13. FIXED ASSETS, NET (JOD 000) 

Land Buildings Furniture, Computer Motor Leasehold Total

fixtures and and com- vehicles improve-

equipment munication ments

equipment

Historical cost

Balance at the beginning of the year 26 744 115 465 63 708 43 180 6 498 24 289 279 884

Additions 1 981 12 243 5 638 4 552 2 319 6 046 32 779

Disposals (1 955) (2 068) (6 832) (10 622) (897) (9 396) (31 770)

Translation adjustments 321 1 620 262 253 45 153 2 654

Balance at the end of the year 27 091 127 260 62 776 37 363 7 965 21 092 283 547

Accumulated depreciation:

Balance at the beginning of the year - - - 23 212 41 884 33 444 4 645 13 654 116 839

Depreciation for the year - - - 4 571 4 965 3 944 934 7 639 22 053

Disposals - - - (2 068) (5 917) (8 203) (552) (6 245) (22 985)

Translation adjustments - - - (374) (138) (185) (38) (64) (799)

Balance at the end of the year - - - 25 341 40 794 29 000 4 989 14 984 115 108

Net book value 27 091 101 919 21 982 8 363 2 976 6 108 168 439

2005

(JOD 000)

Historical cost

Balance at the beginning of the year 26 483 111 186 60 482 45 147 6 242 19 742 269 282

Additions 723 8 202 5 945 4 130 766 11 222 30 988

Disposals - - - (691) (1 859) (4 451) (401) (5 825) (13 227)

Translation adjustments (462) (3 232) (860) (1 646) (109) (850) (7 159)

Total 26 744 115 465 63 708 43 180 6 498 24 289 279 884

Accumulated depreciation: - - - 24 091 42 448 34 718 4 722 14 086 120 065

Translation adjustments - - - (879) (564) (1 274) (77) (432) (3 226)

Total - - - 23 212 41 884 33 444 4 645 13 654 116 839

Net book value 26 744 92 253 21 824 9 736 1 853 10 635 163 045
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2006 2005

14. OTHER ASSETS (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Accrued interest receivable 126 401 134 059

Expenses paid in advance 18 290 23 332

Foreclosed assets 27 137 27 165

Unrealized gains – financial derivatives 7 069 3 595

Items in transit 136 051 29 464

Miscellaneous assets 37 321 120 685

Total 352 269 338 300

Movements of foreclosed assets during 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

2006 2005

(JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Land Buildings Total Land Buildings Total

Balance at the beginning of the year 11 916 15 249 27 165 11 035 11 820 22 855

Additions 262 2 043 2 305 1 875 4 459 6 334

Disposals (544) (1 771) (2 315) (948) (1 011) (1 959)

Translation adjustments (15) (3) (18) (46) (19) (65)

Balance at the end of the year 11 619 15 518 27 137 11 916 15 249 27 165

2006 2005

15. DEFERRED TAX, ASSETS (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Balance at Added/ Balance at Deferred Deferred

the beginning released the end of tax tax

of the year amounts the year

Provision for impairment - direct credit facilities 26 135 1 616 27 751 6 023 7 185

End-of-service indemnity 11 476 8 940 20 416 6 492 4 017

Interest in suspense 72 842 914 354 25

Provisions and other 2 418 1 801 4 219 1 474 846

Total 40 101 13 199 53 300 14 343 12 073
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Movements of deferred tax assets during the year were as follows:

2006 2005

(JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Balance at the beginning of the year 12 073 12 401

Additions during the year 6 692 3 838

Deductions during the year (4 422) (4 166)

Balance at the end of the year 14 343 12 073

- Deferred tax is resulting from the time differences of provisions which were not deducted for tax purposes in pre-

vious years. This was calculated according to the regulations where the Bank operates. The Bank will benefit from

these amounts in the future.

2006 2005

16. BANK AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTION DEPOSITS (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Current and demand 326 656 326 301

Time deposits maturing within 3 months 2 157 856 1 912 597

Time deposits maturing after 3 months and before 6 months 97 808 80 146

Time deposits maturing after 6 months and before 9 months 33 285 500

Time deposits maturing after 9 months and before one year 9 221 377

Time deposits maturing after one year 2 465 6 911

Total 2 627 291 2 326 832

2006 2005

17. CUSTOMER DEPOSITS (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Current and demand 2 801 680 2 783 118

Savings 823 566 837 267

Time and notice 7 096 743 7 290 801

Certificates of deposit 34 771 24 945

Total 10 756 760 10 936 131

- Public sector deposits amounted to JOD 910.7 million, or 8.5% of total customer deposits at the end of 2006, com-

pared to JOD 807.5 million, or 7.4% of total customer deposits at the end of 2005.

- Non-bearing interest deposits amounted to JOD 1,580.6 million, or 14.7% of total customer deposits at the end of

2006, compared to JOD 1,668.3 million, or 15.3%  of total customer deposits at the end of 2005.

- Blocked deposits amounted to JOD 2.2 million, or 0% of total customer deposits at the end of 2006, compared to

JOD 67.7 million, or 0.6% of total customer deposits at the end of 2005.

- Dormant deposits amounted to JOD 53.6 million, or 0.5% of total customer deposits at the end of 2006, compared

to JOD 166.1 million, or 1.5% of total customer deposits at the end of 2005.
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2006 2005

18. CASH MARGIN (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Against direct credit facilities 873 040 717 219

Against indirect credit facilities 555 700 356 762

Cash margin, financial derivatives 16 414 5 368

Cash margin, other 25 743 24 188

Total 1 470 897 1 103 537

2006 2005

19. BORROWED FUNDS (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

From central banks - - - 503

Total - - - 503

2006

20. OTHER PROVISIONS (JOD (000)

Balance at Addition Utilized Returned Translation Balance at

the beginning during during to income adjustments the end of

of the year the year the year the year

End-of-service indemnity 71 008 16 330 (3 203) (290) 770 84 615

Self-insurance 1 204 - - - - - - - - - 13 1 217

Contingencies 11 096 3 186 (1 501) (374) 39 12 446

Total 83 308 19 516 (4 704) (664) 822 98 278

2005

(JOD 000)

End-of-service indemnity 68 456 11 134 (7 011) (77) (1 494) 71 008

Self-insurance 1 215 - - - - - - - - - (11) 1 204

Contingencies 9 643 1 837 357 (443) (298) 11 096

Total 79 314 12 971 (6 654) (520) (1 803) 83 308
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2006 2005 

21. PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Balance at the beginning of the year 73 457 55 188

Income tax paid (51 405) (35 787)

Income tax due 65 994 54 056

Balance at the end of the year 88 046 73 457

Provision for income tax in the income statement comprises the following:

2006 2005 

(JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Income tax provision for the year 65 815 53 333

Income tax for previous years 179 723

Total 65 994 54 056

2006 2005

22. OTHER LIABILITIES (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Accrued interest payable 64 501 52 031

Remittances in transit 62 517 98 577

Interest and commission received in advance 26 904 14 216

Due expenses 18 888 20 688

Unrealized losses - financial derivatives 38 467 6 776

Miscellaneous liabilities 78 043 222 221

Total 289 320 414 509

2006 2005

23. DEFERRED TAX, LIABILITIES (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Balance at Added/ Balance at Deferred Deferred

the beginning released the end of tax tax

of the year amount the year

Cumulative change in fair value 68 180 (25 013) 43 167 15 598 17 897
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24. CAPITAL

The subscribed and paid-up capital amounted to JOD 356 million, divided into 356 mil-

lion shares, each at a nominal value of JOD 1.0 as at 31 December 2006, compared to 

JOD 176 million comprising 176 million shares at a nominal value of JOD 1.0 each as of

31 December 2005.

The extraordinary meeting of the General Assembly of the Shareholders which was held

on 26 November 2005 approved the following:

A. Increasing the share capital of the Bank by issuing 180 million new shares, of which

176 million shares are to be subscribed only by the existing shareholders, who can sub-

scribe in new shares equal to the number of shares they owned prior to the issuance of

the new shares. The price of the new share is JOD 6, representing JOD 1 nominal val-

ue and JOD 5 issuance allowance. Should the new shares not be fully subscribed, the

Bank will buy the remaining unsubscribed shares at the same price of JOD 6 each as

treasury shares.

B. The Bank will buy 4 million shares as treasury shares for the same price of JOD 6 per

share.

In 2006, all legal procedures were completed in accordance with company law, and the new

shares were offered for the above-mentioned private subscription; thus the subscribed

share capital became JOD 356 million. An issuance allowance of JOD 921.7 million was

collected. Unsubscribed shares amounted to JOD 34.4 million, and were considered treas-

ury shares to be deducted from the total shareholders’ equity. Treasury shares give no vot-

ing power and no dividend rights.

25. VOLUNTARY RESERVE

The voluntary reserve amounted to JOD 378 million as at 31 December 2006, compared

to JOD 312 million as at 31 December 2005.

26. GENERAL BANKING RISK RESERVE

This reserve is available for disposal in accordance with certain procedures, including the

approval of the banking authorities and the approval of the General Assembly, only when

the amount of that reserve exceeds the minimum amount set or required by the instruc-

tions of the relevant banking authorities.
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27. TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS

Translation adjustments represent the differences resulting from translating the foreign

currencies, that constitute the net investment in foreign subsidiaries and branches, when

consolidating the financial statements of the Bank.

2006 2005

(JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Balance at the beginning the year 65 912 100 982

Addition (deduction) during the year 23 753 (35 070)

Balance at the end of the year 89 665 65 912

2006 2005

28. CUMULATIVE CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE, NET (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Shares Bonds Cash flow Total Total

hedge

Balance at the beginning of the year 131 896 2 713 (279) 134 330 43 378

Change in fair value during the year (48 661) (16 526) 279 (64 908) 114 599

(Gain) loss realized, reported to income statement (4 581) (1 869) - (6 450) (26 229)

Decline reported to income statement 2 283 431 - 2 714 2 685

Translation adjustments 236 - - 236 (103)

Balance at the end of the year 81 173 (15 251) - 65 922 134 330

2006 2005

29. RETAINED EARNINGS (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Balance at the beginning of the year 10 939 12 401

Change during the year 8 045 -

Deferred tax benefit (2 885) (1 462)

Balance at the end of the year 16 099 10 939
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2006 2005

30. INTEREST INCOME (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Direct credit facilities:

- Discounted bills 21 982 19 605

- Overdrafts 160 857 152 122

- Loans 318 626 217 399

- Capital lease 84 136

- Credit cards 3 644 2 212

Central banks 65 147 52 915

Banks and financial institutions 189 877 124 792

Trading securities 75 118 80 162

Available-for-sale securities 56 708 45 698

Held-to-maturity securities 39 707 28 945

Total 931 750 723 986

2006 2005

31. INTEREST EXPENSE (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Banks and financial institutions 92 856 83 120

Customer deposits:

- Current and demand 7 147 5 659

- Savings 19 372 15 870

- Time and notice 287 920 229 130

- Certificates of deposit 1 222 1 413

Cash margin 50 798 28 442

Borrowed funds 407 520

Deposit insurance fees 4 940 4 576

Total 464 662 368 730

2006 2005

32. COMMISSION INCOME, NET (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Commission income:

- From direct credit facilities 27 384 26 656

- From indirect credit facilities 44 373 45 644

- Other 31 863 36 308

Less: Commission expense 5 139 5 283

Commission, net 98 481 103 325
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2006 2005

33. GAIN FROM TRADING SECURITIES (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Treasury bills and bonds 1 307 1 151

Shares (843) 1 039

Total 464 2 190

2006 2005

34. GAIN FROM AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Gain from available-for-sale securities 8 081 30 627

Dividends 8 368 5 750

Less: decline in the value of the securities 3 527 2 685

Total 12 922 33 692

2006 2005

35. OTHER REVENUE (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Revenue from services 7 304 7 935

Safe box rent 2 935 1 387

Gain from derivatives 764 78

Miscellaneous revenue 20 071 26 539

Total 31 074 35 939

2006 2005

36. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Salaries 91 186 101 818

Social security 5 146 7 830

Saving fund 1 040 3 108

Indemnity compensation 8 636 11 315

Medical 3 400 3 833

Training 884 1 549

Allowances (housing and transportation) 18 879 13 488

Other employee expenses 5 621 8 711

Total 134 792 151 652
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2006 2005

37. OTHER EXPENSES (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Occupancy 21 057 25 983

Office 32 500 28 476

Services 34 997 30 681

Fees 5 564 22 828

Information technology 13 449 17 317

Other expenses 42 794 10 604

Total 150 361 135 889

2006 2005

38. LIABILITY AND CONTINGENT ACCOUNTS (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Letters of credit 1 047 831 908 849

Payment guarantees 737 948 557 648

Other guarantees 3 225 361 3 118 495

Acceptances 307 964 239 058

Unused credit facilities 1 932 018 1 254 843

Total 7 251 122 6 078 893

2006 2005

39. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Forward rate agreements - - - 10 796

Interest rate swaps 1 087 106 3 777 345

Currency forward contracts 2 258 152 2 144 795

Total 3 345 258 5 932 936
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DETAILS OF FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES ARE AS FOLLOWS:

2006

(JOD 000)

Notional amounts by maturity 

As on 31 December Positive Negative Total Within From  From 1 More

fair fair notional 3 3 to 12 year to than

value value amount months months 3 years 3 years

Derivatives held for trading 5 655 35 268 1 766 059 1 203 076 496 442 2 803 63 738

Derivatives held for fair value hedge 1 313 3 199 931 737 377 438 466 484 41 845 45 970

Derivatives held for cash flow hedge 101 - - - 647 462 371 968 134 239 - - - 141 255

Total 7 069 38 467 3 345 258 1 952 482 1 097 165 44 648 250 963

2005

(JOD 000)

Derivatives held for trading 3 193 4 275 2 535 882 2 103 006 332 906 2 520 97 450

Derivatives held for fair value hedge - - - 1 710 2 859 061 1 550 880 1 133 380 155 032 19 769

Derivatives held for cash flow hedge 402 791 537 993 397 441 129 079 11 473 - - -

Total 3 595 6 776 5 932 936 4 051 327 1 595 365 169 025 117 219

40. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CONCENTRATION

GEOGRAPHICAL DISTRIBUTION

The following is the geographical distribution of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items:

2006

(JOD 000)

Assets Liabilities and Off-balance sheet

shareholders' equity

Jordan 4 143 558 4 995 318 579 990

Other Arab countries (excl. Jordan) 10 735 800 10 397 529 5 015 583

Asia (*) 441 200 313 690 955 216

Europe 2 782 030 2 543 483 173 081

America 336 914 185 443 510 301

Rest of the world 636 4 675 16 951

Total 18 440 138 18 440 138 7 251 122
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2005

(JOD 000)

Assets Liabilities and Off-balance sheet

shareholders' equity

Jordan 3 244 040 4 976 455 555 127

Other Arab countries (excl. Jordan) 8 104 871 8 161 730 3 649 852

Asia (*) 308 599 97 651 519 669

Europe 4 796 044 3 560 854 1 010 505

America 362 250 19 114 342 614

Rest of the world - - - - - - 1 126 

Total 16 815 804 16 815 804 6 078 893

(*) Excluding Arab countries

41. BUSINESS LINES

Business lines are segmented as follows:

2006

(JOD 000)

Corporate Treasury Private Retail Other Total

banking banking banking

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks 

and financial institutions - - - 6 466 273 - - - 148 354 - - - 6 614 627

Financial investments 504 086 2 161 420 - - - - - - 715 148 3 380 654

Direct credit facilities, net 7 131 075 - - - 6 543 772 188 - - - 7 909 806

LIABILITIES

Bank and financial institution deposits - - - 2 627 291 - - - - - - - - - 2 627 291

Customer deposits 4 180 552 - - - 1 891 909 4 684 299 - - - 10 756 760

Cash margin 1 319 625 - - - 38 961 112 311 - - - 1 470 897

INCOME STATEMENT

Net interest income 208 033 49 768 15 199 88 796 105 292 467 088

Commission income, net 71 305 (686) 492 26 763 607 98 481

Other revenue 6 643 26 134 141 3 592 59 765 96 275

Net revenue 285 981 75 216 15 832 119 151 165 664 661 844
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42. INTEREST RATE RISK

A) EXPOSURE TO INTEREST RATE VOLATILITY

(Classification is based on interest rate repricing or maturity dates, whichever occures first.)

Within After 3 months

3 months and before

6 months

ASSETS

Cash - - - - - -

Mandatory cash reserve with central banks - - - - - -

Balances with central banks 989 024 56 738

Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 3 847 458 151 672

Trading securities 447 313 140 289

Direct credit facilities, net 4 519 768 1 164 412

Investment securities - available for sale 697 902 104 515

Investment securities - held to maturity, net 277 902 56 759

Investment in subsidiaries and associated companies - - - - - -

Fixed assets, net - - - - - -

Other assets - - - - - -

Deferred tax, assets - - - - - -

Total assets 10 779 367 1 674 385

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Bank and financial institution deposits 2 165 430 97 808

Customer deposits 8 456 502 264 917

Cash margin 840 491 216 533

Borrowed funds - - - - - -

Other provisions - - - - - -

Provision for income tax - - - - - -

Other liabilities - - - - - -

Deferred tax, liabilities - - - - - -

Shareholders’ equity - - - - - -

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 11 462 423 579 258

Gap (683 056) 1 095 127

Accumulated gap (683 056) 412 071
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2006

(JOD 000) 

After 6 months After 12 months After Not tied to Total Effective

and before and before 36 months a specific interest rate

12 months 36 months maturity %

- - - - - - - - - 148 358 148 358 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 607 586 607 586 - - -

- - - 31 915 - - - 107 343 1 185 020 5.5

198 282 2 127 70 474 054 4 673 663 4.06

45 019 5 - - - 3 133 635 759 11.87

1 448 978 265 638 511 010 - - - 7 909 806 6.39

94 604 122 413 165 978 164 007 1 349 419 4.78

40 423 276 119 230 532 - - - 881 735 4.50

- - - - - - - - - 513 741 513 741 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 168 439 168 439 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 352 269 352 269 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 14 343 14 343 - - -

1 827 306 698 217 907 590 2 553 273 18 440 138 - - -

42 506 2 465 - - - 319 082 2 627 291 3.53

211 557 242 134 1 062 1 580 588 10 756 760 2.93

269 450 49 398 95 025 - - - 1 470 897 3.45

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - - 98 278 98 278 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 88 046 88 046 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 289 320 289 320 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 15 598 15 598 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 3 093 948 3 093 948 - - -

523 513 293 997 96 087 5 484 860 18 440 138 - - -

1 303 793 404 220 811 503 (2 931 587) - - - - - -

1 715 864 2 120 084 2 931 587 - - - - - - - - -
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B) EXPOSURE TO INTEREST RATE VOLATILITY

(Classification is based on interest rate repricing or maturity dates, whichever occures first.)

Within After 3 months

3 months and before

6 months

ASSETS

Cash - - - - - -

Mandatory cash reserve with central banks - - - - - -

Balances with central banks 965 545 - - -

Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 3 314 239 145 060

Trading securities 274 798 12 420

Direct credit facilities, net 3 226 819 1 382 796

Investment securities - available for sale 416 457 103 375

Investment securities - held to maturity, net 622 135 37 962

Investment in subsidiaries and associated companies - - - - - -

Fixed assets, net - - - - - -

Other assets - - - - - -

Deferred tax, assets - - - - - -

Total assets 8 819 993 1 681 613

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Bank and financial institution deposits 1 912 597 80 146

Customer deposits 8 515 824 256 418

Cash margin 534 665 230 120

Borrowed funds 503 - - -

Other provisions - - - - - -

Provision for income tax - - - - - -

Other liabilities - - - - - -

Deferred tax, liabilities - - - - - -

Shareholders’ equity - - - - - -

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 10 963 589 566 684

Gap (2 143 596) 1 114 929

Accumulated gap (2 143 596) (1 028 667)
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2005

(JOD 000) 

After 6 months After 12 months After Not tied to Total Effective

and before and before 36 months a specific interest rate

12 months 36 months maturity %

- - - - - - - - - 201 608 201 608 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 612 208 612 208 - - -

- - - 124 113 - - - 141 510 1 231 168 4.30

152 094 2 128 - - - 369 347 3 982 868 3.13

38 901 62 194 319 691 8 106 716 110 11.32

1 454 948 222 210 373 330 - - - 6 660 103 5.88

196 006 127 035 618 875 256 477 1 718 225 3.13

35 029 2 862 227 500 - - - 925 488 3.13

- - - - - - - - - 254 608 254 608 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 163 045 163 045 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 338 300 338 300 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 12 073 12 073 - - -

1 876 978 540 542 1 539 396 2 357 282 16 815 804 - - -

877 6 700 211 326 301 2 326 832 3.57

196 646 246 203 52 763 1 668 277 10 936 131 2.30

242 075 35 819 60 858 - - - 1 103 537 2.58

- - - - - - - - - - - - 503 103.38

- - - - - - - - - 83 308 83 308 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 73 457 73 457 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 414 509 414 509 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 17 897 17 897 - - -

- - - - - - - - - 1 859 630 1 859 630 - - -

439 598 288 722 113 832 4 443 379 16 815 804 - - -

1 437 380 251 820 1 425 564 (2 086 097) - - - - - -

408 713 660 533 2 086 097 - - - - - - - - -
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43. LIQUIDITY RISK

A) MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Within After 1 month

1 month and before

3 months

ASSETS

Cash - - - - - -

Mandatory cash reserve with central banks - - - - - -

Balances with central banks 97 129 891 895

Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 2 804 017 1 043 441

Trading securities 400 181 47 132

Direct credit facilities, net 3 016 287 1 503 481

Investment securities – available for sale 181 981 515 921

Investment securities – held to maturity, net 196 678 81 224

Investment in subsidiaries and associated companies - - - - - -

Fixed assets, net - - - - - -

Other assets 21 067 42 134

Deferred tax, assets - - - - - -

Total assets 6 717 340 4 125 228

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Bank and financial institution deposits 1 567 432 597 998

Customer deposits 5 242 397 1 169 446

Cash margin 560 905 279 586

Borrowed funds - - - - - -

Other provisions - - - - - -

Provisions for income tax - - - - - -

Other liabilities 10 750 21 500

Deferred tax, liabilities - - - - - -

Shareholders’ equity - - - - - -

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 7 381 484 2 068 530

Gap (664 144) 2 056 698

Accumulated gap (664 144) 1 392 554
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2006

(JOD 000)

After 3 months After 6 months After 12 months After Not tied to Total

and before and before and before 36 months a specific 

6 months 12 months 36 months maturity 

- - - - - - - - - - - - 148 358 148 358

- - - - - - - - - - - - 607 586 607 586

56 738 - - - 31 915 - - - 107 343 1 185 020

151 672 198 282 2 127 70 474 054 4 673 663

140 289 45 019 5 - - - 3 133 635 759

1 164 412 1 448 978 265 638 511 010 - - - 7 909 806

104 515 94 604 122 413 165 978 164 007 1 349 419

56 759 40 423 276 119 230 532 - - - 881 735

- - - - - - - - - - - - 513 741 513 741

- - - - - - - - - - - - 168 439 168 439

63 201 - - - - - - - - - 225 867 352 269

- - - - - - - - - - - - 14 343 14 343

1 737 586 1 827 306 698 217 907 590 2 426 871 18 440 138

97 808 42 506 2 465 - - - 319 082 2 627 291

264 917 211 557 242 134 1 062 3 625 247 10 756 760

216 533 269 450 49 398 95 025 - - - 1 470 897

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - - - - - 98 278 98 278

- - - - - - - - - - - - 88 046 88 046

32 250 - - - - - - - - - 224 820 289 320

- - - - - - - - - - - - 15 598 15 598

- - - - - - - - - - - - 3 093 948 3 093 948

611 508 523 513 293 997 96 087 7 465 019 18 440 138

1 126 078 1 303 793 404 220 811 503 (5 038 148) - - -

2 518 632 3 822 425 4 226 645 5 038 148 - - - - - -
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B) MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Within After 1 month

1 month and before

3 months

ASSETS

Cash - - - - - -

Mandatory cash reserves with central banks - - - - - -

Balances with central banks 131 065 834 480

Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 1 616 161 1 698 078

Trading securities 269 835 4 963

Direct credit facilities, net 1 790 967 1 435 852

Investment securities - available for sale 317 412 99 045

Investment securities - held to maturity, net 528 874 93 261

Investment in subsidiaries and associated companies - - - - - -

Fixed assets, net - - - - - -

Other assets 26 811 46 921

Deferred tax, assets - - - - - -

Total assets 4 681 125 4 212 600

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Bank and financial institution deposits 1 438 591 474 006

Customer deposits 4 758 549 1 805 167

Cash margin 297 753 236 912

Borrowed funds 503 - - -

Other provisions - - - - - -

Provisions for income tax - - - - - -

Other liabilities 10 927 18 991

Deferred tax, liabilities - - - - - -

Shareholders’ equity - - - - - -

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 6 506 323 2 535 076

Gap (1 825 198) 1 677 524

Accumulated gap (1 825 198) (147 674)
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2005

(JOD 000)

After 3 months After 6 months After 12 months After Not tied to Total

and before and before and before 36 months a specific 

6 months 12 months 36 months maturity 

- - - - - - - - - - - - 201 608 201 608

- - - - - - - - - - - - 612 208 612 208

- - - - - - 124 113 - - - 141 510 1 231 168

145 060 152 094 2 128 - - - 369 347 3 982 868

12 420 38 901 62 194 319 691 8 106 716 110

1 382 796 1 454 948 222 210 373 330 - - - 6 660 103

103 375 196 006 127 035 618 875 256 477 1 718 225

37 962 35 029 2 862 227 500 - - - 925 488

- - - - - - - - - - - - 254 608 254 608

- - - - - - - - - - - - 163 045 163 045

60 327 - - - - - - - - - 204 241 338 300

- - - - - - - - - - - - 12 073 12 073

1 741 940 1 876 978 540 542 1 539 396 2 223 223 16 815 804

80 146 877 6 700 211 326 301 2 326 832

256 418 196 646 246 203 52 763 3 620 385 10 936 131

230 120 242 075 35 819 60 858 - - - 1 103 537

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 503

- - - - - - - - - - - - 83 308 83 308

- - - - - - - - - - - - 73 457 73 457

22 113 - - - - - - - - - 362 478 414 509

- - - - - - - - - - - - 17 897 17 897

- - - - - - - - - - - - 1 859 630 1 859 630

588 797 439 598 288 722 113 832 6 343 456 16 815 804

1 153 143 1 437 380 251 820 1 425 564 (4 120 233) - - -

1 005 469 2 442 849 2 694 669 4 120 233 - - - - - -
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44. NET FOREIGN CURRENCY POSITIONS

The following were the foreign currency positions as on 31 December 2006 and 2005:

2006 2005

(JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Currency: Amount Equivalent Amount Equivalent 

USD (105 045) (74 500) (13 068) (9 268)

EUR 69 374 64 564 106 559 89 621

JPY 1 578 924 9 429 (354 291) (2 113)

GBP 41 372 57 440 1 619 1 979

Other currencies (*) - - - 22 869 - - - (5 551)

Total 79 802 74 668

(*) Various foreign currencies translated to Jordanian dinars

2006 2005

45. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Book value Fair value Book value Fair value

ASSETS

Cash and balances with central banks 1 940 964 1 942 443 2 044 984 2 056 267

Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 4 673 663 4 697 283 3 982 868 4 013 326

Trading securities 635 759 635 759 716 110 716 110

Investment securities - available for sale 1 349 419 1 349 419 1 718 225 1 718 225

Investment securities - held to maturity, net 881 735 897 561 925 488 927 684

Investment in subsidiaries and associated companies 513 741 513 741 254 608 254 608

Direct credit facilities, net 7 909 806 7 954 933 6 660 103 6 690 561

LIABILITIES

Bank and financial institution deposits 2 627 291 2 642 720 2 326 832 2 332 716

Customer deposits 10 756 760 10 793 315 10 936 131 10 965 226

Cash margin 1 470 897 1 478 484 1 103 537 1 106 401

Borrowed funds - - - - - - 503 503 

46. CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The capital adequacy ratio is calculated according to the regulations of the Central Bank of Jordan, and is in line

with the requirements of the Basel Committee. The following table shows the capital adequacy ratios as on 

31 December 2006 and 31 December 2005. Credit risk and market risk requirements have been utilized in the cal-

culations.
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2006 2005

Ratio-to- Ratio-to-

risk weighted risk weighted

(JOD 000) assets (%) (JOD 000) assets (%)

Regulatory capital 2 511 366 23.26 1 529 657 16.53

Core capital 2 225 366 20.61 1 283 947 13.88

2006 2005

47. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Sister, subsidiary and associated companies:

Dues from sister and subsidiary companies 2 634 462 901 198

Dues from associated companies 84 824 167 885

Deposits from sister and subsidiary companies 1 423 275 566 033

Deposits from associated companies 78 097 125 217

Interest income from sister and subsidiary companies 92 737 26 895

Interest expenses paid to sister and subsidiary companies 42 078 15 655

Interest income from associated companies 887 4 672

Interest expenses paid to associated companies 871 1 653

Guarantees and letters of credit – sister and subsidiary companies 51 957 45 073

Guarantees, acceptances and letters of credit - associated companies 2 847 3 156

Unused credit facilities - sister and subsidiary companies 75 995 7 346

Major shareholders and members of the Board of Directors:

Direct credit facilities 264 385 344 488

Letters of credit 87 729 76 474

Guarantees 49 593 196 341

- Interest on facilities granted to major shareholders and members of the Board of Directors are recorded on arm’s

length.

- The salaries and other fringe benefits of the Bank’s senior executives in Jordan and abroad amounted to JOD 11.6

million in 2006, compared to JOD 10.1 million in 2005.

2006 2005

48. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (JOD 000) (JOD 000)

Cash and balances with central banks maturing within 3 months 1 852 311 1 920 871

Plus: Balances with banks and financial institutions maturing within 3 months 4 321 512 3 683 586

Less: Bank and financial institution deposits maturing within 3 months 2 484 512 2 238 898

Total 3 689 311 3 365 559

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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49. LEGAL CASES

A) At the end of 2006, there were several lawsuits filed against Arab Bank plc, all of which
were based on similar factual allegations, wherein the Bank, through its New York
branch, was falsely alleged to have channelled money to persons described as terrorist
organisations and, thus, aiding and abetting acts of terrorism that resulted in the
death or injury of members of the claimants’ families. Consequently, the claimants, in
all the said lawsuits, were requesting damages for the alleged acts of the Bank. All law-
suits were still pending in 2006.

B) During 2005, the branch of Arab Bank in New York entered into an agreement with
the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (OCC) pursuant to which the former
paid a fine in the amount of USD 24 million, and the Bank’s branch in New York was
converted into a federal agency with limited operations, in compliance with the pro-
visions of the United States Federal Banking Act. The agreement also allowed the
agency to maintain assets in the amount of USD 420 million, mostly in assets available
for sale.

Additionally, in 2005, and upon a request of the OCC, the United States Department
of Justice carried out an investigation of the Bank’s branch in New York. The counsels
for the Bank have stated that they are unaware of any adverse effect that the investiga-
tion may have on the Bank.

C) The value of commercial legal cases filed against the Arab Bank totalled  approxi-
mately JOD 15.4 million as on 31 December 2006, compared to JOD 32.5 million as
on 31 December 2005. Arab Bank’s management believes that no additional liability
shall arise beyond the relevant existing provision of JOD 5.1 million as on 31 Decem-
ber 2006, compared to JOD 2.8 million allocated on 31 December 2005.

50. NON-RECURRENT OPERATIONS

As stated in Note no. 1, the comparative figures as at the end of 2005, which are indicated
in the accompanying balance sheet, include assets of JOD 3,410.6 million and liabilities of
JOD 2,306.9 million, which relate to the restructuring of Arab Bank branches in Europe.
These amounts were transferred in 2006 to the financial statements of Arab Bank Group;
hence they come under the financials of Europe Arab Bank.

Also, the same comparative figures in the income statement of 2005 include a revenue of
JOD 22.7 million, expenses of JOD 32.2 million and a net loss of JOD 9.5 million, com-
pared to a net loss of JOD 17.8 million for the financial year 2006 resulting from the non-
recurrent operations relating to the restructuring of the European branches, as mentioned
above.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the shareholders of ARAB BANK plc
Amman - Jordan

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arab Bank plc (a public share-
holding company), which comprise: the balance sheet as on 31 December 2006, the income
statement, the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and the cash flows statement for
the year then ended, a summary of significant accounting policies, and other explanatory
notes.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial state-
ments in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibi-
lity includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the pre-
paration and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from materi-
al misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judg-
ment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial state-
ments, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor consid-
ers internal controls relevant to the Bank’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal con-
trols. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evalu-
ating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Arab Bank plc (a public shareholding company) as on 31 December 2006, as well
as its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards. We therefore recommend that the General As-
sembly of Shareholders approve these financial statements.
The Bank maintains proper accounting records, and the accompanying financial statements
are in agreement therewith as also with the financial data presented in the Board of Direc-
tors’ report.

Amman, Jordan Deloitte & Touche (M.E.), Jordan
25 January 2007
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STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS CONCERNING THE

PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors of Arab Bank plc (the Board) oversees the preparation and pres-

entation of the consolidated financial statements. These have been prepared in accor-

dance with the International Financial Reporting Standards, and comply with the re-

quirements of the regulatory authorities in the countries where the Bank operates. The

information in the Annual Report is consistent with that in the consolidated financial

statements.

Arab Bank plc has an effective internal control system that covers all business transac-

tions, assets and records. The books and supporting documents are complete and reli-

able, as is necessary for the preparation of the financial statements of the Bank and of the

Group.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors investigates the accuracy of the financial

statements. The Committee meets with both the internal auditors and the independent

auditor to discuss all issues related to the financial data and their disclosure, as well as the

internal control system and the scope of the audit.

The accompanying financial statements were audited by Deloitte and Touche (M.E.),

members of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu International.

Amman, 25 January 2007 

ABDEL HAMID A. M. SHOMAN 

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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STATEMENT BY THE CHAIRMAN/CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND
THE GROUP CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER/HEAD OF STRATEGIC

INVESTMENTS

The Chairman/Chief Executive Officer and the Group Chief Financial Officer attest to
the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements and the financial informa-
tion of this report as on 31 December 2006.

ABDEL HAMID A.M. SHOMAN DR FAROUK EL-KHAROUF

Chairman/Chief Executive Officer Group Chief Financial Officer/

Head of Strategic Investments

STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS CONCERNING THE CONTINUITY

OF THE COMPANY

After reviewing the financial statements for the year ending on 31 December 2006, the

Board of Directors, based on its knowledge and belief confirms that there are no signifi-

cant issues that may affect the continuity of the Bank during the financial year 2007.

Amman, 25 January 2007

ABDEL HAMID A.M. SHOMAN

Chairman/Chief Executive Officer 
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STRUCTURE OF ARAB BANK GROUP
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ARAB BANK BRANCHES

WHOLLY OWNED MAJORITY OWNED AFFILIATES

� Arab Bank Australia Ltd.

� Europe Arab Bank plc

� Arab Bank AG, Frankfurt

� Islamic International Arab Bank
plc

� Al-Arabi Investment  Group

� Arab Investment Bank S.A.L.
(66.65%)

� Arab Tunisian Bank (64.24%)

� AB Capital Limited (60%)

� Arab Palestinian Investment
Bank (55%)

� Al Nisr Al Arabi Insurance
Company (50%)

� Oman Arab Bank S.A.O. (49%)

� Arab Bank Syria (49%)

� Arab National Bank (40%)

� Arabia Insurance Co. (36.79%)

� Commercial Building Co.
(32.77%)

ARAB BANK PLC

ARAB BANK GROUP 
SHAREHOLDERS

ARAB BANK 
(SWITZERLAND) 
Sister Institution

SUBSIDIARIES
AND AFFILIATES
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THE ARAB BANK NETWORK

ARAB BANK P L C

JORDAN

Telephone country code: 962

General Management
P.O. Box 950544, 950545, 941579
Shmeisani, Amman 11195
Tel.(6) 5600000, 5660140
Fax (6) 5606793, 5606830

MAIN BRANCHES

Amman, King Faisal St.
P.O. Box 8 & 68
Amman 11118
Tel. (6) 4638161-9
Fax (6) 4637082

Amman, Shmeisani
P.O. Box 950546
Amman 11195
Tel. (6) 5607231, 5607115
Fax (6) 5670564

ALGERIA

Telephone country code: 213

Algiers
Place El Qods 23
Hydra, Algiers 16000
Tel. (21) 604980
Fax (21) 480868

BAHRAIN
Telephone country code: 973 
(No area code required)

Manama, Offshore Banking Unit
P.O. Box 813
Building No. 540/542
Road 1706, Manama 317
Tel. 17549000
Fax 17541116

Manama

P.O. Box 395
Building No. 540/542
Road 1706, Manama 317 
Tel. 17549000
Fax 17540292

CYPRUS

Telephone country code: 357
(No area code required)

Nicosia
P.O. Box 25650
1 Spyrou Kyprianou Avenue
1311 Nicosia
Tel. 22899100
Fax 22767741

EGYPT

Telephone country code: 20

Cairo
P.O. Box 2006
28 Tala’t Harb St.
Tel. (2) 5767019
Fax (2) 5746165

LEBANON
Telephone country code: 961

Beirut
P.O. Box 11-1015
Riad El-Solh Square,
Banks Street
Beirut 11072070
Tel. (1) 980153-4, 980246-9
Fax (1) 980803, 980299

MOROCCO
Telephone country code: 212

Casablanca
P.O. Box 13810
174, Blvd. Mohammed  V
Tel. (2) 2223152
Fax (2) 2200233

PALESTINE

Telephone country code: 970, 972

Ramallah - Al-Balad
P.O. Box 148, Ramallah 
Tel. (2) 2986489
Fax (2) 2986488

Gaza
P.O. Box 91
Omar Al-Mukhtar St., Gaza 
Tel. (8) 2866288
Fax (8) 2820704
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YEMEN REPUBLIC

Telephone country code: 967

Sana’a
P.O. Box  475 & 1301
Zubairi Road
Tel. (1) 276585-93
Fax (1) 276583

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICES

CHINA

Telephone country code: 86

Shanghai 
Unit 1803, Shanghai Trade Square
188 Si Ping Road
Shanghai 200086
Tel. (21) 65077737/38
Fax (21) 65072776

HONG KONG
Telephone country code: 852

Hong Kong
Suite 2711, Citibank Tower
3 Garden Road
Central Hong Kong
Tel. 28787800
Fax 28787821

KAZAKHSTAN
Telephone country code: 7

Almaty
188 Dostyk Ave.
Almaty 050051
Tel. (3272) 596253
Fax (3272) 596254

KOREA
Telephone country code: 82

Seoul
C.P.O. Box 1331
Daewoo Centre Bldg.
14th Floor
541, 5-ka, Namdaemoon-ro,
Joong-gu, 100714 Seoul
Tel. (2) 7754290-3
Fax (2) 7754294

THE ARAB BANK NETWORK

QATAR

Telephone country code: 974
(No area code required)

Doha
P.O. Box 172
119 Grand Hammed Ave.
Tel. 4387777
Fax 4410774

SINGAPORE
Telephone country code: 65
(No area code required)

Singapore
80 Raffles Place
32 – 20 UOB Plaza 2
Singapore 048624
Tel. 65330055
Fax 65322150

UNITED ARAB EMIRATES
Telephone country code: 971

Abu Dhabi
P.O. Box 875
Sh. Tahnoun Bin Mohammad 
Building, Naser St.
Tel. (2) 6392225
Fax (2) 6212370

Dubai
P.O. Box 11364
Al-Ittihad St.
Tel. (4) 2950845
Fax (4) 2955974, 2940847

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
Telephone country code: 1

New York (Federal agency)
520 Madison Avenue
New York, NY 10022-4237
Tel. (212) 7159700
Fax (212) 5934632 (Credit Dept.),
(212) 2233175 (Operations)
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THE ARAB BANK NETWORK

FRANCE

Telephone country code: 33

P.O. Box 319  75365 
75365 Paris Cedex 08
26 Avenue des Champs Elysées 
75008 Paris
Tel. (1) 45616000
Fax (1) 42890978

GERMANY

Telephone country code: 49

Bockenheimer Landstr. 24
60323 Frankfurt am Main
P.O. Box 100127
6001 Frankfurt am Main
Tel. (69) 242590
Fax (69) 235471

ITALY

Telephone country code: 39

P.O. Box 745
Via Vincenzo Bellini 24 
00198 Rome
Tel. (06) 854551
Fax (06) 85355481

SPAIN

Telephone country code: 34

Paseo de la Castellana, 31 – 5
28046 Madrid
Tel. (91) 3084290
Fax (91) 3086482

ARAB INVESTMENT
BANK S.A.L.

Telephone country code: 961

Beirut
P.O. Box 11 – 7000
Riad El Solh Square,
Banks Street
Beirut 11072070
Tel. (1) 985111, 985222
Fax (1) 987333

SISTER, SUBSIDIARY AND 
ASSO CIATED COMPANIES

ARAB BANK (SWITZERLAND)

Telephone country code: 41

Zurich
P.O. Box 2023
Limmatquai 92
CH – 8022 Zurich
Tel. (44) 2657111
Fax (44) 2657330

Geneva
P.O. Box 1096
1, quai du Mont-Blanc
CH - 1211 Geneva 1
Tel. (22) 7151211
Fax (22) 7322460

ARAB BANK AUSTRALIA LTD

Telephone country code: 61

Sydney
P.O. Box N645
Grosvenor Place NSW 1220
Level 9
200 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Tel. (2) 937789 00
(2) 92323844 (Dealing Room)
Fax (2) 92215428 

EUROPE ARAB BANK PLC

GENERAL MANAGEMENT AND BRANCH

UNITED KINGDOM

Telephone country code: 44

13-15 Moorgate 
London EC2R 6 AD
Tel. (20) 73158500
Fax (20) 76007620

BRANCHES:

AUSTRIA

Telephone country code: 43

P.O. Box 100
Seilerstätte 11
1015 Vienna
Tel. (1) 5134240
Fax (1) 51342409
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FINANCE ACCOUNTANCY 
MOHASSABA SA

Telephone country code: 41

Geneva
Rue Neuve-du-Molard 24
P.O. Box 3155
CH – 1211 Geneva 3
Tel. (22) 9083000
Fax (22) 7387229

ISLAMIC INTERNATIONAL 
ARAB BANK PLC

Telephone country code: 962

Amman
P.O. Box 925802
Wasfi Al-Tal St.
Amman 11110
Tel. (6) 5694901
Fax (6) 5694914

AL-ARABI INVESTMENT GROUP
Telephone country code: 962

Amman
P.O. Box 143156
Amman 11814
Tel. (6) 5522239
Fax (6) 5519064

ARAB TUNISIAN BANK
Telephone country code: 216

Tunis
P.O. Box 520
9 rue Hadi Nouira
Tunis 1001
Tel. (71) 351155
Fax (71) 347270

ARAB PALESTINIAN INVESTMENT
BANK

Telephone country code: 970, 972

Ramallah
Al Harajeh Building
P.O. Box 1268
Ramallah
Tel. (2) 2987126/7
Fax (2) 2987125

OMAN ARAB BANK S.A.O.

Telephone country code: 968
(No area code required)

Ruwi 
P.O. Box 2010 
MBD Area, 112 Ruwi
Tel. 24706265
Fax 24797736

ARAB BANK- SYRIA
Telephone country code: 963

Damascus
Al Mahdi Bin Barakeh Street
Abo Romaneh
P.O. Box 38
Damascus
Tel. (11) 3348130
Fax (11) 3349844

ARAB NATIONAL BANK
Telephone country code: 966

Riyadh
P.O.Box 56921
King Faisal Str.
North Murabba
Riyadh 11564
Tel. (1) 4029000
Fax (1) 4027747

ARABIA INSURANCE CO.
Telephone country code: 961

Beirut
P.O. Box 11-2172
Beirut
Tel. (1) 363610
Fax (1) 365139
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GENERAL ASSEMBLY AGENDA

The following are the items on the agenda of the 77th meeting of the General
Assembly to be held on 30 March 2007:

FIRST:
ANNUAL ORDINARY GENERAL ASSEMBLY

1. Presentation and adoption of the Minutes of the 76th meeting of the Gen-
eral Assembly.

2. Presentation of the Report of the Board of Directors for the year 2006 and of
the outlook for 2007.

3. Presentation of the Auditors’ Report on the financial statements of the Bank
for the financial year 2006.

4. Presentation and approval of the financial statements of the Bank for the
year 2006, and adoption of the recommendation of the Board of Directors to
distribute a dividend for the year 2006 at the rate of JOD 0.25 per share,
which is 25% of the nominal value of JOD 1.0 per share.

5. Release of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the year
2006.

6. Election of the Bank’s Auditors for the year 2007, and determination of their
remuneration.

7. Other issues related to the Ordinary General Assembly meeting, provided
they have had prior approval of 10% of the votes represented in the meeting.

SECOND:
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL ASSEMBLY

1. To approve the proposed changes in the articles of incorporation and by-
laws to bring them in harmony with the Jordanian Companies Law, no. 22
for 1997 and other related laws.


